SYNAPTICS INC

FORM 10-K

(Annual Report)

Filed 08/23/10 for the Period Ending 06/26/10

Address

Telephone
CIK
Symbol
SIC Code
Industry
Sector
Fiscal Year

3120 SCOTT BLVD.

SUITE 130

SANTA CLARA, CA 95054

4084545100

0000817720

SYNA

7371 - Computer Programming Services
Computer Peripherals

Technology

06/30

http://www.edgar-online.com
© Copyright 2010, EDGAR Online, Inc. All Rights Reserved.

Distribution and use of this document restricted under EDGAR Online, Inc. Terms of Use.




Table of Contents



Table of Contents

UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 26, 2010

Commission File Number 000-49602

SYNAPTICS INCORPORATED

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its @rart

Delaware 77-011851¢
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.LR.S. Employer
incorporation or organizatiol Identification No.)

3120 Scott Blvd
Santa Clara, Californi 95054
(Address of principal executive office (Zip Code)

(408) 454-5100
Registrant’s telephone number, including area code

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) diie Act:

Title of each clas Name of each exchange on which registt
Common Stock, par value $.001 per share The Nasdag Global Select Market
Preferred Stock Purchase Rig The Nasdaqg Global Select Marl

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) ¢e Act:
None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405e08#turities Ac
YesM NoO

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuiegd to file reports pursuant to Section 13 ort®ecl15(d) of th
Act. YesD No M

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant € tiled all reports required to be filed by Seweti or 15(d) of th
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preagdi? months (or for such shorter period that thigsteant was required
file such reports), and (2) has been subject th filing requirements for the past 90 days. ¥&s No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lndsnitted electronically and posted on its corpokéb site, if any
every Interactive Data File required to be subrdittend posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulatidn@232.405 of thi
chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or fothssitorter period that the registrant was requicedubmit and post su
files). YesOO NoO

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquéildrs pursuant to Item 405 of RegulationKSis not containe
herein, and will not be contained to the best gfsteants knowledge, in definitive proxy or information tgments incorporat
by reference in Part Il of this Form 10-K or anpendment to this Form 10-K1

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant igrge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a-acelerated file
or a smaller reporting company. See the definitiohslarge accelerated filer,” “accelerated filerghd ‘smaller reportin
company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Chenk):

Large accelerated fil&d  Accelerated fileild Non-accelerated fileld] Smaller reporting compariy
(Do not check if a smaller reporting compe



Indicate by check mark whether the registrantskell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the A¢8s0 No M

The aggregate market value of Common Stock heldomgffiliates of the registrant (28,166,392 shareaged on tt
closing price of the registrast‘Common Stock as reported on the Nasdaq GlobaktSklarket on December 24, 200¢
$29.62, was $834,288,531. For purposes of this atatipn, all officers, directors, and 10% beneficaners of the registra
are deemed to be affiliates. Such determinatiomlshoot be deemed to be an admission that sucbeosfi directors, or 10
beneficial owners are, in fact, affiliates of tlegistrant.

As of August 6, 2010, there were outstanding 34285 shares of the registramiCommon Stock, par value $.(
per share.

Documents Incorporated by Reference

Portions of the registrast’definitive Proxy Statement for the 2010 Annualetiteg of Stockholders are incorpore
by reference into Part Il of this Form 10-K.




SYNAPTICS INCORPORATED
ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K
FISCAL 2010

TABLE OF CONTENTS
PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTY
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
ITEM 4. RESERVEL
PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELAED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIE

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIMNCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATION:

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURE
ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
PART Il
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORETGOVERNANCE
ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIALWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACIDONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICE
PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

SIGNATURES

INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Exhibit 21
Exhibit 23.1

16

32

32

32

32

33

35

36

49

50

50

50

51

52

52

52

52

52

53

55

F-1



Exhibit 31.1
Exhibit 31.2
Exhibit 32.1
Exhibit 32.2

Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

The statements contained in this report on FornKlibat are not purely historical are forwaddoking statement
within the meaning of applicable securities lawerWard-looking statements include statements reiggrdur “expectations,”
“anticipation,” “intentions,” “beliefs,” or “strate gies” regarding the future, whether or not thoseraare used. Forward-
looking statements also include statements reggrd@avenue, margins, expenses, and earnings andiysiiscal 2011 anc
thereafter; our positioning in our target marketsur ability to continue to enhance our market positand increase ot
business through introducing market leading integf@olutions; the strength of our intellectual peoly portfolio, engineerin
knowhow, and technological expertise; the success ofppoduct development strategies; the attractivenes our produc
solutions, including their performance, cost, cas#o satisfaction, market position, and potentisdntinued success of o
virtual manufacturing platform; the strength of czaustomer relationships; the amounts of revenueggad as a result of sal
to significant customers; our competitive positiand competitive factors; potential acquisitions sirategic alliances; th
success of particular product or marketing prograrasd liquidity and anticipated cash needs and kklity. All forward-
looking statements included in this report are ltase information available to us as of the filingtel of this report, and w
assume no obligation to update any such forwaaking statements. Our actual results could diffeaterially from the
forward-looking statements. Among the factors that coulasseaactual results to differ materially are thettas discussed i
Item 1A. Risk Factor:
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PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Overview

We are a leading worldwide developer and suppliezustoméesigned human interface solutions that enablelg
to interact more easily and intuitively with a widariety of mobile computing, communications, etastigrment, and oth
electronic devices. We currently target the pers@momputer, or PC, market and the market for didifastyle products
including mobile smartphones and feature phonedaple digital music and video players, and otredec electronic devi
markets with our customized human interface sahstio

We are a market leader in providing human interfaokitions to our target markets. Our original eguén
manufacturer, or OEM, customers include most oftteeone PC OEMs and many of the wosldargest OEMs for mobi
smartphones and feature phones and portable digiisic players. We generally supply custom desigmethan interfac
solutions to our OEM customers through their carttraanufacturers, which take delivery of our praduend pay us direc!
for them. Through our OneTouch™ offering, we offi@t only our custom module solutions but also emair customers
access our technologies to develop their own humserface designs for capacitive button and scrgllapplications fc
products such as mobile smartphones and featumeghportable digital music and video players, rotg@book peripherals.

Our website is www.synaptics.conThrough our website, we make available free @afrgh all of our Securities a
Exchange Commission, or SEC, filings, including aanual reports on Form 3Q-our proxy statements, our quarterly rep
on Form 10-Q, and our current reports on Fori & well as Form 3, Form 4, and Form 5 Reportofardirectors, officer
and principal stockholders, together with amendsémthose reports filed or furnished pursuantdoti®ns 13(a), 15(d), or
under the Securities Exchange Act, as amended“Hkehange Act”). These reports are available immediately after
electronic filing with the SEC. Our website alsaludes corporate governance information, including Code of Conduct, ¢
Code of Ethics for the CEO and Senior Financiald@fs, and our Board Committee Charters.

Our fiscal year is the 52- or 58eek period ending on the last Saturday in June. fidtal years presented in 1
report were 52-week periods ended June 28, 2008, Ju, 2009, and June 26, 2010.

PC Market

We provide custom human interface solutions forigigtion, cursor control, and multimedia controls fieany of thi
world’s premier PC OEMs. In addition to notebooks, otR€r applications for our technology include peripl&rsuch &
keyboards, mice, and monitors, as well as deskopPC remote control applications. Our solutionstfi@ PC market inclut
the TouchPad™, a touch-sensitive pad that senegsottition and movement of a persofihger on its surface; the ClickPac
a TouchPad application, which eliminates the needphysical buttons; the TouchStyk™, a self cordgdjneasily integratt
pointing stick module; and dual pointing solutiomdiich combine both a TouchPad and a pointing stitik a single notebo«
computer, enabling users to use the interfaceaif toice.

The latest industry projections for notebook umivgth for the period 2010 through 2014 show a coumgloannu:
growth rate of 18% compared with a decline of 4% desktop computers, reflecting the continued ntignaof desktops 1
notebooks fueled by users’ desire for mobile conmguand on-thego access to applications, information, and digitaiteni
which is expanding on a daily basis. Based on titength of our technology and engineering knlmow, we believe we are w
positioned to take advantage of the growth oppdstun the notebook market and to provide innovativalueadded hume
interface solutions for each of the key arsbr preferences, which will be enhanced by th@tao of multifunction touch pac
including additional functionality, such as mubdch gesture recognition. We believe we are welitioned within th
notebook market as our product lines of touch @adbpointing sticks allow us to address 100% ofibiiebook market.
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Digital Lifestyle Product Market

We believe our intellectual property portfolio, @meering knowhow, technological expertise, experience
providing human interface solutions to major OEM=lectronic devices, and proven track record afagh in our expandir
core notebook computer interface business positsoi be a key technological enabler for multiplasumer electronic devic
targeted to meet the growing digital lifestyle tleBased on these strengths, we are addressirappuztunities created by t
growth of mobile computing, communications, andeetainment devices within the digital lifestyle guwts markets. Digit
lifestyle products include mobile smartphones arature phones, portable digital music, and videgesis, remote controls, &
global positioning devices, as well as a varietyrafbile, handheld, wireless, and entertainmentagsviOur array of hum
interface solutions for digital lifestyle produdtelude our TouchButtons, NavPoint™, ClearPad™, @rerButtons, which a
designed to enrich the interface on peripherals mdrtphones and feature phones, allowing the toserore easily use
navigate complex menu systems on their devicesb®lieve our existing technologies, our range ofdpa solutions, and o
emphasis on ease of use, small size, low poweneoaption, advanced functionality, durability, antlability enable us to ser
multiple aspects of the markets for digital lifdstproducts and other electronic devices.

We anticipate that our human interface solutiomsriobile smartphones and feature phones will comtito constitut
an important percentage of our net revenue. Netmae for our human interface solutions for mobiteagphones and featt
phones was not material until the fourth quartefiszfal 2008, but accounted for approximately 3506ur net revenue in fisc
2009 and 2010. Our ongoing success in serving thigilensmartphone market will depend upon the comtihgrowth of thi
portion of the overall mobile phone market, thdizdtion of highfunctionality interactive capacitive touchscreeather tha
mechanical buttons or resistive touchscreens asmtedace for application access and control imsghproducts, our ability
demonstrate to mobile smartphone OEMs the advastafjeur human interface solutions in terms of gerfance, usabilit
size, durability, power consumption, and industdi@sign possibilities, and the success of produtiltzing our human interfac
solutions. In addition, our success will dependanability to demonstrate to mobile smartphone GEMe advantages of
flexible touchscreen fulfilment model that encorsges chip to end-tend solutions, including a complete touchscreenutg
that includes a capacitive sensor, controller ARi§sociated electronics, and firmware and softwerabling OEMs quickly 1
integrate capacitive touchscreens into new handisgigns rather than doing or procuring the systenggneering and desi
work, purchasing the components separately, andlcwding with a module manufacturer to perform éissembly and testing.

Industry projections for the mobile smartphone reafor the period 2010 through 2013 show a compacamulia
growth rate of 21%, reflecting the trend towardsager functionality in smartphone products to nae®t address the expan
needs and expectations of the consumer orientekietndrhese products require a simple, durable,imodive human interfac
solution to enable the user to navigate efficietlilpugh menus and scroll through information corgd in the host device. v
believe we are well positioned to take advantagthisf growing market based on our technology, emgiimg knowhow, ant
the acceptance of our human interface solution®BWs in this market.

Our Strategy

Our objective is to continue to enhance our pasits a leading supplier of human interface solstifor the Pt
market and for the markets for digital lifestylegucts, including smartphones and feature phoneg.aspects of our strate
to achieve this objective include those set forlot.

Extend Our Technological Leaderst

We plan to utilize our extensive intellectual prageportfolio, engineering knovirow, and technological expertise
extend the functionality of our product solutiomslaffer innovative product solutions to customeeeoss multiple markets. \
intend to continue utilizing our technological exme to reduce the overall size, weight, cost, padier consumption of o
human interface solutions while increasing thepl@gtions, capabilities, and performance. We ptagontinue enhancing t
ease of use and functionality of our solutions. &l&® plan to expand our research and developmémmtsthrough increas
investment in our engineering activities, the hgrof additional engineering personnel, and strategguisitions and allianc
We believe that these efforts will enable us to hoestomer expectations and to achieve our goaupplying on a timely ar
cost-effective basis the most advanced, easy-tpfuisetional human interface solutions to our targarkets.
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Enhance Our Position in the PC Mar}

We intend to continue introducing marketding human interface solutions in terms of panfnce, functionalit
size, and ease of use. We plan to continue enhgrozin customersindustrial design alternatives and device functiioyn
through innovative product development based oregisting capabilities and technological advances.

Capitalize on Growth of New Markets

We intend to capitalize on the growth of new masksuch as the digital lifestyle products markeiisich include
smartphones and feature phones and netbooks, Hralmgut by the convergence of computing, commuitingt an
entertainment devices. We plan to offer innovatimitive human interface solutions that addrdss ¢volving portability
connectivity, and functionality requirements of shkenew markets. We plan to offer these solutionexisting and potenti
OEM customers to enable increased functionalitduced size, lower cost, and enhanced industriabdefeatures and
enhance the user experience of their products. Mretp utilize our existing technologies as wellaggressively to pursue n
technologies as new markets evolve that demandsoauions.

Emphasize and Expand Customer Relations

We plan to emphasize and expand our strong andléstipg customer relationships and to establisicessfu
relationships with new customers. In each markesaree, we plan to provide the most advanced huntarface solutions f
our customersproducts. We believe that our human interface smist enable our customers to deliver a positiver
experience and to differentiate their products fithiwse of their competitors. We continually strteeenhance the competit
position of our customers by providing them withawative, distinctive, and higguality human interface solutions on a tin
and costeffective basis. To do so, we work continuallyrtgorove our productivity, to reduce costs, and teesjthe delivery
our human interface solutions. We endeavor to stliea the entire design and delivery process thnoogr ongoing desig
engineering, and production improvement efforts. &é® focus on providing timely support to our omsérs after the purche
of our human interface solutions.

We plan to increase our business with existingausts and attract new customers by offering bostocn desig
full solutions, as well as design tools, documeaitata family of capacitive sensing ASICs, and tecal support to enable the
to develop their own human interface designs fgracitive buttons and scrolling applications in proid such as mob
smartphones and feature phones, portable digitsiarand video players, and PC peripherals. As altresustomers have
choice of determining the most optimal way to ntbefr emerging and growing needs: our traditionstom module solutiol
or our OneTouch solution, which offers a flexiblkemative when design integration or quick turme @mportant to th
customer design cycle.

Pursue Strategic Relationships and Acquisiti

We intend to develop and expand strategic relatissto enhance our ability to offer valadded human interfa
solutions to our customers, penetrate new market$ strengthen the technological leadership ofpooduct solutions. We al
consider the potential acquisition of companiesritler to expand our technological expertise anelstablish or strengthen «
presence in selected target markets.

Continue Virtual Manufacturing

We plan to expand and diversify our production cé#gahrough thirdparty relationships, thereby strengthening
virtual manufacturing platform. This strategy résuin a scalable business model; enables us toeotnate on our co
competencies of research and development, technalagvances, and product design and engineaimjreduces our capi
expenditures and working capital requirements. Wawual manufacturing strategy allows us to maimtaivariable cost mod
in which we do not incur most of our manufacturiogsts until our product solutions have been shipged billed to ot
customers.
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Product Solutions

We develop and enhance interface technologiesetivith the user’'s experience in interacting with tisers mobile
computing, communications, and entertainment dsvicur innovative and intuitive human interfaceusohs can b
engineered to accommodate many diverse platforntspar expertise in human factors and usability mamitilized to improv
the features and functionality of our solutions.rQaxtensive array of technologies includes ASIGenware, software
mechanical and electrical designs, and patterrgrétton and touch-sensing technologies.

Our customdesigned human interface solutions are custom eagga, total solutions for our customers, and ohe
sensor design, module layout, ASICs, firmware, softivare features for which we provide manufacmi@md design suppc
and device testing. This allows us to be a st supplier for complete human interface desigmfthe early design stage
manufacturing, to testing and support. Our OneTooffaring includes design tools, documentationamify of capacitiv
sensing ASICs, and technical support to enableomests to develop their own human interface designsapacitive buttor
and scrolling applications. Through our engineetngw-how and technological expertise, we seek to proeidecustome
with solutions that address their individual desigsues and result in high-performance, featigle- and reliable interfa
solutions. We believe our interface solutions offer following characteristics:

. Ease of Usi. Our interface solutions offer the ease of useiamtive interaction that users dema

*  Small SizeThe small, thin size of our interface solutionstdaa our customers to reduce the overall size agighi
of their products in order to satisfy consumer dednfor portability.

* Low Power Consumptio. The low power consumption of our interface solns enables our customers to ¢
products with longer battery life or smaller bagtsize.

* Advanced Functionalit. Our interface solutions offer advanced featusesh as virtual scrolling, customizable
zones, edge motion, and tapping and dragging i¢oremhance the user experier

« Reliability . The reliability of our interface solutions saisf consumer requirements for dependability, whsck
major component of consumer satisfacti

e Durability . Our interface solutions withstand repeated usest physical treatment, and temperature fluctoe
while providing a superior level of performan

We believe these characteristics will enable usamntain our leadership position in the PC marlket @ enhance o
position as a technological enabler within the retgKor digital lifestyle products and other eleaic devices, including mob
smartphones and feature phones and portable digitsic and video players.

Our human interface solutions are intended to fgatisir customers’specification needs, including features
functionality, industrial design, mechanical, andctical requirements. Our products also offerquei integration optior
including allowing our capacitive sensors to becpthunderneath the plastic of the device, whicbvwallfor streamlined al
stylized designs, and LED integration to indicatgiss or enhance industrial design.

Our emphasis on technological leadership and deségrabilities positions us to provide unique hunraerface
solutions that address specific customer requirésn@ur longterm working relationships with large, global OEg®vide u:
with experience in satisfying their demanding desgpecifications and other requirements. Our cuspwoduct solutior
provide OEMs with numerous benefits, including tbiéowing:

e modular integration

e reduced product development co:

e shorter product time to marke

e compact and efficient platform

« improved product functionality and utility; al

e product differentiation
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We work with our customers in order to meet theithhical and functional specifications, their inuias desigr
requirements, and their desire to differentiatérthpeducts from those of their competitors. Thidlaborative effort reduces t
duplication and overlap of investment and resoyreesbling our OEM customers to devote more time r@sources to tl
market development of their products.

We utilize capacitive technology rather than régstor mechanical technology in our product soluioUnlike
resistive and mechanical technology, our setate capacitive technology has no moving partaativation force, therel
offering a durable, more reliable solution that t&nintegrated into both curved and flat surfaGapacitive technologies a
allow for much thinner sensors than resistive orctmagical technology, providing for slimmer, moremgact and uniqt
industrial designs.

Products

Our family of product solutions allows our custosiéo solve their interface needs and differentithtgr product
from those of their competitors.

TouchPad

Our TouchPad, which takes the place and exceedfutitdionality of a mouse, is a small, tousbrsitive pad th
senses the position of a persoifinger on its surface through the measuremerntaphcitance. Our TouchPad provide:
accurate, comfortable, and reliable method forestmeavigation and cursor movement and providesatiopm for interactiv
input. Our TouchPad solutions allow our customergrovide stylish, simple, uséiendly, and intuitive human interfa
solutions for both the consumer and corporate msrkaur TouchPad solutions offer various advanesdufes, including ti
following:

e Scrolling. Our TouchPad permits the user to customize thellsgydeature as One Finger Scrolling, TWnge!
Scrolling, or ChiralScrolling based on their prefiece.

e Customizable tap zoneBhese zones permit designated portions of the TRadho be used to simulate mouse cl
launch applications, and perform other selectedtfans.

« Performance of entertainment, productivity, and metsks.Our Scrybe™ enables the user to quickly per
common entertainment, productivity, and media tastisig simple, easy-temember gestures on the Touch
Scrybe can be downloaded f-of-charge and used with most of our modern TouchPasbsse.

e Tapping and dragging of icon$his feature allows the user to simply tap and lowichn icon in order to drag it, rat
than being forced to hold a button down in ordedrizig an icon

*  Device InteractionOur Gesture Suité™ provides users with a customizable way to addresdygtivity and ti
interact with their notebook systems through theichdPad. Some of these gestures include Pinch fomZ®&otate
Three-finger flick, and many other:

Our TouchPad solutions are available in a varidtysines, electrical interfaces, and thicknesses. TauchPa
solutions are designed to meet the electrical aadhamical specifications of our customers. Custethifirmware and drivi
software ensure the availability of specializedtdess. As a result of their solid state charadiessour TouchPad solutic
have no moving parts that wear out, resulting iakaist and reliable input solution that also alldarsunique industrial desigr

ClickPad

Our ClickPad, a specific TouchPad application #lahinates the need for physical buttons, is amvative produc
solution that can be used for scrolling, pointingyigation, and selection. The buttonless desigousfClickPad allows fc
unique, intuitive industrial design and makes it etellent alternative to conventional input andiigation devices. Ol
ClickPad is activated by pressing down on the mgktact switch to perform a left- or rightitton click and provides tact
feedback similar to pressing a physical button.
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TouchStyk

Our TouchStyk is a proprietary pointing stick ifiéere solution. TouchStyk is a selfntained, easily integrat
module that uses capacitive technology similathe bf our TouchPad. TouchStyk is enabled with gtesselect and tap-to-
click capabilities and can be easily integratea inmtultiple computing and communications devicesadidition, our desic
greatly reduces susceptibility to electromagnetierference, thereby providing greater pointinguaacy and preventing t
pointer from drifting when not in use.

We are currently shipping our TouchStyk in notelmogortable multimedia players, and ultra mobilespea
computers. Our modular approach allows OEMs tauhelour TouchPad, our TouchStyk, or a combinatfdmoth interfaces |
their products.

Dual Pointing Solution:

Our dual pointing solutions offer a TouchPad withainting stick in a single notebook computer, dimgbusers t
select their interface of choice. Our dual pointisglution also provides the end user the abilityuse both interfac
interchangeably. Our dual pointing solution progidiee following advantages:

e cos-effective and simplified OEM integratio

« simplified OEM product line because one device arst both solutions

*  single-source supplier, which eliminates compatibilityuiss; anc

< end user flexibility because one notebook can addoeth user preferenci

We have developed two solutions for use in the goaiting market. Our first solution integrates thié electronic
for controlling a thirdparty resistive strain gauge pointing stick onta diwuchPad PCB. This solution simplifies O
integration by eliminating the need to procure gbéting stick electronics from another party amggically integrate them in
the notebook. Our second dual pointing solutiorsus@ TouchStyk rather than a thjpdsty pointing stick and offers the se
simplified OEM integration. The second solutionaiscompletely modular design, allowing OEMs to offesuchPadbsnly,
TouchStyk-only, or dual pointing solutions on altib-order basis.

NavPoint

Our NavPoint solution offers TouchPad functionalfty small form factor devices for improved usalilianc
versatility in accessing and managing content imdhald devices through unique navigation contialdpuding short- and long-
distance scrolling features, tapping, and mousedikrsor navigation.

ClearPad

Our ClearPad touchscreen solution consists ofrespiarent, thin capacitive sensor that can be plagedany displa:
such as an LCD or OLED. Similar to our traditiofaluchPad, our ClearPad has distinct advantagdsding low-profile form
factor; high reliability, durability, and accuracnd low power consumption. ClearPad can be mourgedath curved surfac
providing for unique industrial designs. ClearPadldes the user to interact directly with the digpdn electronic devices, st
as mobile smartphones and feature phones.

We offer three variations of the ClearPad Seriesgihed to meet the needs of the mobile handsetehathearPa
3000 Series provides advanced multi-finger imagesisg for highend handsets; ClearPad 2000 Series offers Dual
interaction for gestures including Pinch and Rotatel ClearPad 1000 Series supports sifiglger interaction at a low cc
intended for mass-market and mid-range devices.

In addition, we offer our ClearPad 7200 Series,cwvhis designed to meet the requirements of theelsmgchscree
market for products more closely related to clartsiaebooks, slates, tablets, and similar devigpgally ranging between
inches to 10.1 inches.
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FlexPad

This capacitive sensing interface is mounted bénaahechanical keypad, and allows the keypad sutiade use
for advanced scrolling and navigation featuresrattar entry, and advanced gesture input on haddfelices. With navigatic
functionality similar to a touchpad, FlexPad offérderface and industrial design differentiation iwhimproving devic
interaction.

ClearButtons

Our ClearButtons product is an extension of ouea@pacitive sensing technology that has been ims&duchPa
solutions for notebook PCs, smartphones, and fegthiones. ClearButtons is a clear sensor that eandunted under plast
providing OEMs with easy integration and attractilesign options for scrolling and buttons.

TouchButtons

Our TouchButtons product provides capacitive buttod scrolling controls for an easydse and stylish interfa
solution designed to replace mechanical buttongtoBuarrays and ScrollStrips can be programmed édopm variou
functions, such as controls for multimedia, dispéad device settings in notebook PCs, multimedib&ards, MP3 playel
digital photo frames, monitors, and other digitfddtyle products. TouchButton interfaces are dwsibfor integration under t
plastic face of a device, allowing for a sealedalile, and thin design, which can be coupled wiDLanimation. OEMs c:
incorporate TouchButtons into their products byeitdesigning their own button controls, scrolleantrols, or a combinatis
of button and scrolling controls using our OneToofflering or through our custom designed interfacmlule.

OneTouch

OneTouch is a configurable solution based on opaciive sensing technology, which includes a caipacsensini
ASIC, easy-tadse design tools, documentation, and technical atipthat enables customers to develop their owstoex
interface designs ihouse for capacitive buttons and scrolling applices in various products, including mobile smartpés
and feature phones, portable digital media playard, PC peripherals, such as monitors, keyboarit®, mnd remote contrgo
OneTouch increases our reach from a customer startdpy offering them an alternative and flexibl@aywvto leverage o
technology knowhow, and technological expertise whether through teaditional custom module solution or through
OneTouch capability that allows them to implemeapacitive sensing ihouse when design integration or quick design
are important.

Capabilities

Our products are supported by a variety of feataygabilities allowing for further product differéation and eas
customer integration.

Synaptics Gesture Suite

Synaptics Gesture Suite, or SGS, provides usels avitintuitive way to interact productively witheih noteboo
systems. SGS was developed by analyzing the masinom workflows from entertainment activities, swahviewing photc
and listening to music, to productivity activitiesjch as accessing emails and presentations. $ak ieean intelligent usabili
model that makes it intuitive for consumers to ustind and discover features easily, resultingbetter user experience. S
represents a growing portfolio of gestures avadlain our interface solutions. These new gestures@mpatible with a wic
range of Microsoft Windows and Linux applicatiorts énhance the value and productivity of notebools RGd peripher
devices that use our Touchpads. Gestures currenthe market include Pinch, Rotate, ChiralMotior8¥rolling, Two¥inge!
Scrolling, Three-Finger Flick, and Three-Finger Dow

Enhanced Gesture Recognitior

Enhanced Gesture Recognition is a suite of Cleageatures included in our firmware. Customers asilyeenabl
SingleTouch gestures, such as Tap, Double TapsPaed Flick, as well as DualTouch gestures, sadkirch and Pivot Rota
for ClearPad directly from our touch module firm@aNo additional recognition software is requiredtbe host processor
implement these gestures. This approach lowersgrosessor resource requirements and ensuresdstatrgs are implemen
using our proven pattern-recognition technology.
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Dual Mode for TouchPa

Dual Mode-enabled TouchPad interface allow a usemitch between cursor control and ideased controls on t
TouchPad surface. In default mode, a Dual ModeJedabouchPad provides the same cursor control fiessapeen navigatic
as a standard TouchPad. When the user taps omehlazon located on the TouchPad surface, contmis illuminate on tt
TouchPad surface.

Dual Mode functionality offers OEMs a variety of stamization options, including tap zones for laung
applications and multimedia controls, scrolling esto adjust volume, and programmable buttons ablerend users to chot
their application of choice to launch through owraDMode driver. To regain cursor control, the usienply taps the mo
switch button and the illuminated icons disappalowing the user to control the cursor for on-scr@avigation.

Proximity Sensin

Proximity sensing technology enables users toactarith consumer electronics without touch. Witts ttechnology
sensors in a device, such as a notebook PC, nylimiee, peripheral, or digital photo frame, sensepttesence of a ussrhani
to activate a function. These sensors can illureindEDs for discoverable buttons, immediately walewicks from power-
saving mode, or activate other functionality.

ChiralMotion Gesture

With our ChiralMotion Gesture technology, the usan apply one continuous circular motion to ingigtecise ar
fine-tuned scrolling on any two-dimensional inputface, such as our TouchPad and ClearPad solutions

ChiralMotion Gesture technology is well-suited &mall handheld products, such as featizk-mobile handset
personal navigation systems, and personal medy&sahat require easy access for entertainmergicnand other digital file
Scrolling through long documents or pages on ahumtk PC becomes simple when using a TouchPad eethanit
ChiralMotion and reversing the direction of scrudlisimply requires the user to reverse the ciraulation of their finger.
Technologies

We have developed and own an extensive array dintéagies, encompassing ASICs, firmware, softv
mechanical and electrical designs, pattern recimgniand touch sensing technologies. With 113 ipeents in force and 1
U.S. patents pending, as well as many ko8- counterparts, we continue to develop technoioghese areas. We believe tt
technologies and the related intellectual propergate barriers for competitors and allow us tovigl® human interfac
solutions in a variety of high-growth markets.

Our broad line of human interface solutions cutgeistbased upon the following key technologies:

e capacitive position sensing technolo

e capacitive force sensing technolor

e  transparent capacitive position sensing technol
e pattern recognition technolog

«  mixed signal integrated circuit technolog

«  multi-touch technology; an

e proprietary microcontroller technolog
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In addition to these technologies, we develop fiamevand device driver software that we incorpoiate oul
products, which provide unique features, such dsaliscrolling, customizable tap zones, PalmCh&clgeMotion, and tappil
and dragging of icons. In addition, our abilityimbegrate all of our products to interface with orayperating systems, includi
Windows 98, Windows 2000, Windows NT, Windows CEndbws XP, Windows ME, Windows Vista, Windows 7, dkoid,
Symbian, UNIX, and LINUX, provides us with a comifiee advantage.

Capacitive Position Sensing Technologiis technology provides a method for sensing ttesgnce, position, a
contact area of one or more fingers or a conducitykis on a flat or curved surface, such as ouwrchBad, TouchRing, a
ScrollStrip. Our technology works with very lighduch, supports full multieuch capabilities, and provides highly respor
cursor navigation, scrolling, and selection. Itsuse moving parts, can be implemented under plesti is extremely durable.

Capacitive Force Sensing Technologyis technology senses the direction and magnitide force applied to «
object. The object can either move when force igliag, like a typical joystick used for gaming apptions, or it can t
isometric, with no perceptible motion during uske lour TouchStyk. The primary competition for tibéshnology is resisti
strain gauge technology. Resistive strain gaugentogy requires electronics that can sense vegllsthanges in resistan
presenting challenges to the design of that cinguihcluding sensitivity to electrical noise amtdrference. Our electrol
circuitry determines the magnitude and directionaof applied force, permits very accurate sensingirgf changes i
capacitance, and minimizes electrical interferénmen other sources.

Transparent Capacitive Position Sensing Technolddys technology allows us to build transparent eengor us
with our capacitive position sensing technologyctsas in our ClearPad. It has all the advantagesupfcapacitive positic
sensing technology and allows for visual feedbablerwincorporated with a display device, such as&@D. Our technolog
does not require calibration, does not produce sinalde internal reflections, and has reduced paoeguirements, allowing f
longer battery life.

Pattern Recognition Technologyhis technology is a set of software algorithms tewhniques for converting real-
world data, such as handwriting, into a digitalnfiothat can be recognized and manipulated withirraputer and gestt
decoding for our TouchPad products. Our technolpgyvides reliable handwriting recognition and cam used in oth
applications such as signature verification andugesecognition providing for a richer user expade.

Mixed Signal Integrated Circuit Technologihis hybrid analogdigital integrated circuit technology combines
power of digital computation with the ability totémface with non-digital, reakorld signals, such as the position of a finge
stylus on a surface. Our patented design technigersit us to utilize this technology to optimizer@ore ASIC engine for :
our products.

Proprietary Microcontroller TechnologyThis technology consists of a proprietary Hi6-microcontroller cor
embedded in the digital portion of our mixed sigA&IC, which allows us to optimize our ASIC for |t sensing tasks. O
embedded microcontroller provides great flexibilitycustomizing our product solutions utilizingrfiware, which eliminats
the need to design new circuitry for each new apgihn.

Competing Technology

Many human interface solutions currently utilizsiséive sensing technology. Resistive sensing taogy consists «
a flexible membrane above a flat, rigid, electficatonductive surface. When finger or stylus pressis applied to tt
membrane, it deforms until it makes contact wité thyid layer below, at which point attached elegics can determine t
position of the finger or stylus. Since the flexibhembrane is a moving part, it is susceptible &zhanical wear and w
eventually suffer degraded performance. Due toathg that resistive position sensors work, it is possible for them to dett
more than a single finger or stylus at any givemeti The positional accuracy of a resistive sersbmited by the uniformity ¢
the resistive coating as well as by the mecharfitseoflexible membrane. Finally, implementatiorigesistive technology ov
display devices, such as an LCD, result in reducadsmissivity, or the amount of light that can g#srough the displa
requiring the use of backlighting and thereby régyithe battery life of the device.
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Research and Development

We conduct ongoing research and development pragthat focus on advancing our technologies, devgdppew
products, improving design and manufacturing preegsand enhancing the quality and performancesopmduct solution
Our goal is to provide our customers with innovatsolutions that address their needs and imprasie cbmpetitive position
Our research and development focuses on advanaingexisting interface technologies, improving owrrent produc
solutions, and expanding our technologies to seewe markets. Our vision is to offer human interfaotutions, such as tous
handwriting, vision, and voice capabilities, thahde readily incorporated into varied electrorégides.

Our research and development programs focus omlékielopment of accurate, easy to use, reliable,iatuitive
human interfaces for electronic devices. We belieue innovative interface technologies can be a&gplio many diver:
products. We believe the interface is a key fa@tothe differentiation of these products. We bediethat our interfac
technologies enable us to provide customers witldyet solutions that have significant advantages alternative technologi
in terms of functionality, size, power consumptidarability, and reliability. We also intend to gue strategic relationships ¢
acquisitions to enhance our research and develdpraeabilities, leverage our technology, and simootgr time to market wi
new technological applications.

Our research, design, and engineering teams frédgueark directly with our customers to design arstsolution
for specific applications. We focus on enabling oustomers to overcome technical barriers and exghtve performance
their products. We believe our engineering krftaw and electronic systems expertise provide siant benefits to ol
customers by enabling them to concentrate on toee competencies of production and marketing.

As of the end of fiscal 2010, we employed 368 pedplour technology, engineering, and product degigctions i
the United States, Taiwan, Hong Kong, Korea, Jagrah China. Our research and development expensesapproximatel
$50.1 million, $68.0 million, and $86.6 million fiscal 2008, 2009, and 2010, respectively.

Intellectual Property Rights

Our success and ability to compete depend in paouo ability to maintain the proprietary aspedtswar technologie
and products. We rely on a combination of paterdpyrights, trade secrets, trademarks, confidétytiagreements, and ott
contractual provisions to protect our intellectpedperty, but these measures may provide onlydighfirotection. Our resear
design, and engineering teams frequently work tirewith our OEM customers to design custom solsidor specifi
applications.

We hold 113 U.S. patents in force and have 113 plagnts pending, as well as many naS. counterparts to t
U.S. patents and U.S. patents pending. Collectivillgse patents and patents pending cover varispeces of our ke
technologies, including touch sensing, pen sendiagdwriting recognition, customizable tap zonekyeemotion, and virtu
scrolling technologies. Our proprietary softwargistected by copyright laws and the source cod®tio proprietary softwa
is protected under applicable trade secret laws.

Our extensive array of technologies includes ASICsware, software, and pattern recognition andifgmn sensin
technologies. Our products rely on a combinatiotheke technologies, making it difficult to use amygle technology as t
basis for replicating our products. Furthermore, lgngth and customization of the customer desygfecserve to protect ¢
intellectual property rights.

Patent applications that we have filed or may ifighe future may not result in a patent being éssuOur issue
patents may be challenged, invalidated, or circurtes and claims of our patents may not be of cieffit scope or strength,
issued in the proper geographic regions, to prowiganingful protection or any commercial advantalye. have not applie
for, and do not have, any copyright registrationaum technologies or products. We have appliedetyister certain of ol
trademarks in the United States and other counffiesre can be no assurance that we will obtaiistregions of trademarks
key markets. Failure to obtain registrations catddhpromise our ability to protect fully our tradentk@and brands and co!
increase the risk of challenge from third partie®tr use of our trademarks and brands. In additian failure to enforce al
protect our intellectual property rights or obt&iom third parties the right to use necessary tetdgy could have a mater
adverse effect on our business, financial conditiond results of operations.
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We do not consistently rely on written agreemernits wur customers, suppliers, manufacturers, ahdratecipient
of our technologies and products, and thereforeestrade secret protection may be lost and ourtahii enforce ot
intellectual property rights may be limited. Fumttne@re, our customers, suppliers, manufacturers,aher recipients of o
technologies and products may seek to use our admyies and products without appropriate limitasiolm the past, we did r
consistently require our employees and consultemisnter into confidentiality, employment, or prigpary information an
invention agreements. Therefore, our former emmeyand consultants may try to claim some ownersitgrest in oL
technologies and products and may use our techieslegd products competitively and without apprateriimitations.

Other companies, including our competitors, mayetigy technologies that are similar or superioruotechnologie:
duplicate ourtechnologies, or design around our patents and &g or obtain patents or other proprietary right woulc
prevent, limit, or interfere with our ability to k@, use, or sell our products. Effective intell@ttproperty protection may
unavailable or limited in some foreign countrieswhich we operate, such as China and Taiwan. Uoaatd parties me
attempt to copy or otherwise use aspects of ourmtdogies and products that we regard as propyiefeinere can be 1
assurance that our means of protecting our prapyietghts in the United States or abroad will beguate or that competiti
will not independently develop similar technologiéé our intellectual property protection is insigfént to protect ot
intellectual property rights, we could face incieisompetition in the market for our technologied products.

We may receive notices from third parties thatrolaiur products infringe their rights. From timetirme, we receiv
notice from third parties of the intellectual prayerights such parties have obtained. We cannateo&in that our technolog
and products do not and will not infringe issuetkpts or other proprietary rights of third partidsy infringement claims, wi
or without merit, could result in significant liigion costs and diversion of resources, includirggayment of damages, wh
could have a material adverse effect on our busjf#smncial condition, and results of operations.

Customers

Our customers include many of the wosdargest PC OEMSs, based on unit shipments, as ageth variety (
consumer electronics manufacturers, including neosihartphone and feature phone OEMs. Our demoedtiatck record
technological leadership, design innovation, progugrformance, cost effectiveness, andtiore delivery have resulted in ¢
leadership position in providing human interfac&ugons. We believe our strong relationship withr @EM customers, mai
of which are currently developing digital lifestypeoducts, will position us as a source of supphytheir product offerings.

Our industry leading OEM customers in fiscal 20d€luded the following:

* Acer * LG Electronics
* Asustek * Nokia

* Dell e Samsun(

e Hewlet-Packarc e Sharp

e HTC e Sony Ericssol
e Lenovo e Toshiba

We generally supply customesigned products to our OEM customers through ttaitract manufacturers. We
our customdesigned products directly to these contract manturfers, some of which include Compal, Futaihuaeitec
Kuroda, Protek, Wistron, TPK, and Zhan Yun ShandHaictronics. Sales to Zhan Yun Shanghai Electsmicd Comp:
accounted for approximately 11% and 10%, respdgtivd our net revenue for fiscal 2010. Sales t&KTRouch Solutions ar
Inventec accounted for approximately 14% and 11égpectively, of our net revenue for fiscal 2009. diher customt
accounted for more than 10% of our net revenueitbier fiscal 2010 or 2009. We supply our OneTosclution to both OEI
contract manufacturers and OEM customers.

We consider both the OEMs and their contract mastufars to be our customers. Both the OEMs ana tugitrac
manufacturers may determine the design and prigiggirements and make the overall decision reggrifia use of our hum
interface solutions in their products. The contraenufacturers place orders with us for the pueldur products, take ti
to the products purchased upon shipment by us,paydus directly for those purchases. These custinave no retu
privileges except for warranty provisions.
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Strategic Relationships

We have used strategic relationships to enhancealiity to offer valueadded customer solutions in the past.
intend to enter into additional strategic relatitips with companies that may help us serve ouetargrkets.

Sales and Marketing

We sell our product solutions for incorporationoitihe products of our OEM customers. We generdés shroug|
direct sales employees as well as outside salesseptatives and distributors. Our sales persameeive substantial techni
assistance and support from our internal enginge®sources because of the highly technical natficeir product solution
Sales frequently result from mulével sales efforts that involve senior managemaesjgn engineers, and our sales persi
interacting with our customers’ decision makerstighout the product development and order process.

As of the end of fiscal 2010, we employed 120 saleb marketing professionals. We maintain ninearast suppo
offices domestically and internationally, which doeated in the United States, Taiwan, China, Kode@an, and Switzerlal
In addition, we utilize sales representatives/sdissibutors in China, Japan, and Taiwan.

International sales constituted approximately 99%coar revenue for each of fiscal 2008, 2009, and(
Approximately 87% of our sales were made to comgmiocated in China and Taiwan that provide deaigh manufacturir
services for major notebook computer and digifaktiyle product OEMs. All of our sales were denaaédl in U.S. dollars.

Manufacturing

We employ a virtual manufacturing platform throudhird-party relationships. We currently utilize th
semiconductor wafer manufacturers to supply us witliton wafers integrating our proprietary desigpecifications. Tt
completed silicon wafers are forwarded to thiatty package and test processors for further psirg into die and packag
ASICs, as applicable, which are then utilized in custom interface products or processed as ouT @urah products.

After processing and testing, the die and ASICscaresigned to various contract manufacturers feembly or, il
the case of OneTouch ASICs, are shipped directutocustomers. During the assembly process, @iodASIC is combine
with other components to complete the module far @ustom human interface solution. The finishedeagsded product
subsequently shipped by our contract manufactuatieestly to our customers for integration into theioducts.

We believe our virtual manufacturing strategy pd@a a scalable business model; enables us to destteeon oL
core competencies of research and developmentdkadical advances, and product design and engntgeand reduces ¢
capital expenditures. In addition, this strategyngicantly reduces our working capital requirensefdr inventory because
do not incur most of our manufacturing costs uwgl have actually shipped our interface productsulocustomers and bill
those customers for those products.

Our third-party contract manufacturers are Adimsed organizations. We provide our contract manwuifars witl
six-month rolling forecasts of our production raguients. We do not, however, have ldagn agreements with any of «
contract manufacturers that guarantee productipaaity, prices, lead times, or delivery schedulds strategy of relying ¢
those parties exposes us to vulnerability owinguo dependence on few sources of supply. We belieweever, that oth
sources of supply are available. In addition, we mstablish relationships with other contract mantifrers in order to redu
our dependence on any one source of supply.

Periodically, we purchase inventory from our cocttnr@anufacturers when a customer delays its dgligehedule ¢
cancels its order. In those circumstances in wioich customer has cancelled its order and we puechs®ntory from ot
contract manufacturers, we consider a wditevn to reduce the carrying value of the inventpuychased to its net realiza
value. We charge write-downs to reduce the carryaige of obsolete, slow moving, and nasable inventory to net realiza
value to cost of revenue.
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Backlog

As of the end of fiscal 2010, we had a backlogroees of $84.9 million, an increase of $22.1 millicompared wit
a backlog of orders as of the end of fiscal 200$6#.8 million. The increase in backlog resulteinarily from the timing ¢
customer orders. Our backlog consists of produérsrfor which purchase orders have been receivedvaich are schedul
for shipment in the subsequent quarter. Most orderssubject to rescheduling or cancellation wittited penalties. Because
the possibility of customer changes in product stapts, our backlog as of a particular date maybeoindicative of net sal
for any succeeding period.

Competition

Our principal competitors in the sale of noteboolch pads are Alps Electric, a Japanese congloejeaatl Ela
Microelectronics, a Taiwanese company, and ourcggal competitor in the sale of notebook pointinigks is Alps. In th
markets for digital lifestyle products and otheeationic devices, our competitors include Cyprégmel, Melfas, Elan, ar
various other companies involved in human interfagleitions. In certain cases, large OEMs may develternative hume
interface solutions for their own products or po®/key components for use in designing human entersolutions.

In the notebook human interface market, we plaodiwtinue to compete primarily on the basis of @ahhologice
expertise, design innovation, customer service, thedlong track record of performance of our hunraerface solution
including their ease of use, reliability, and ceffectiveness as well as their timely design, pobidn, and delivery schedul
Our pointing stick solutions, including our profary TouchStyk, enable us to address the notebooipater market that us
solely a pointing stick rather than a touch padh@shuman interface as well as the notebook mahettuses dual pointil
interfaces. Our ability to supply OEMs with TouckiBa TouchStyks, and dual pointing alternatives soba our mark
position as we can provide OEMs with the followadyantages:

< single source supplier to eliminate compatibilggues

«  cos-effective and simplified integratio

* simplified product line to address both interfaceferences

< end user flexibility because one notebook can addoeth user preferenct

< highly experienced engineering resources, partilyuia the mechanical, industrial design, and eleat areas as tl
general notebook market embraces thinner and ligletsigns; an

«  modular approach allowing OEMs to utilize our ToBek, our TouchStyk, or a combination of both irsteefs.

In the human interface markets for digital lifestylroducts and other electronic devices, we commétearily base
on the advantages of our systems knowledge of @dmacensing and pattern recognition technologlé® believe ot
solutionsbased engineering expertise coupled with our tdogmes offer benefits in terms of size, power camption
durability, light transmissivity, resolution, eagkuse, and reliability when compared to our contpet and other technologi
While these markets continue to evolve, we belieeeare positioned to compete aggressively for bhisiness based on 1
proven track record, our marquee global customeeband our reputation for design innovation. Ne@mpgetitors, alliance
among competitors, or alliances among competitois @EMs also may emerge and allow competitors podha acquire
significant market share. In addition, our succsg8sdepend on our ability to demonstrate to motsheartphone OEMs, t
advantages of our flexible touch screen fulfillmemidel that encompasses chip to en@+id-solutions, including a compl
touchscreen module that includes a capacitive semsmtroller ASIC, associated electronics, andnfiare and softwar
enabling OEMs quickly to integrate capacitive tosareens into new handset designs rather than doipgpcuring the syster
engineering and design work, purchasing the comusneeparately, and coordinating with a module rfeturer to perfor
the assembly and testing.

Furthermore, our competitors or our customers mewekbp technologies in the future that more effexdyi addres
the human interface needs of the notebook marketdigital lifestyle product markets. Our sales, fipability, and succe:
depend on our ability to compete with other supplief human interface solutions and components usdadiman interfac
solutions. Our competitive position could be adebraffected if one or more of our current OEMsuesl their orders or if v
are unable to develop new customers for our humtznface solutions.
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Employees

As of the end of fiscal 2010, we employed a totl586 persons, including 98 in finance, adminigbrat anc
operations; 120 in sales and marketing; and 36&search and development. Of these employees, 844 lacated in Nor
America, 233 in Asia/Pacific, and six in Europe. dmsider our relationship with our employees taybed, and none of ¢
employees are represented by a union in colleb@wgaining with us.

Competition for qualified personnel in our industisy extremely intense, particularly for engineeriagd othe
technical personnel. Our success depends on otinged ability to attract, hire, and retain quaipersonnel.

Executive Officers

The following table sets forth certain informatiggarding our executive officers as of July 31,201

Name Age Position

Thomas J. Tierna 47 President, Chief Executive Officer, and Direc

Kathleen A. Bayles 54 Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, @¢ary, and Treasur:
Russell J. Knitte 60 Executive Vice Presidel

David B. Long 49 Vice President of World Wide Sall

Joseph D. Montalb 54 Senior Vice President of Silicon Systems Divis

Alex Wong 55 Vice President of World Wide Operatio

Mark N. Vena 48 Vice President and General Manager, PC Divi:

Thomas J. Tiernahas been Chief Executive Officer of our companyaiduly 2009 and President and a direct
our company since July 2008. Mr. Tiernan serve€hief Operating Officer of our company from July080to July 2009, :
Executive Vice President and General Manager ofcoumpany from July 2007 until July 2008, and asi@eviice President «
our company from March 2006 until July 2007. Ptmjoining our company, Mr. Tiernan served as resident and Gene
Manager of Symbol Technologieslobile Computing Division. From 1985 to 2004, Miiefhan held various management
executive positions at Hewle®ackard, including running the Network Storage thess in the Americas, the Enterprise Sys
business in Asia Pacific, and the PC businesspanlaMr. Tiernan holds a BacheleDegree in Electrical Engineering fr
California State Polytechnic University and a Mastaf Science in Computer Engineering from Santaa&University.

Kathleen A. Bayledsas been Senior Vice President, Chief Financiak®ff Secretary, and Treasurer of our com|
since September 2009. Ms. Bayless served as thorSéite President inance of our company from March 200¢
September 2009. Ms. Bayless spent thirteen yeakorag, a leading supplier of thfitm disks to the disk drive indust
where she served most recently as Executive Viesidnt, Secretary, and Chief Financial Officerm&g filed a voluntai
petition for bankruptcy under Chapter 11 of the .UB&nkruptcy Code on August 24, 2001. Prior toijggnrKomag, Ms. Bayle:
held the position of Senior Audit Manager at thdlfguaccounting firm of Ernst & Young. Ms. Baylebslds a Bachelor
Science degree from California State Universityshteand is a certified public accountant.
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Russell J. Knittehas been Executive Vice President of our compamgesiuly 2007 and acting General Manag
our Handheld Division since July 2010. Mr. Kniteglrved as Chief Financial Officer, Chief Adminisitra Officer, Secretar
and Treasurer of our company from November 2001l bist retirement from those positions in Septeni@d9. Upon retirin
from management, Mr. Knittel will join our board directors. Mr. Knittel served as Senior Vice Pdesit of our company fro
November 2001 until July 2007. He served as Vicesient of Administration and Finance, Chief Finah©fficer, anc
Secretary of our company from April 2000 throught@ber 2001. Mr. Knittel holds a Bachelor of Artsgdee in accountir
from California State University at Fullerton andlasters of Business Administration from San Jds¢eSJniversity.

David B. Longhas been Vice President of World Wide Sales ofcmmpany since January 2008. Prior to joining
company, Mr. Long served as Vice President of Weideé Sales for Consumer Products at LS| Logic Cation where h
directed the management of sales and customer guppastandard and custom silicon solutions. F2003 to 2006, he serv
as the Vice President of Asia Pacific Sales of f&tusing on the Consumer and Storage product segiride was the Direct
of North American-West Sales for LS| Operationgrfr@002 to 2003. Mr. Long also managed IsSNorldwide account wi
Cisco Systems from 1998 until 2002, directing aterded team of sales, engineering, marketing, tipasa and custom
service representatives. Mr. Long holds a Bacheldegree in Business Administration/Marketing Mamagnt from Californi
Polytechnic University, San Luis Obispo.

Joseph D. Montalbdias been Senior Vice President of Silicon Systenvisibn since July 2010 and previou
Senior Vice President of Engineering of our compsinge January 2008. From April 2005 until Novemb@®7, Mr. Montalb
served as President, Chief Executive Officer, aodrdh member of Pixim, Inc., a fabless semiconductonpany marketir
image sensing products into the security markeimFdune 1978 until April 2005, Mr. Montalbo alsow&al in various seni
management positions at National Semiconductor Canpst recently as Vice President and General gemnaf the Custo
Solutions Group. Mr. Montalbo also served on thardmf directors of Validity Sensors, Inc. Mr. Maliio holds a Bachelor
Engineering degree in Electrical Engineering frone Tooper Union in New York.

Alex Wonghas been Vice President of World Wide Operationsuwfcompany since September 2006. From 20
2006, Mr. Wong served our company as Managing Bireaf Hong Kong and Director of Operations. Priorjoining ou
company, Mr. Wong held various management positwitis National Semiconductor Corporation, includi@gneral Manag
for National Joint Ventures in China and Hong Kamgd Director of Corporate Business Development. \Wiong holds
Bachelor of Science degree in Computer Science f@atifornia State University at Northridge and adtas in Busine:
Administration from the University of East Asia, .

Mark N. Venahas been Vice President and General Manager, P@i@ivsince July 2010 and previously Vv
President, PC Business of our company since APAI72 Prior to joining our company, Mr. Vena senadVice President
Worldwide Marketing of Alienware from October 20@5March 2007. From 1982 to 2005, Mr. Vena heldows business ai
product marketing leadership positions at Dell, @am Epson, and IBM. Mr. Vena holds a Bachelor asAlegree in Histor
cum laude, from Boston College.

There are no arrangements, understandings, oryfamlhtionships pursuant to which our executiveceffs wer
selected. There are no related party transactiensden us and our executive officers. We have edtato indemnificatio
agreements with our officers and directors.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the following factotsgether with all the other information includiedthis report, i
evaluating our company and our business.

We currently depend on our TouchPad products, andtte notebook computer market, for a significant porion of our
revenue, and a downturn in these products or this mrket could have a disproportionate impact on our evenue.

Historically, we have derived a very substantiattipo of our revenue from the sale of our Touchpaaducts fo
notebook computers. Those products accounted foroajmately 57% of our net revenue in fiscal 200@ 9% of our n
revenue in fiscal 2010. While our lotigrm objective is to derive revenue from humanrfate solutions in the markets
digital lifestyle products and other electronic @eg, we anticipate that sales of our TouchPadsidtebooks will continue
represent a significant portion of our revenue2®@9, the PC market as a whole experienced a slowdwothe rate of growt
subsequently, the notebook portion of the PC makstexpanded, although at a slower rate, witHaWwer priced notebool
including netbooks having been responsible for gom@ortion of recent growth. A softening of demandhe notebook portic
of the PC market, a reduced level of our partiégrain the notebook portion of the PC market, atavdown of growth in tt
netbook portion of the notebook market becauseoosamer preferences, the emergence of tablet ta divices, or oth
factors would cause our business, financial comdjtand results of operations to suffer more ttay twould if we offered
more diversified line of products.

Net revenue from our human interface solutions fordigital lifestyle products has been volatile in thepast, and our ne
revenue from our human interface solutions for digial lifestyle products may not increase or be lesslatile in the future.

Net revenue from our human interface solutionsdigital lifestyle products, particularly mobile srnhones an
feature phones and portable digital music playeas, been volatile in the past. Net revenue fromhammnan interface solutio
for mobile smartphones and feature phones onlyrheaaaterial in our fourth quarter of fiscal 200&ir@et revenue from o
human interface solutions for digital lifestyle grmts may not increase or be less volatile in theré. Net revenue from ¢
human interface solutions for digital lifestyle druwts was $203.7 million (which included $166.3limil for mobile
smartphones and feature phones and $37.4 milliopddable digital music players), or 43% of out revenue, in fiscal 20(
and $209.1 million (which included $177.4 millioarfmobile smartphones and feature phones and $3illiGn for portable
digital music players), or 41% of our net revenefjscal 2010. Our interface business for digiifestyle products faces ma
uncertainties, including our success in penetratieg markets dominated by a limited number of OE¥Md market acceptar
of our product solutions over competitive produmtiions. Our inability to address these uncertamsuccessfully and to b
leading supplier of human interfaces for digitééstyle products would negatively affect our growttte. We do not knc
whether our human interface solutions for the didifestyle product market will capture a larganrton of the overall mark
or will account for a substantial portion of ourveaue on a consistent basis. The failure to sucicettetse markets would res
in a negative return on the substantial investmemshave made to date and plan to make in thedumrpenetrate the
markets.

We cannot assure you that our human interface busaess for digital lifestyle products will continue tobe successful ¢
that we will be able to continue to generate sigridant revenue from the markets for digital lifestyle products.

Various target markets for our interfaces, suchihase for mobile smartphones and feature phone§ @&Rice:
smart handheld devices, and interactive games aysl tmay develop slower than anticipated or coultizer competin
technologies. The market for certain of these pctxlulepends in part upon the continued developrardtdeployment
wireless and other technologies, which may or n@tyaddress the needs of users of these products.

Our ability to generate significant revenue frone tmarkets for certain digital lifestyle productslivdepend o
various factors, including the following:

e the continued development and growth of these nis

» the ability of our technologies and product solntido address the needs of these markets, thegritperformant
requirements of OEMs, and the preferences of eadspanc

e our ability to provide OEMs with human interfacellidions that provide advantages in terms of sizewe
consumption, reliability, durability, performan@d valu-added features compared with alternative soluti
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Many manufacturers of these products have estigblished relationships with competitive suppli€dur ongoin
success in these markets will require us to offgteln performance alternatives to other solutionsoanpetitive costs. Tl
failure of any of these target markets to develspva expect, or our failure to serve these martketssignificant extent, w
impede our sales growth and could result in sulisthnreduced earnings. We cannot predict the sizgrowth rate of the:
markets or the market share we will achieve ingtraarkets in the future.

A majority of our historical financial performance is based on net revenue generated from our humanterface solution:
to the notebook computer market and may not be inaiative of our future performance in other markets,including the
market for mobile smartphones and feature phones.

A majority of our historical financial performanceflects net revenue generated from our humanfatersolution
for notebook computers. While we expect sales ofhauman interface solutions for notebook computersontinue to genere
a substantial percentage of our revenue, we expederive a significant portion of our revenue fraales of our produ
solutions for digital lifestyle products, includingobile smartphones and feature phones, portabigadimusic players, ai
other electronic devices. We have a limited opegahistory in these markets, especially for mobkiieartphones and feat:
phones, upon which you can evaluate our prospetich may make it difficult to predict our actu@sults in future perioc
Actual results of our future operations may diffeaterially from our anticipated results.

We anticipate that our human interface solutiomsifobile smartphones and feature phones will comtilo constitut
a significant portion of our net revenue. Net raweror our human interface solutions for mobile gptzones and featL
phones was not material until the fourth quartefisfal 2008, but accounted for approximately adttif our net revenue
fiscal 2009 and 2010. Our ongoing success in sgrthe mobile smartphone and feature phone marketdepend upon tt
continued growth of that portion of the overall nielphone market; the utilization of highnctionality interactive touchscree
rather than mechanical buttons and keypads as uh®ai interface for application and content accesb @ontrol in thos
products; our ability to demonstrate to mobile ph@EMSs, including those with which we have had riorprelationship, th
advantages of our human interface solutions in gesfrperformance, size, durability, power consuprptand industrial desir
possibilities at attractive prices such that thepm our solutions; and the success of OEMs praduttizing our huma
interface solutions. In addition, our success wipend on our ability to demonstrate to mobile $phame OEMSs, tt
advantages of our flexible touchscreen fulfillmemdel through offering a full range of touchscrsetutions.

Market acceptance of our customersexisting or new products that utilize our human inerface solution may decline ¢
may not develop and, as a result, our sales may diée or may not increase.

We do not sell any products to end users. Instesd design various human interface solutions that ©&EM
customers incorporate into their products. As ailteour success depends almost entirely upon tlteespread mark
acceptance of our OEM customepsdducts. We do not control or influence the maotufiee, promotion, distribution, or prici
of the products that incorporate our human interfaolutions. Instead, we depend on our customemnaoufacture ar
distribute products incorporating our human integfesolutions and to generate consumer demand throarketing an
promotional activities. Even if our technologiexsessfully meet our customerwice and performance goals, our sales w
decline or fail to develop if our customers do mchieve commercial success in selling their progiticht incorporate o
human interface solutions.

Competitive advances by OEMs in the PC or digiifdstyle product markets, which do not utilize dwmar
interface solutions broadly in their product offeys, at the expense of our OEM customers couldltrésulost sale
opportunities. Within the digital lifestyle produetarket, the mobile smartphone market has becommjportant factor in ot
operating results. Any failure to expand our preseim this market, a significant slowdown in the s our human interfa
solutions by our customers in this market, the cedudemand for our customegoducts, or a slowdown of growth in t
market would adversely affect our sales.

17




Table of Contents

If we fail to maintain and build relationships with our customers and do not continue to satisfy ourustomers, we ma
lose future sales and our revenue may stagnate oedine.

Because our success depends on the widespread tnaadeptance of our OEM customegg'oducts, we mu
continue to maintain our relationships with thedieg notebook computer and portable digital musaygr OEMs and expa
our relationships with mobile smartphone OEMs. didiion, we must identify areas of significant gtbwpotential in othe
markets, establish relationships with OEMs in thosa&rkets, and assist those OEMs in developing mtsdthat use o
interface technologies. Our failure to identify @uatial growth opportunities, particularly in the bile smartphone and feat
phone market, or establish and maintain relatigsshiith OEMs in those markets, would prevent owgifeess from growing
those markets.

Our ability to meet the expectations of our custequires us to provide innovative human intexfaclutions fc
customers on a timely and caffective basis and to maintain customer satisfactiith our human interface solutions.
must match our design and production capacity witetomer demand, maintain satisfactory deliveryedales, and me
performance goals. If we are unable to achieveetigesls for any reason, our customers could reth&e purchases from
and our sales would decline or fail to develop.

Our customer relationships also can be affectedfduyors affecting our customers that are unrelatdul
performance. These factors can include a myriaditaftions, including business reversals of custemaeterminations |
customers to change their product mix or aband@inbss segments, or mergers, consolidations, aistigns involving ou
customers.

The loss of revenue from one or more large customercould harm our business, financial condition, andesults of
operations.

Sales to two customers that provide contract mawuifimg services to major OEMs accounted for anreggfe c
25% of our net revenue for fiscal 2009, and twotamers accounted for 21% of our net revenue farafi®010. Thes
customers were TPK Touch Solutions and Inventefistal 2009 and Zhan Yun Shanghai Electronics anchgal in fisce
2010. Additionally, receivables from each of ZhamnYShanghai Electronics and Compal exceeded 1086aufunts receivak
and in the aggregate represented 30% of accowdw/able at the end of fiscal 2010.

Compal, Futaihua, Inventec, Kuroda, Protek, WistrbRK and Zhan Yun Shanghai Electronics are soméhe
contract manufacturers that serve our OEM custanderg material delay, cancellation, or reductionoodlers from any one
more of these contract manufacturers or the OEMy 8erve could harm our business, financial comlitand results
operations. The adverse effect would be more sotiataf our other customers do not increase thetters or if we al
unsuccessful in generating orders for human interfolutions from new customers. Many of theserashtnanufacturers s
to the same OEMSs, and therefore our concentratith eertain OEMs may be higher than with any indial contrac
manufacturer. Concentration in our customer basg make fluctuations in revenue and earnings mokerseand malk
business planning more difficult.

We rely on others for our production and any interruptions of these arrangements could disrupt our allity to fill our
customers’ orders.

We utilize contract manufacturers for all of oumguction requirements. The majority of our manufaoy is
conducted in China, Taiwan, and Thailand by contmaanufacturers that also perform services for moomee other companie
We do not have a guaranteed level of productioracap with any of our contract manufacturers. Qiyalg new contrac
manufacturers, and specifically semiconductor foiasd is time consuming and might result in unfesss manufacturing a
operations problems. The loss of our relationskifth our contract manufacturers or assemblers eir ihability to conduc
their manufacturing and assembly services for uEngisipated in terms of capacity, cost, qualityd &imeliness could advers
affect our ability to fill customer orders in acdance with required delivery, quality, and perfono@requirements. If this we
to occur, the resulting decline in revenue wouldrhaur business.
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We depend on third parties to maintain satisfactorymanufacturing yields and delivery schedules, andheir inability to
do so could increase our costs, disrupt our supplghain, and result in our inability to deliver our products, which would
adversely affect our results of operations.

We depend on our contract manufacturers to maitigim levels of productivity and satisfactory deliy schedules
manufacturing and assembly facilities located prilpan China, Taiwan, and Thailand. We provide @antract manufacture
with six-month rolling forecasts of our productioequirements. We do not, however, have lterga agreements with any
our contract manufacturers that guarantee productiapacity, prices, lead times, or delivery scheslulOur contra
manufacturers serve other customers, a number afhwiave greater production requirements than weAdoa result, ot
contract manufacturers could determine to prigrifizoduction capacity for other customers or rediogliminate deliveries
us on short notice. At times, we have experienoaeet than anticipated manufacturing yields and tleeging of deliver
schedules. Lower than expected manufacturing yieddsgd increase our costs or disrupt our suppliiés.may encounter low
manufacturing yields and longer delivery schedidesommencing volume production of new products tha introduce. An
of these problems could result in our inabilitydeliver our product solutions in a timely manned auversely affect o
operating results.

Shortages of components and materials may delay oeduce our sales and increase our costs, thereby ang our
results of operations.

The inability to obtain sufficient quantities of mponents and other materials necessary for theuptioth of ou
products could result in reduced or delayed saftelsi orders. Any delay in or loss of sales coattiersely impact o
operating results. Many of the materials used & ghoduction of our products are available onlynfra limited number «
foreign suppliers, particularly suppliers locataddisia. In most cases, neither we nor our contraantufacturers have lortgsrr
supply contracts with these suppliers. As a resvdt,are subject to economic instability in theséaAsountries as well as
increased costs, supply interruptions, and diffiealin obtaining materials. Our customers also magounter difficulties
increased costs in obtaining the materials necgssgroduce their products into which our prodsmiutions are incorporated.

From time to time, materials and components useduinproduct solutions or in other aspects of aust@mers’
products have been subject to allocation becausbartages of these materials and components.d~ghartages of materi
and components, including potential supply constsadf silicon, could cause delayed shipments,otnst dissatisfaction, a
lower revenue.

We are subject to lengthy development periods andrpduct acceptance cycles, which can result in dewgment anc
engineering costs without any future revenue.

We provide human interface solutions that are ipoated by OEMs into the products they sell. OEMskenth:
determination during their product development paogs whether to incorporate our human interfacet®wls or pursue oth
alternatives. This process requires us to makeifgignt investments of time and resources in thsigie of human interfa
solutions well before our customers introduce tpedducts incorporating these interfaces and bef@rean be sure that we v
generate any significant sales to our customeeen recover our investment. During a customeritire product developmi
process, we face the risk that our interfaces faillto meet our customes’technical, performance, or cost requirementsa
our products will be replaced by competitive praduar alternative technological solutions. Evenvé complete our desi
process in a manner satisfactory to our custorher,ctistomer may delay or terminate its product kbgveent efforts. Th
occurrence of any of these events could cause &alest materialize, to be deferred, or to be ciedewhich would adverse
affect our operating results.

We do not have longterm purchase commitments from our customers, andheir ability to cancel, reduce, or delay order
could reduce our revenue and increase our costs.

Our customers do not provide us with firm, lo®gm volume purchase commitments, but instead igswehas
orders. As a result, customers can cancel purcbasss or reduce or delay orders at any time. Tdred@lation, delay,
reduction of customer purchase orders could résuttduced revenue, excess inventory, and unabdanerhead. We have
established presence in the notebook computer marié have only recently established a presendbendigital lifestyls
products markets. Our success in the digital §lesproduct markets, including those for mobile spfaones and feat.
phones and portable digital music players, requiseto establish the value added by our product©EMs that hav
traditionally used other solutions. All of the meark we serve are subject to severe competitivespres, rapid technologit
change, and product obsolescence, which increasevantory and overhead risks, resulting in insezhcosts.
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We face intense competition that could result in auosing or failing to gain market share and suffemg reduced revenue

We serve intensely competitive markets that areratierized by price erosion, rapid technologicahngde, an
competition from major domestic and internationainpanies. This intense competition could resufirining pressures, low
sales, reduced margins, and lower market sharereBsgd economic conditions, a slowdown in the P&etathe emergen
of netbooks, the emergence of new products suthbdst or slate devices, rapid changes in the ginanie and feature phc
market, and competitive pressures may result irefosdemand for our product solutions, pricing pressuand reduced u
margins.

Any movement away from high-quality, custom des@jnfeaturerich human interface solutions to lower pri
alternatives would adversely affect our businessné& of our competitors, particularly in the markéts digital lifestyle
products and other electronic devices, have greaseket recognition, larger customer bases, andtanbally greater financi:
technical, marketing, distribution, and other reses than we possess and that afford them conveetitivantages. As a res
they may be able to devote greater resources tprtiraotion and sale of products, to negotiate loprézes for raw materie
and components, to deliver competitive productswaér prices, and to introduce new product soligiand respond to custor
requirements more quickly than we can. Our competpposition could suffer if one or more of our mmers determine not
utilize our custom engineered, total solutions apph and instead decide to design and manufadtere dwn interfaces,
contract with our competitors, or to use alterratiechnologies.

Our ability to compete successfully depends onrabar of factors, both within and outside our cohtftvese factol
include the following:

e our success in designing and introducing new hunmaerface solutions, including those implementingw
technologies

e our ability to predict the evolving needs of oustamers and to assist them in incorporating ounrtelogies int
their new products

e our ability to meet our customengquirements for low power consumption, ease of ted&bility, durability, an
small form factor

e our ability to meet our custom’ price and performance requiremet

e the quality of our customer service and supf

e the rate at which customers incorporate our humtanface solutions into their own produc
e product or technology introductions by our compesit anc

«  foreign currency fluctuations, which may caus®reign competitors products to be priced significantly lower t
our product solutions

If we do not keep pace with technological innovatiws, our products may not be competitive and our resnue anc
operating results may suffer.

We operate in rapidly changing markets. Technoklgiclvances, the introduction of new products, ew desig
techniques could adversely affect our businesssaniee are able to adapt to the changing conditibashnological advanc
could render our solutions less competitive or tdisp and we may not be able to respond effectitelyhe technologic
requirements of evolving markets. As a result, wit e required to expend substantial funds for aodhmit significar
resources to:

e continue research and development activities ostiegi and potential human interface solutic
< hire additional engineering and other technicaspenel, anc
*  purchase advanced design tools and test equip

Our business could be harmed if we are unable ¥eldp and utilize new technologies that addresstesls of ot
customers, or our competitors or customers do e miffectively than we do.
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Our efforts to develop new technologies may not re#t in commercial success, which could cause a dea in our revenue
and could harm our business.

Our research and development efforts with respecheéw technologies may not result in customer orkei
acceptance. Some or all of those technologies magutcessfully make the transition from the redeand development lab
costeffective production as a result of technology jpeois, competitive cost issues, yield problems, atteér factors. Eve
when we successfully complete a research and dawelot effort with respect to a particular technglogur customers m:
decide not to introduce or may terminate produtitizimg the technology for a variety of reasons;luding the following:

- difficulties with other suppliers of components the products

e superior technologies developed by our competitoamgd unfavorable comparisons of our solutions whhbsi
technologies

e price considerations, at
« lack of anticipated or actual market demand forgreducts

The nature of our business requires us to makemong investments for new technologies. Significarpense
relating to one or more new technologies that wtity prove to be unsuccessful for any reason cbale a material advel
effect on us. In addition, any investments or asitjons made to enhance our technologies may pimbe unsuccessful. If c
efforts are unsuccessful, our business could badwr

We may not be able to enhance our existing produsblutions and develop new product solutions in artiely manner.
Our future operating results will depend to a digant extent on our ability to continue to providew huma
interface solutions that compare favorably witledative solutions on the basis of time to intrdiug cost, performance, a
end user preferences. Our success in maintainiisgjrexand attracting new customers and developew business depends
various factors, including the following:
« innovative development of new solutions for custopreducts
e utilization of advances in technolog
e maintenance of quality standar
- performance advantage
»  efficient and co«-effective solutions, an
» timely completion of the design and introductiomefv human interface solutior
Our OneTouch product offering enables our custonersccess our technologies to develop their owmar
interface designs for capacitive buttons and saglapplications for products such as mobile sniemtygs and feature phor
portable digital music and video players, and notébperipherals. OneTouch may not enable us toeaehour goal ¢
increasing our business with existing customeattoacting new customers. In addition, OneTouchHd:oeduce demand for ¢

custom-designed human interface solutions.

Our inability to enhance our existing product siolos and develop new product solutions on a tinfeelgis coul
harm our operating results and impede our growth.
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A technologically new human interface solution thatichieves significant market share could harm our bsiness.

Our human interface solutions are designed to iategouch, handwriting, and vision capabilitiegwNcomputin
and communications devices could be developed datitfor a different interface solution. Existinggwdces also could |
modified to allow for a different interface solutioOur business could be harmed if our product®ecnoncompetitive as
result of a technological breakthrough that allcaveew interface solution to displace our solutiansl achieve significa
market acceptance.

International sales and manufacturing risks could aversely affect our operating results.

Our manufacturing and assembly operations are pitimaonducted in China, Taiwan, and Thailand
manufacturing contractors. We have sales and logistperations in Hong Kong, and sales and engimgeatesign suppc
operations in China, Japan, Korea, Switzerland, Baigvan. These international operations exposeougatious economi
political, and other risks that could adverselyeeffour operations and operating results, incluttiegfollowing:

- difficulties and costs of staffing and managing @tr-national organizatior
e unexpected changes in regulatory requirems

« differing labor regulations

e potentially adverse tax consequen

» tariffs and duties and other trade barrier restrt,

e possible employee turnover or labor unr

« greater difficulty in collecting accounts receiva}

« the burdens and costs of compliance with a vadéfgreign laws

e potentially reduced protection for intellectual peoty rights, anc

e political or economic instability in certain padsthe world.

The risks associated with international operatiomdd negatively affect our operating results.
Our business may suffer if international trade is lindered, disrupted, or economically disadvantaged.

Political and economic conditions abroad may addMgraffect the foreign production and sale of owoducts
Protectionist trade legislation in either the Uditgtates or foreign countries, such as a chandkeeirturrent tariff structure
export or import compliance laws, or other tradégies, could adversely affect our ability to skllman interface solutions
foreign markets and to obtain materials or equipnfrem foreign suppliers.

Changes in policies by the U.S. or foreign govemismeesulting in, among other things, higher taaticurrenc
conversion limitations, restrictions on the tramgféfunds, or the expropriation of private enté&sps also could have a mate
adverse effect on us. Any actions by countries hictv we conduct business to reverse policies timaberage foreig
investment or foreign trade also could adversefgcafour operating results. In addition, U.S. trgmidicies, such asnios

favored nation’status and trade preferences for certain Asiammgticould affect the attractiveness of our sesvtoeour U.<
customers and adversely impact our operating esult
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Our operating results could be adversely affected yb fluctuations in the value of the U.S. dollar agaist foreign
currencies.

We transact business predominantly in U.S. dolaud bill and collect our sales in U.S. dollars. Aakening of th
dollar could cause our overseas vendors to reqainegotiation of either the prices or currency ves for their goods ar
services. In the future, customers may negotiaieingr and make payments in nthS. currencies. For fiscal 20
approximately 6% of our costs were denominatecimd.S. currencies, including Canadian dollars, Homogé< dollars, Britis
pounds, Taiwan dollars, Japanese yen, Korean whing€e yuan, and Swiss francs.

If our overseas vendors or customers require usattsact business in ndhS. currencies, fluctuations in fore
currency exchange rates could affect our cost ofigpoperating expenses, and operating marginsauld result in exchan
losses. In addition, currency devaluation can tesid loss to us if we hold deposits of that cneye Hedging foreign currenci
can be difficult, especially if the currency is ricgely traded. We cannot predict the impact ofifatexchange rate fluctuatic
on our operating results. We currently do not healgeforeign currencies.

A majority of our contract manufacturers are located in China, Taiwan, and Thailand, and most of our astomers are
located in Asia, increasing the risk that a naturaldisaster, labor strike, war, or political unrest n those countries or tha
region would disrupt our operations.

A majority of our contract manufacturers are lodaite China, Taiwan, and Thailand, and most of aistemers ai
located in Asia. Events outside of our control,tsas earthquakes, fires, floods, or other natusssters, or political unre
war, labor strikes, or work stoppages in these tas would disrupt their operations, which woidgpact our business. T
risk of earthquakes in Taiwan is significant beeaabits proximity to major earthquake fault linés earthquake could cat
significant delays in shipments of our product sohs until we are able to shift our outsourcedrapiens. Further, a variety
political factors, such as political unrest in Tlaad or political tension between North Korea andt8 Korea, could disrupt c
operations and our ability to meet our customersduction schedules. If any of these events oowmarmay not be able
obtain alternative capacity. Failure to securera#téve capacity could cause a delay in the shigroéour product solution
which would cause our revenue to fluctuate or decli

Variability of customer requirements resulting in cancellations, reductions, or delays may adverselyffact our operating
results.

We must provide increasingly rapid product turnawbuand respond to evshorter lead times. A variety
conditions, both specific to individual customersl ayenerally affecting the demand for OENssbducts, may cause custorn
to cancel, reduce, or delay orders. Cancellatiggdhjctions, or delays by a significant customeloyoa group of customers
adversely affect our revenue and could require cusepurchase inventory from our contract manufactyrwhich coul
adversely affect our costs. On occasion, custormegrsire rapid increases in production, which caaistour resources a
reduce our margins. Although we have been abldtaimincreased production capacity from our thiedty manufacturers, \
may be unable to do so at any given time to meetastomers’ demands if their demands exceed patieil levels.

Our operating results may experience significant fictuations that could result in a decline in the pice of our stock.

In addition to the variability resulting from thénart-term nature of our customersbmmitments, other factc
contribute to significant periodic and seasonalrtpuly fluctuations in our results of operationshebe factors include t
following:

« the cyclicality of the markets we sen
e the timing and size of order
e order pus-outs or cancellation:

e the volume of orders relative to our ability toidetr;
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«  product introductions and market acceptance of p@gucts or new generations of produ
e evolution in the life cycles of our custom’ products;

e timing of expenses in anticipation of future ords

e changes in product mi:

« availability of manufacturing and assembly servi

« availability of necessary components and matet

e changes in cost and availability of labor and conguis;

« the expanded use of hi-cost, thirc-party components in the products we ¢

«  timely delivery of product solutions to custome

e  pricing, performance, and availability of compe#tiproducts

e introduction of new technologies into the marketssgrve

e emergence of new competito

e pressures on selling price

« the absolute and relative levels of corporate enitgr and consumer notebook purcha
e Our success in serving new markets;

e changes in economic conditiot

Accordingly, you should not rely on period{@riod comparisons as an indicator of our futunégomance. Negati\
or unanticipated fluctuations in our operating tessoay result in a decline in the price of ourckto

If we fail to manage our growth effectively, our irfrastructure, management, and resources could berstined, our ability
to effectively manage our business could be dimirtied, and our operating results could suffer.

The failure to manage our growth effectively costdain our resources, which would impede our abitt increas
revenue. We have increased the number of our humerfiace solutions and plan to expand furthemtheber and diversity
our solutions and their use in the future. Ourigbib manage our planned diversification and gtoeffectively will require u
to:

«  successfully hire, train, retain, and motivate dddal employees, including employees outside thiadd States
- efficiently plan and expand our facilities to mewtreased headcount requireme

* enhance our global operational, financial, and rgameent infrastructure; ar

e expand our development and production capa

In connection with the expansion and diversificatiof our product and customer base, we are ingrgasui
personnel and making other expenditures to meetaddnfor our expanding product offerings, includiofferings in thi
notebook computer and digital lifestyle marketzréases in the demand for our products will reqgfuirther expansion of o
traditional notebook computer business as wellnaisiereasing presence in the digital lifestyle pradnarket, including mobi
smartphones and feature phones and portable digitsic and video players. To date, our sales ofamimterface solutions f
portable digital music and video players and mobiteartphones and feature phones have varied signify from quarter f
quarter. Risks are further increased because cestodo not commit to firm production schedulesrfmre than a short time
advance. Any increase in expenses or investmenisfrastructure and facilities in anticipation aftdire orders that do r
materialize would adversely affect our profitalyiliOur customers also may require rapid increasegesign and producti
services that place an excessive short-term buodeour resources and the resources of our hartly manufacturers. If v
cannot manage our growth effectively, our busirsglresults of operations could suffer.
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We depend on key personnel who would be difficultat replace, and our business will likely be harmedf iwe lose thei
services or cannot hire additional qualified personel.

Our success depends substantially on the effodsahitities of our senior management and otherpgagonnel. Tr
competition for qualified management and key pemsgrespecially engineers, is intense. Althoughveéntain noncompetitic
and nondisclosure covenants with most of our keggrmel and two of our key personnel have a chafgentrol severan:
agreement, we do not have employment agreemertisawit of them. The loss of services of one or nodreur key employet
or the inability to hire, train, and retain key p@nnel, especially engineers and technical sugggonnel, and capable s:
and customesupport employees outside the United States, cteldy the development and sale of our productsupliou
business, and interfere with our ability to exeaute business plan.

Our inability to protect our intellectual property could impair our competitive advantage, reduce ourrevenue, ant
increase our costs.

Our success and ability to compete depend in paouo ability to maintain the proprietary aspedtsar technologie
and products. We rely on a combination of paterapyrights, trade secrets, trademarks, confidétytiabreements, and ott
contractual provisions to protect our intellectpabperty, but these measures may provide only dichfirotection. We licen
from third parties certain technology used in aoddur products. These thighrty licenses are granted with restrictions,
there can be no assurances that such garts technology will remain available to us omisrbeneficial to us. Our failure
enforce and protect our intellectual property rigbt obtain from third parties the right to useessary technology could hav
material adverse effect on our business, finanmadition, and results of operations. In additithe laws of some forei
countries do not protect proprietary rights asyfals do the laws of the United States.

Patents may not issue from the patent applicatioaiswe have filed or may file in the future. Ossued patents m
be challenged, invalidated, or circumvented, aaihtd of our patents may not be of sufficient scopstrength, or issued in 1
proper geographic regions, to provide meaningfotgution or any commercial advantage. In additmertain of our paten
will expire within several years.

We have not applied for, and do not have, any dghyregistration on our technologies or produdte have applie
to register certain of our trademarks in the Unigtdtes and other countries. There can be no assuthat we will obtal
registrations of principle or other trademarks &y knarkets. Failure to obtain registrations couwdhpromise our ability
protect fully our trademarks and brands and comildase the risk of challenge from third partiesuo use of our trademal
and brands.

We do not consistently rely on written agreemerith wur customers, suppliers, manufacturers, ahdratecipient
of our technologies and products, and thereforeestrade secret protection may be lost and ourtabiti enforce ot
intellectual property rights may be limited. Addiially, our customers, suppliers, manufacturers, @her recipients of o
technologies and products may seek to use our admyies and products without appropriate limitasiolm the past, we did r
consistently require our employees and consultantsnter into confidentiality, employment, or prighary information an
invention assignment agreements. Therefore, oandoemployees and consultants may try to claim sowreership interest
our technologies and products and may use our téafpies and products competitively and without appiate limitations.
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We may be required to incur substantial expenses andivert management attention and resources in defeling
intellectual property litigation against us.

We may receive notices from third parties thatralaiur products infringe their rights. From timetitne, we receiv
notice from third parties of the intellectual prayerights such parties have obtained. We cannates&in that our technolog
and products do not and will not infringe issuetkpts or other proprietary rights of others. Antufe claims, with or witho!
merit, could result in significant litigation cosasd diversion of resources, including the attenttb management, and co
require us to enter into royalty and licensing agrents, any of which could have a material adveffext on our busines
There can be no assurance that such licenses bewttained on commercially reasonable terms, dilaor that the terms
any offered licenses would be acceptable to Usréed to cease using such technology, there caolassurance that we wo
be able to develop or obtain alternate technologgcordingly, an adverse determination in a judiodel administrativ
proceeding or failure to obtain necessary licemeesd prevent us from manufacturing, using, orisgltertain of our produc
which could have a material adverse effect on agiress, financial condition, and results of openast

Furthermore, parties making such claims could seajyudgment awarding substantial damages, asasefjunctivi
or other equitable relief that could effectivelyptk our ability to make, use, or sell our produntshe United States or abro
Such a judgment could have a material adversetaffeour business, financial condition, and resoltsperations. In additio
we are obligated under certain agreements to indenime other party in connection with infringemet us of the proprieta
rights of third parties. In the event we are regdito indemnify parties under these agreementsuid have a material adve
effect on our business, financial condition, argltes of operations.

We may incur substantial expenses and divert managent resources in prosecuting others for their unatinorized use o
our intellectual property rights.

The markets in which we compete are characterizeftdguent litigation regarding patents and othéellectua
property rights. Other companies, including our petitors, may develop technologies that are simdlaisuperior to ot
technologies, duplicate our technologies, or deaigund our patents and may have or obtain paterdther proprietary righ
that would prevent, limit, or interfere with ourilily to make, use, or sell our products. Effectiaéellectual property protecti
may be unavailable or limited in some foreign coiestin which we operate, such as China and Taiwaauthorized partis
may attempt to copy or otherwise use aspects otemimologies and products that we regard as f@i@py. There can be
assurance that our means of protecting our prapyietghts in the United States or abroad will beguate or that competiti
will not independently develop similar technologidé our intellectual property protection is insigfént to protect ot
intellectual property rights, we could face incieisompetition in the market for our technologied products.

Should any of our competitors file patent applicasi or obtain patents that claim inventions alsenoéd by us, w
may choose to participate in an interference prdiogeto determine the right to a patent for thaseemtions because ¢
business would be harmed if we fail to enforce pralect our intellectual property rights. Evenhétoutcome is favorable, t
proceeding could result in substantial cost tongsd@isrupt our business.

In the future, we also may need to file lawsuiteidorce our intellectual property rights, to paiteur trade secre
or to determine the validity and scope of the piegpry rights of others. This litigation, whetharcsessful or unsuccess
could result in substantial costs and diversioregburces, which could have a material adverseteffe our business, financ
condition, and results of operations.

If we become subject to product returns and productiability claims resulting from defects in our products, we may fai
to achieve market acceptance of our products and obusiness could be harmed.

We develop complex products in an evolving marletel and generally warrant our products for a pent
12 months from the date of sale. Despite testingibynd our customers, defects may be found irtiegisr new product
Manufacturing errors or product defects could resul delay in recognition or loss of revenueslo$ market share, or failt
to achieve market acceptance. Additionally, defeotdd result in financial or other damages to @ustomers; cause us to in
significant warranty, support, and repair costsd ativert the attention of our engineering personfiem key produc
development efforts. In such circumstances, outotoers could also seek and obtain damages fronomughéir losses.
product liability claim brought against us, evenuiisuccessful, would likely be timemnsuming and costly to defend. -
occurrence of such problems would likely harm ausibess.

Potential strategic alliances may not achieve thewbjectives, and the failure to do so could impedaur growth.

We anticipate that we will enter into strategiciaalbes. Among other matters, we continually explstmtegi
alliances designed to enhance or complement odmédogy or to work in conjunction with our techngio to provids
necessary knowow, components, or supplies; and to develop, duce, and distribute products utilizing our tecluggl Any
strategic alliances may not achieve their intendégectives, and parties to our strategic allianoesy not perform ¢
contemplated. The failure of these alliances mayeide our ability to introduce new products and remésv markets.
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Any acquisitions that we undertake could be difficlt to integrate, disrupt our business, dilute stockolder value, anc
harm our operating results.

We expect to pursue opportunities to acquire obusinesses and technologies in order to complemanturren
human interface solutions, expand the breadth ofnoarkets, enhance our technical capabilities, therwise offer growt
opportunities. While we have no current definitagreements underway, we may acquire businesseahjqtso or technologi
in the future. If we make any future acquisitiomg could issue stock that would dilute existingcktmlders’ percentag
ownership, incur substantial debt, assume continfahilities, or experience higher operating exgeEn Our experience
acquiring other businesses and technologies istd@miPotential acquisitions also involve numeroisks; including th
following:

e the potential disruption of our core busines:

< the potential strain on our financial and managdenatrols and reporting systems and procedt
e potential unknown liabilities associated with thogjaired busines:

e unanticipated costs associated with the acquisi

« diversion of manageme’s attention from our core business

e problems assimilating the purchased operationbnt@ogies, or product:

e risks associated with entering markets and buséseisswhich we have little or no prior experien
» failure of acquired businesses to achieve expeemudlts;

« adverse effects on existing business relationshithssuppliers and custome!

« failure to retain key customers, suppliers, or pengl of acquired business

e the risk of impairment charges related to potentide-downs of acquired assets; ¢

e creating uniform standards, controls, procedurekicips, and information systen

We cannot assure you that we would be successfolv@icoming problems encountered in connection \aitk
acquisitions, and our inability to do so could dfgrour operations and adversely affect our busines

The valuation of our technology conducted in conneion with our international operating structure may be challengec
which could result in additional taxes, interest, ad penalties.

In fiscal 2005, we implemented an international rafirg structure. Under this structure, generatlge of ou
affiliates licensed from us certain rights to thee-pxisting and irprocess technology associated with our product
exploitation in all geographic markets except th8.UJapanese, and Korean markets, which we @ts tROW markets.Out
affiliate also acquired ownership of all future Bomic rights to product sales in ROW markets byeng into an agreement
license certain intangibles and a cel&ring agreement under which we and our affikgiteshare research and developn
costs in accordance with certain tax rules andlatigns. We believe this structure appropriateljerts where our profits a
generated and may result in future tax advantagas,tbut there can be no assurances that thibevtthe case.
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Repatriation of our foreign earnings to the UnitedStates or changes in tax laws may adversely affeatir future reported
tax rates and financial results or the way we condit our business.

Changes in tax laws may adversely affect our futapsrted tax rates and financial results or thg wa conduct ot
business. We consider the undistributed operatargirgs of certain foreign subsidiaries of appraadiety $220 million as «
the end of fiscal 2010, to be indefinitely investmatside the United States and have not providedJf8. federal and st¢
income taxes that may result from future remittanotthose undistributed operating earnings. Praljso® reform U.S. te
laws, including proposals that could reduce or ilate the deferral of U.S. income tax on our fonesgbsidiariesundistribute:
earnings, could require those earnings to be takéie U.S. federal income tax rate.

Currently our investments in auction rate securities, or ARS, are not liquid, and we may lose some ail of our principal
invested or may be required to further reduce the arrying value if the issuers are not able to meetheir payment
obligations or if we sell our ARS investments befa they recover.

We ended fiscal 2010 with $40.7 million investedARS for which the auctions have failed and ourestments al
not liquid. The carrying value of these investmemtas $28.0 million, reflecting $16.3 million of ehthantemporar
impairment, partially offset by $3.6 million of te@orary recovery. If the issuers are not able totrttesir payment obligatiol
or if we sell our ARS investments before they rerpwe may lose some or all of the principal inedsbr may be required
further reduce the carrying value. This would adeér affect our financial position, results of agt#gons, and cash flows.

Legislation affecting the markets in which we parttipate could adversely affect our ability to implenent our growth
strategies.

Our ability to expand our business may be adverisahacted by future laws or regulations. Our cugmsiproduct:
may be subject to laws relating to environmentgutations, communications, encryption technolodgcteonic commerce, e-
signatures, governmental control over content, aieacy. Any of these laws could be expensive tmply with, and th
marketability of our products could be adversefgeted.

We must finance the growth of our business and théevelopment of new products, which could have an adrse effect ol
our operating results.

To remain competitive, we must continue to makeificant investments in research and developmeantkeating
and business development. Our failure to increafficiently our net revenue to offset these inceshsosts would advers:
affect our operating results.

From time to time, we may seek additional equitydebt financing to provide for funds required tgpamd ou
business. We cannot predict the timing or amourdrof such requirements at this time. If such fimagnds not available ¢
satisfactory terms, we may be unable to expandbasimess or to develop new business at the raieedesnd our operatit
results may suffer. Debt financing increases exgeasid must be repaid regardless of operatingtse&duity financing cou
result in additional dilution to existing stockheld.

We consider the undistributed operating earningsedfain foreign subsidiaries to be indefinitelyested outside tl
United States. If we were to distribute a portidrthmse earnings to our U.S. parent company tanfieaour future growth, v
would be required to pay U.S. federal and statedaon the distribution and further may be requiedccrue U.S. and st
taxes on the remaining undistributed operatingirgs) which would adversely affect our tax rate findncial results.

Our target markets are cyclical and may result in fuctuations in our operating results.

The PC and electronics industries have experiergigdificant economic downturns at various times.e§e
downturns are characterized by diminished prodwhahd, accelerated erosion of average selling riaed productic
overcapacity. In addition, the PC and electronimustries are cyclical in nature. We seek to redugeexposure to indus!
downturns and cyclicality by providing design anmduction services for leading companies in rapietpanding indust
segments. We may, however, experience substartimdstoperiod fluctuations in future operating results duese of gener
industry conditions or events occurring in the gaheconomy.

28




Table of Contents

Continuing uncertainty of the U.S. and global econmy may have serious implications for the growth andtability of our
business and may negatively affect our stock price.

The revenue growth and profitability of our busmekepends significantly on the overall demand & nbteboo
computer market and in the markets for digitalstifée products and other electronic devices, inolyignobile smartphones a
feature phones. Softening demand in these marketsed by ongoing economic uncertainty may resuleicreased revenue
earnings levels or growth rates. The U.S. and dglebanomy has been historically cyclical, and madanditions continue
be challenging, which has resulted in individuald aompanies delaying or reducing expenditureshBudelays or reductio
in spending could have a material adverse effecdemand for our products, and consequently on asinkss, financi
condition, results of operations, prospects, andksprice.

We expect to incur additional expenses in complyingith corporate governance and public disclosure rguirements.

Changing laws, regulations, and standards relatingorporate governance and public disclosureudiof SE(
regulations, and Nasdaq Global Select Market raesate uncertainty and increased expenses foraoegsuch as ours. N
or changed laws, regulations, and standards afeciub varying interpretations in many cases dutheir lack of specificit
and, as a result, their application in practice raaglve over time as new guidance is provided lguletory and governir
bodies, which could result in continuing uncertginégarding compliance matters and higher costesstated by ongoil
revisions to disclosure and governance practices.avg committed to maintaining high standards opa@te governance a
public disclosure. As a result, our efforts to céynwith evolving laws, regulations, and standardséiresulted in, and ¢
likely to continue to result in, increased genenadl administrative expenses and a diversion of gemant time and attenti
from revenuegenerating activities to compliance activities. \@&gect these efforts to require the continued cdmanit o
significant resources. In addition, it may becommrendifficult and more expensive for us to obtairector and officer liabilit
insurance. As a result, we may have difficultyaatting and retaining qualified board members, wigichld harm our busine:
If our efforts to comply with new or changed lawegulations, and standards differ from the acggitintended by regulatory
governing bodies due to ambiguities related totaracour reputation may be harmed.

The accounting requirements for income taxes on c&in of our share-based awards will subject our future quarterly
and annual effective tax rates to greater volatily and, consequently, our ability to estimate reas@bly our future
quarterly and annual effective tax rates is greatlhydiminished.

We recognize tax benefit upon expensing nonqudlii®ck options and deferred stock units issuecundr share-
based compensation plans. However, under curresduating standards, we cannot recognize tax benefiturrent wit
expensing incentive stock options and employeekspagchase plan shares (qualified stock optiors)ed under our share-
based compensation plans. For qualified stock pptthat vested after our adoption of the applicalsleounting standards,
recognize the tax benefit only in the period whegudalifying dispositions of the underlying stoakcar and, for qualified sto
options that vested prior to our adoption of thpl@pble accounting standards, the tax benefiéé®rded directly to additior
paid-in capital. Accordingly, because we cannobgaize the tax benefit for shab&sed compensation expense associate(
qualified stock options until the occurrence ofufiet disqualifying dispositions of the underlyingek and such disqualifis
dispositions may happen in periods when our stoitde substantially increases, and because a pasfitmt tax benefit may |
directly recorded to additional paid-capital, our future quarterly and annual effeettax rates will be subject to gre:
volatility and, consequently, our ability to estimaeasonably our future quarterly and annual éffecax rates is grea
diminished.

Future changes in financial accounting standards opractices may cause adverse unexpected fluctuat®mand affect ou
reported results of operations.

A change in accounting standards or practices cbalek a significant effect on our reported resaft®perations
New accounting pronouncements and varying inteaicets of accounting pronouncements have occurrgdd past and m
occur in the future. Changes to existing rulesherduestioning of current practices may adversigctour reported financi
results or the way we conduct our business. Fomel@ the Financial Accounting Standards Boardddsspecific accountit
standards requiring us to recognize all shased payments to employees, including grantsoeksbptions, restricted stor
and deferred stock units, in the financial statemdrased on their grant date fair value eliminating pro forma footno
disclosures that were allowed as an alternatiiinemcial statement recognition. This requiremerttile not affecting our ca:
flow, has adversely affected our reported finanogsults and impaired our ability to provide guidaron our future report
financial results as a result of the variabilitythé factors used to establish the grant datevédire of stock options and 1
accounting for income taxes thereon.
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Our charter documents and Delaware law could maketimore difficult for a third party to acquire us, and discourage
takeover.

Our certificate of incorporation and the Delawaren€ral Corporation Law contain provisions that nhaye th:
effect of making more difficult or delaying atteragiy others to obtain control of our company, ewtien these attempts nr
be in the best interests of our stockholders. Gartificate of incorporation also authorizes our ftaoaf directors, withot
stockholder approval, to issue one or more serfepreferred stock, which could have voting and a@sion rights thi
adversely affect or dilute the voting power of ti@ders of common stock. Delaware law also impaseslitions on certa
business combination transactions with “interestedkholders.’Our certificate of incorporation divides our BoafDirector:
into three classes, with one class to stand fastiele each year for a threear term after the election. The classificatio
directors tends to discourage a third party froitiating a proxy solicitation or otherwise attenmgito obtain control of o
company and may maintain the incumbency of our 8@drDirectors, as this structure generally incesathe difficulty of, c
may delay, replacing a majority of directors. Oartificate of incorporation authorizes our Boardifectors to fill vacancie
or newly created directorships. A majority of theedtors then in office may elect a successor ltaafiy vacancies or new
created directorships.

Our stockholders’ rights plan may adversely affecexisting stockholders.

Our stockholderstights plan also may have the effect of deterrifgjaying, or preventing a change in control
might otherwise be in the best interests of oucldtolders. In general, stock purchase rights issunelér the rights plan beco
exercisable when a person or group acquires 1586o0e of our common stock or a tender offer or ergeaoffer of 15% ¢
more of our common stock is announced or commen&fer any such event, our other stockholders margipase addition
shares of our common stock at 50% of the tbement market price. The rights will cause subt&hmilution to a person
group that attempts to acquire us on terms notosepr by our board of directors. The rights shoutd interfere with an
merger or other business combination approved byoard of directors as the rights may be redeenyads at $0.01 per stc
purchase right at any time before any person angexquires 15% or more of our outstanding comntacks The rights expil
in August 2012.

Sales of large numbers of shares could adverselyfedt the price of our common stock.

As of August 6, 2010, all of the 34,465,254 sharesur common stock outstanding were eligible fesale in th
public markets. Of these shares, 9,102,206 shaglesldy affiliates were eligible for resale in thabtic markets subject
compliance with the volume and manner of sale rofeRules 144 or 701 under the Securities Act d33,%s amended (t
“Securities Act”),and the balance of the shares were eligible falees the public markets as unrestricted sharegehera
under Rule 144 as currently in effect, any persumpgrsons whose shares are aggregated for purpbsesle 144) who
deemed an affiliate of our company and beneficiallyns restricted securities with respect to whitheast six months h
elapsed since the later of the date the shares agepaired from us, or from an affiliate of ourseistitled to sell within ar
threemonth period a number of shares that does not dxiteegreater of 1% of the then outstanding shafesir commo
stock or the average weekly trading volume in commatock during the four calendar weeks precedindh sale. Sales |
affiliates under Rule 144 also are subject to aem@anner-ofsale provisions and notice requirements and t@atadability of
current public information about us.

Rule 701, as currently in effect, permits our empks, officers, directors, and consultants who lpase shar
pursuant to a written compensatory plan or cont@ogsell these shares in reliance upon Rule Bdidwithout compliance wi
specific restrictions. Rule 701 provides that &fés may sell their Rule 701 shares under Rulewlithbut complying with th
holding period requirement and naffiliates may sell their shares in reliance oneRL44 without complying with the holdi
period, public information, volume limitation, ootice provisions of Rule 144. A person who is notadfiliate, who has n
been an affiliate within three months prior to saed who beneficially owns restricted securitigdhwespect to which at le:
one year has elapsed since the later of the datehthres were acquired from us, or from an a#l@tours, is entitled to s
such shares under Rule 144 without regard to anphefvolume limitations or other requirements diesct above. Sales
substantial amounts of common stock in the pubbck®t could adversely affect prevailing market @sic

30




Table of Contents

We have registered an aggregate of $100 milliocoafimon stock and preferred stock for issuance imection witl
acquisitions, which shares generally will be freideable after their issuance under Rule 146@Becurities Act, unless h
by an affiliate of the acquired company, in whiase such shares will be subject to the volume amthar of sale restrictio
of Rule 144 discussed above. The issuance or substgale of these shares in the public marketdcadversely affe
prevailing market prices.

We have registered an aggregate of $250 millionomimon stock (including the associated rights)fegored stock
debt securities, depositary shares, warrants, pgechontracts, and units (collectively “securitjdet issuance to raise funds
general corporate purposes, which may include ¢épayment of indebtedness outstanding from timénte,tworking capita
capital expenditures, acquisitions, and repurchasesir common stock or other securities. Secwitssued under the st

registration generally will be freely tradeableeaftheir issuance unless held by an affiliate af @ampany, in which case st
shares will be subject to the volume and manneal#f restrictions of Rule 144.

We have registered for offer and sale the sharesonfmon stock that are reserved for issuance puotrgoaou
outstanding share-based compensation plans. Skatesd in connection with our shdrased compensation plans gene
will be eligible for sale in the public market, ext that affiliates will continue to be subjectwolume limitations and oth
requirements of Rule 144. The issuance or subséganof such shares could depress the market pfiour common stock.
The market price of our common stock has been and ay continue to be volatile.

The trading price of our common stock has beenraay continue to be subject to wide fluctuationgeaponse 1
various factors, including the following:

e variations in our quarterly resuli

« the financial guidance we may provide to the pybkdiny changes in such guidance, or our failure &etnsuc
guidance

e changes in financial estimates by industry or s@earanalysts or our failure to meet such estisy

e various market factors or perceived market factorsluding rumors, whether or not correct, involyimis, ou
customers, our suppliers, or our competit

< announcements of technological innovations by usyasur competitors

« introductions of new products or new pricing p@gby us or by our competito

e acquisitions or strategic alliances by us or by@mpetitors

e recruitment or departure of key personi

e the gain or loss of significant orde

e the gain or loss of significant custome

*  market conditions in our industry, the industriéswor customers, and the economy as a wt
* hedging activities by investors holding position®ur convertible senior subordinated no

e short positions held by investors; ¢

e general financial market conditions or occurren

In addition, stocks of technology companies haveeernced extreme price and volume fluctuations dfien hav
been unrelated or disproportionate to these compamperating performance. Public announcements byntdahy companie
concerning, among other things, their performaacepunting practices, or legal problems could cadlisanarket price of o
common stock to decline regardless of our actuatatg performance.
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
Not applicable.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our principal executive offices as well as our pifial research, development, sales, marketing,aamiinistrativ:
functions are located in our 70,000 square foadtifiaén Santa Clara, California and an adjacenjO80 square foot facility.
New York, we lease approximately 10,000 square tised for research and development. Our Asia/Rakdadquarters ¢
located in Hong Kong where we lease approximatél@d0 square feet of space. We also maintain appetgly 22,000 squa
feet of office space in Taiwan, approximately 140,GQuare feet of office space in China, approxiigaded00 square feet
office space in Japan, approximately 10,000 sqfeseof office space in Korea, and less than 18ffare feet of office spe
in Switzerland. We have satellite sales supporteffin Finland, Singapore, Thailand, and Texas.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
None.
ITEM 4. RESERVED

Not applicable.
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information on Common Stock

Our common stock has been listed on the NasdaqaG®élect Market (formerly on the Nasdaq Nationadrkét
under the symbol “SYNA'since January 29, 2002. Prior to that time, theas wo public market for our common stock.
following table sets forth for the periods indidhtde high and low sales prices of our common stxckuoted on the Nasc
Global Select Market.

High Low

Fiscal 2009:

First quartefd $ 36.9¢ $ 24.9¢

Second quarte $ 31.9¢ $ 13.8¢

Third quartel $ 27.8¢ $ 14.11

Fourth quarte $ 40.9¢ $ 23.0¢
Fiscal 2010:

First quartel $ 38.6¢ $ 23.9i

Second quarte $ 29.6¢ $ 20.9i

Third quartel $ 33.1¢€ $ 25.0¢

Fourth quarte $ 33.3¢ $ 26.31

(1) All share amounts reflect thefor-2 stock split effected as a stock dividend and paidugust 29, 200¢
Stockholders

As of August 6, 2010, there were approximately Balers of record of our common stock.
Dividends

We have never declared or paid cash dividends ercammon stock. We currently plan to retain anyngsys tc
finance the growth of our business, purchase shamdsr our common stock purchase program, or paeclaad retire ol
outstanding notes rather than to pay cash dividehdgments of any cash dividends in the future dejbend on our financ
condition, results of operations, and capital rezgaents as well as other factors deemed relevaatibipoard of directors.

Our revolving line of credit also places restrioioon the payment of any dividends.
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Performance Graph

The following line graph compares cumulative tati@ickholder returns for the five years ended fi&€dl0 for (i) ou
common stock, (ii) the Nasdag Composite Index, @iidhe Nasdag Computer Index. The graph assuamefmvestment ¢
$100 on June 25, 2005. The calculations of cunudasitockholder return on the Nasdag Composite Iratek the Nasd:
Computer Index include reinvestment of dividendse Talculation of cumulative stockholder returnoom common stock do
not include reinvestment of dividends because viendit pay any dividends during the measuremenbg@eihe historic:
performance shown is not necessarily indicativRitfre performance.

COMPARIZSON OF 60 MONTHCUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURMN
Among Synaptics Incorported, The Nasdag Composate Index,
and The Nasdag Computer Index

%300 -

$250 -

$150 A

5100 -

605 606 G607 B/08 609 B0

—&— Synaptics Incorporated —#A— Nasdaq Composite Index
===k~ Nasdag Computer Index
The performance graph above shall not be deeméat"ffor purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Acthe

Exchange Act, or otherwise subject to the liabitifithat section. The performance graph abovenwillbe deemed incorpora
by reference into any filing of our company unde Exchange Act or the Securities Act.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following presents selected financial datadfach fiscal year in the fivgear period ended fiscal 2010. Our fi¢
year is the 5- or 53-week period ending on the last Saturdayune. Fiscal 2007 was a B&ek period and the other fis
years presented were-week periods. As our past operating results arsmeocéssarily indicative of our future operatinguies
you should read the selected financial data belovednjunction with Item 7. Managem’s Discussion and Analysis
Financial Condition an&esults of Operations and our consolidated findistéements and related notes contained elsevit
this report.

2006* 2007* 2008* 2009* 2010
(in thousands, except for per share data)

Consolidated Statements o

Income Data:
Net revenu $ 184,55 $ 266,78 $ 361,05 $ 473,30: $ 514,89
Cost of revenu 101,70: 160,91: 213,60¢ 281,79« 306,18t
Gross margir 82,85! 105,87- 147,45 191,50¢ 208,70:

Operating expense
Research and developmt 35,35¢ 39,38t 50,09: 68,02¢ 86,552
Selling, general, and administrati 28,01¢ 36,245 48,12¢ 54,01« 60,023
Restructuring — 91t — — —
Total operating expens 63,37¢ 76,54¢ 98,21¢ 122,04( 146,57¢
Operating incom: 19,47¢ 29,32¢ 49,23: 69,46¢ 62,12:¢
Interest income, ne (657) 1,80¢ (120 (3,83)) (1,427
Other charges or expens — — (8,279 (10,296 (443

Income before provision for

income taxe: 18,82: 31,13¢ 40,84¢ 55,34 60,257
Provision for income taxe 9,11¢ 8,95:¢ 14,48t 7,261 7,292
Net income $ 9,70z $ 22,18: $ 26,36 $ 48,07¢ $ 52,96¢

Net income per shar

Basic(1) $ 0.2¢ $ 0.5¢ $ 0.7C $ 1.41 $ 1.57

Diluted(1) $ 0.24 $ 0.5¢ $ 0.67 $ 1.3¢ $ 1.5C
Shares used in computing net incor

per share

Basic(1) 37,06: 38,331 37,661 33,98 33,83¢

Diluted(1) 39,90: 40,53¢ 39,36¢ 35,571 35,42

Consolidated Balance Sheet

Data:

Cash, cash equivalents, and shertn

investments $ 245,17t $ 265,01 $ 146,51t $ 191,97( $ 209,85¢
Working capital 257,78t 299,92: 189,85: 159,69: 228,53¢
Total asset 330,43 372,42! 305,24 376,15( 414,67¢
Current deb — 1,50C — 63,23¢ —
Long-term debi 97,81 103,86° 112,08 — 2,30¢
Treasury shares, at c¢ 39,99¢ 72,34¢ 237,38 237,38 281,93:
Total stockholder equity 183,56¢ 220,26 121,21 222,60¢ 286,51

(1) All share and per share amounts reflect i-for-2 stock split effected as a stock dividend and paidugust 29, 200¢

*  Reflects the retrospective application of the nesoanting pronouncement applicable to convertildbtdnstruments th
can be settled in cas

Our basic net income per share amounts for eadhdbpresented have been computed using the weigiwedhg
number of shares of common stock outstanding. @uted net income per share amounts for each pgniegented include t
weighted average effect of potentially dilutive s#sa We used the “treasury stoakiethod to determine the dilutive effec
our stock options, deferred stock units, and cditMer notes. Under the treasury stock method, shassociated with o
convertible notes are included in the calculatidrdituted net income per share only if the weightagrage price of o
common stock exceeds $33.69 during the reportinggePrior to fiscal 2008, we used t"if converte” method for oL



convertible notes and 3,711,000, and 3,062,00Qetilshares were included in the calculation oftddunet incom
per share in fiscal 2006 and 2007, respectively.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

Forward-Looking Statements and Factors That May Afect Results

You should read the following discussion and analys conjunction with our financial statements anthted note
contained elsewhere in this report. This discussiontains forwardeoking statements that involve risks, uncertasjtian
assumptions. Our actual results may differ matgrfabm those anticipated in these forwdobking statements as a result «
variety of factors, including those set forth unttem 1A. Risk Factors.

Overview

We are a leading worldwide developer and suppliezustoméesigned human interface solutions that enablelg
to interact more easily and intuitively with a widariety of mobile computing, communications, etastigrment, and oth
electronic devices. We believe our results to dafiect the combination of our customer focus, strength of our intellectu
property, and our engineering kndww, which allow us to develop or engineer produbest meet the demanding des
specifications of OEMs.

We recognize revenue from product sales when tisepersuasive evidence that an arrangement eglislisery ha
occurred or title has transferred, the price iedixor determinable, and collection is reasonablursl. Our net reven
increased from $184.6 million for fiscal 2006 tol#® million for fiscal 2010, representing a compdwannual growth rate
approximately 29%. For fiscal 2006, we derived 86f@ur net revenue from the personal computer ntafker fiscal 201(
revenue from the personal computer market accodoteésbD% of our net revenue.

Many of our customers have migrated their manufagjuoperations from Taiwan to China, and many wf @EM
customers have established design centers ingfa. With our expanded global presence, includiffiges in Canada, Chir
Finland, Hong Kong, Japan, Korea, Switzerland, Baiwand the United States, we are well positiooeprovide local sale
operational, and engineering support services te@risting customers, as well as potential newarasts, on a global basis.

Our manufacturing operations are based on a variabst model in which we outsource all of our piiuatun
requirements and generally drop ship our produdtsctly to our customers from our contract manufests’ facilities,
eliminating the need for significant capital expigmas and allowing us to minimize our investmentinventories. Th
approach requires us to work closely with our cacttrmanufacturers to ensure adequate productioacitgpto meet ot
forecasted volume requirements. We provide ourrechtmanufacturers with sixonth rolling forecasts and issue purct
orders based on our anticipated requirements fonéxt 90 days. However, we do not have any kengr supply contracts wi
any of our contract manufacturers. We use thred-fharty wafer manufacturers to supply wafers awal third-party packagin
manufacturers to package our proprietary ASICgelnain cases, we rely on a single source or adamumber of suppliers
provide other key components of our products. Qast ©f revenue includes all costs associated vhighproduction of ot
products, including materials, logistics, manufacty, assembly, and test costs paid to tipiadty manufacturers and rela
overhead costs associated with our indirect matwfiag operations personnel. Additionally, we cleaedl warranty costs, yie
losses, and any inventory provisions or write-dotenesost of revenue.

Our gross margin generally reflects the combinatibthe added value we bring to our OEM customprstducts il
meeting their custom design requirements and tipadiof our ongoing cost-improvement programs. €lesstimprovemer
programs include reducing materials and componestscand implementing design and process improvesn€ur newl
introduced products may have lower margins thannsare mature products, which have realized grdageefits associat
with our ongoing cosimprovement programs. As a result, new producbihictions may initially negatively impact our gr
margin.

Our research and development expenses include fovsssipplies and materials related to product bgraent, a
well as the engineering costs incurred to desigmam interface solutions for OEM customers priorated after the
commitment to incorporate those solutions into rthaioducts. These expenses have generally increaséidcting ou
continuing commitment to the technological and gleshnovation required to maintain our positioroinr existing markets a
to adapt our existing technologies or develop reshnologies for new markets.
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Selling, general, and administrative expenses delexpenses related to sales, marketing, and atratinve
personnel; internal sales and outside sales rapasas’commissions; market and usability research; outgigal, accountin
and consulting costs; and other marketing and sadésities. These expenses have generally incdegsémarily reflectin
incremental staffing and related support costsaatad with our increased business levels, growthur existing markets, a
penetration into new markets.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statemé@ntonformity with U.S. generally accepted acdamgnprinciple:
requires us to make estimates and judgments tfeattdhe reported amounts of assets, liabilitiesenue, expenses, and rel:
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities.a@drongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates,dimguthose related to rever
recognition, allowance for doubtful accounts, aafstevenue, inventories, product warranty, provisior income taxes, incor
taxes payable, intangible assets, and contingendieshase our estimates on historical experiermaicable laws, and vario
other assumptions that we believe to be reasonaider the circumstances, the results of which ftre basis for makir
judgments about the carrying value of assets amilities that are not readily apparent from otbeurces. Actual results n
differ from these estimates under different assionptor conditions.

The methods, estimates, interpretations, and judtgnee use in applying our most critical accountpaiicies ca
have a significant impact on the results that waorein our consolidated financial statements. BfC considers an entity’
most critical accounting policies to be those pelicthat are both most important to the portrayfathe entitys financia
condition and results of operations and thoserdatire the entitys most difficult, subjective, or complex judgmerdfen as
result of the need to make assumptions and estnaieut matters that are inherently uncertain. \&leeve the followin
critical accounting policies affect our more sigraint judgments and estimates used in the preparati our consolidate
financial statements.

Revenue Recognitic

We recognize revenue from product sales when tisepersuasive evidence that an arrangement eglislisery ha
occurred or title has transferred, the price iedixr determinable, and collection is reasonaldurasl. We accrue for estima
sales returns and other allowances, based onikhitexperience, at the time we recognize revenue.

Investment:

Accounting standards require us to record avaitédnesale securities at fair value, with unrealized gand losse
being reported as a component of other compreheriszome. We follow the accounting standards tesssvhether o
investments with loss positions are other-thkemporarily impaired. We follow the hierarchal apgch established under
accounting standards to determine fair value ofitmugstments, which we adopted at the beginninfgsoél 2009.

The accounting standards define fair value as the® ghat would be received to sell an asset od paitransfer
liability in an orderly transaction between margatticipants at the measurement date. Our fairevagiimates consider, amt
other factors, the collateral underlying the sdgurivestments, creditworthiness of the countespanning of expected futu
cash flows, and, in the case of auction rate siéesirior ARS investments, the probability of a sssful auction in a futu
period. We follow the guidance provided to estimfate value when the volume and level of activity fan asset or liabili
have significantly decreased in relation to normalket activity for the asset or liability, anddetermine circumstances t
may indicate that a transaction is not orderly.

Further, we use judgment in evaluating whether @it in fair value is temporary or other-themporary an
consider the following indicators: changes in credliings or asset quality; changes in the econ@miironment; length of tin
and extent to which fair value has been below basts; changes in market conditions; changes ieagd cash flows. We
not intend to sell the investments and it is makely than not that we will not be required to s#le investments befc
recovery of their amortized cost basis. Temporaeglides in fair value are recorded as charges turaalated othe
comprehensive income in the equity section of @latce sheet, while other-thtemporary declines in fair value are bifurci
between credit losses, which are charged to essnargd noncredit losses, which depending on faadscacumstances may
charged to other comprehensive income or earnings.
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Inventory

We state our inventories at the lower of cost orkeia We base our assessment of the ultimate atializ o
inventories on our projections of future demand avadket conditions. Sudden declines in demanddnamduct improvemen
or technological changes, or any combination of¢hfactors can cause us to have excess or obsoletgories. On an ongoi
basis, we review for estimated obsolete or unmalitetinventories and write down our inventoriesh®ir net realizable vali
based upon our forecasts of future demand and maddlitions. If actual market conditions are Iéagorable than ol
forecasts, additional inventory writktbwns may be required. The following factors infloe our estimates: changes t
cancellations of customer orders, unexpected dedlirdemand, rapid product improvements and tedgicdl advances, a
termination or changes by our OEM customers off@oyuct offerings incorporating our product solago

Periodically, we purchase inventory from our cocttnr@anufacturers when a customer delays its dgligehedule ¢
cancels its order. In those circumstances in wioich customer has cancelled its order and we puechmgntory from ot
contract manufacturers, we consider a wditsvn to reduce the carrying value of the inventouychased to its net realiza
value. We charge write-downs to reduce the carryaige of obsolete, slow moving, and nasable inventory to net realiza
value to cost of revenue. The effect of these widens is to establish a new cost basis in theeglatventory, which we ¢
not subsequently write up.

Share-Based Compensation Costs

We account for employee shdvased compensation costs in accordance with rele@ounting standards. \
utilize the Black-Scholes option pricing model tstimate the grant date fair value of employee shas=d compensatc
awards, which requires the input of highly subjeztassumptions, including expected volatility ardexted life. Historical ar
implied volatilities were used in estimating thé fealue of our sharbased awards, while the expected life for our astiva:
estimated based on historical trends since ouiaingublic offering. Changes in these inputs ansuagptions can materia
affect the measure of estimated fair value of charesbased compensation. Further, as required undevargleaccountin
standards, we estimate forfeitures for sHaased awards that are not expected to vest. Wgehhe estimated fair value |
estimated forfeitures to earnings on a stralgi@-basis over the vesting period of the undedyamvards, which is generally fc
years for our stock options and deferred stocksuaritd up to two years for our employee stock puseipan

The BlackScholes option pricing model was developed forinsestimating the fair value of traded options thave
no vesting restrictions and are fully transferabdes our stock option and employee stock purchasa glwards ha
characteristics that differ significantly from tedioptions, and as changes in the subjective asgumagan materially affect t
estimated value, our estimate of fair value mayawurately represent the value assigned by a garty in an armsengtt
transaction. There currently is no markesed mechanism to verify the reliability and aacyrof the estimates derived fr
the BlackScholes option pricing model or other allowableuation models, nor is there a means to compareadjt th
estimates to actual values. While our estimateffalue and the associated charge to earningsrialét affects our results
operations, it has no impact on our cash position.

There are significant variations among allowabl&uagon models, and there is a possibility that mway adopt
different valuation model or refine the inputs asgumptions under our current valuation model énftiure, resulting in a la
of consistency in future periods. Our current dufe valuation model and the inputs and assumptimsnake may also la
comparability to other companies that use differantels, inputs, or assumptions, and the resuttifigrences in comparabili
could be material.

Income Taxe

We recognize federal, foreign, and state currextlitilities or assets based on our estimate néggpayable
refundable in the then current fiscal year for etahjurisdiction. We also recognize federal, fgreiand state deferred
liabilities or assets for our estimate of futurg &ffects attributable to temporary differences aadyforwards and recorc
valuation allowance to reduce any deferred taxtaggethe amount of any tax benefits that, basedvailable evidence and «
judgment, are not expected to be realized. If @sumptions, and consequently our estimates, chiartge future, the valuatic
allowance we have established for our deferrecsmets may be changed, which could impact incormexjgense.
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We use a tweastep approach to recognizing and measuring unoetéi positions. The first step is to detern
whether it is more-likely-thanet that a tax position will be sustained upon exation, including resolution of any rela
appeals or litigation processes. The second stepnimeasure the tax benefit as the largest ambahi¢ more than 50% likely
being realized upon ultimate settlement with antgxauthority. The calculation of tax liabilitiesvislves significant judgment
estimating the impact of uncertainties in the aggilon of highly complex tax laws. Resolution okse uncertainties in
manner inconsistent with our expectations couldehavmaterial impact on our consolidated financiasifion, result ¢
operations, or cash flows. We believe we have aatetyuprovided for reasonably foreseeable outcomesnnection with th
resolution of income tax uncertainties. Howeven, msults have in the past, and could in the fyturelude favorable ar
unfavorable adjustments to our estimated tax li#dsl in the period a determination of such estedatax liability is made «
resolved, upon the filing of an amended return,;up@hange in facts, circumstances, or interpmtatir upon the expiration
a statute of limitation. Accordingly, our effectitax rate could fluctuate materially from periodptriod.

We recognize tax benefit upon expensing nonqudligimck options and deferred stock units issuecundr share-
based compensation plans. However, under curresduating standards, we cannot recognize tax benefiturrent wit
expensing incentive stock options and employeekspazchase plan shares (qualified stock optiors)ed under our share-
based compensation plans. For qualified stock optthat vested after our adoption of new accourgtagdards, we recogn
tax benefit only in the period when disqualifyingmbsitions of the underlying stock occur, whicktarically has been up
several years after vesting and in periods whenstnok price substantially increases. For qualiigatk options that vest
prior to our adoption of new accounting standaves,record the tax benefit directly to additionaidei capital. Accordingly
because we cannot recognize the tax benefit faedimsed compensation expense associated with qdadifiek options un
the occurrence of future disqualifying dispositiasfsthe underlying stock and such disqualified d&pons may happen
periods when our stock price substantially increased because a portion of that tax benefit maylitextly recorded f
additional paidn capital, our future quarterly and annual effeetitax rates will be subject to greater volatiliyd
consequently, our ability to estimate reasonablyfoture quarterly and annual effective tax ragegreatly diminished.
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Results of Operations

The following sets forth certain of our consolidht#atements of income data for fiscal 2008, 2@d@, 2010, alor
with comparative information regarding the absolated percentage changes in these amounts (in thdgisaxcej

percentages):
2009* 2010 $ Change¢ % Change 2008*  2009* $ Change % Change

PC application: $269,59! $305,73 $ 36,14: 13.2% $272,79¢ $269,59' $ (3,20)) (1.2%)
Digital lifestyle product

applications 203,70° 209,15: 5,44¢ 2.7% 88,26 203,70 115,44t 130.%
Net revenu 473,30: 514,89(  41,58¢ 8.6% 361,05° 473,30. 112,24! 31.1%

Gross margir 191,50¢ 208,70.  17,19: 9.C% 147,45. 191,50¢  44,05¢ 29.%%
Operating expense

Research and developme 68,02¢ 86,55:  18,52¢ 27.2% 50,09 68,02¢ 17,93: 35.8%

Selling, general, and

administrative 54,01¢ 60,027 6,018 11.1%  48,12¢ 54,01 5,88¢ 12.2%

Income from operatior 69,46¢ 62,12! (7,34¢€) (10.€%) 49,23 69,46¢ 20,237 41.1%
Interest incom: 3,222 977 (2,245 (69.1%) 9,652 3,222 (6,430 (66.€%)
Interest expens (7,059 (2,400 4,65: (66.(%) (9,762) (7,057 2,70¢ (27.8%)
Gain on settlement of de — — — n/m() 2,68¢ — (2,689 (100.(%)
Loss on early retirement of de  (1,052) — 1,05: (100.(%) — (1,059 (1,059 n/m(d)
Impairment of investment, n (9,249) (443) 8,80( (95.2%) (10,969 (9,249 1,72C (15.7%)

Income before provision for

income taxe: 55,34: 60,25" 4,91¢ 8.%% 40,84t 55,34 14,49« 35.5%

Provision for income taxe 7,26: 7,29z 29 0.4% 14,48¢ 7,263 (7,227) (49.€%)

Net income $ 48,07¢ $ 52,96 $ 4,88¢ 10.2% $ 26,367 $ 48,07¢ $ 21,71¢ 82.4%

*  Reflects the retrospective application of the neaoanting pronouncement applicable to convertildbtdnstruments th
can be settled in cas

(1) not meaningfu

The following sets forth certain of our consolidhtatements of income data as a percentage afiuesdor fisce
2008, 2009, and 2010:

Percentagt Percentag¢
Point Point
Increase Increase
2009 2010 (Decrease 2008 2009 (Decrease
PC application: 57.(% 59.4% 2.4% 75.€% 57.(% (18.€%)
Digital lifestyle product
applications 43.(% 40.€% (2.4%) 24.4% 43.(% 18.6%
Net revenue 100.(% 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%
Gross margir 40.5% 40.5% 0.C% 40.8% 40.5% (0.2%)
Operating expense
Research and developmt 14.4% 16.£% 2.4% 13.% 14.4% 0.5%
Selling, general, and
administrative 11.4% 11.7% 0.2% 13.2% 11.4% (1.9%)
Income from operatior 14.7% 12.1% (2.€%0) 13.€% 14.7% 1.1%

Income before provision for
income taxe! 11.7% 11.7% 0.C% 11.5% 11.7% 0.4%




Provision for income taxe 1.5% 1.4% (0.1%) 4.C% 1.5% (2.5%)
Net income 10.2% 10.5% 0.1% 7.2% 10.2% 2.9%
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Fiscal 2010 compared with fiscal 2009
Net Revenue

Net revenue was $514.9 million for fiscal 2010 camgn with $473.3 million for fiscal 2009, an incseao
$41.6 million, or 8.8%. Of our fiscal 2010 net rave, $305.7 million, or 59.4%, of net revenue wesmf the person
computing market and $209.2 million, or 40.6%, ef mevenue was from the digital lifestyle produotarkets, includin
$177.4 million from mobile smartphones and featoihenes. The increase in net revenue for fiscal 2049 attributable to
$36.2 million, or 13.4%, increase in net revenuafiPC applications, and a $5.4 million, or 2.7%;yéase in net revenue fri
digital lifestyle product applications. The overaltrease in net revenue was primarily attributabl@ 26.1% increase in u
shipments reflecting higher market penetration wf products in the personal computing and digifabtyle markets, partial
offset by lower priced product mix, general comipe&ti pricing pressure, a decline in portable digéatertainment devi
revenue, and a reduced attach rate of our multenealitrol solutions in notebook computers.

Based on industry estimates of unit shipmentsntdiebook market is anticipated to increase appratdiy 29% an
the mobile smartphone market is anticipated toeiase approximately 28% from 2009 to 2010.

Gross Margin.

Gross margin as a percentage of net revenue w&%04@r $208.7 million, for fiscal 2010 compared twit0.5%, @
$191.5 million, for fiscal 2009. As each custamsigned module we sell utilizes our capacitivessgntechnology in a desi
that is generally unique or specific to an OEM oostr's application, gross margin varies on a protiyeproduct basi:
making our cumulative gross margin a blend of awdpct specific designs and independent of theioarinarkets that ol
products serve. As a virtual manufacturer, our gnosirgin percentage is generally not impacted hadlieby our shipmer
volume. We charge write-downs to reduce the cagrymlue of obsolete, slow moving, and neable inventory to n
realizable value, including warranty costs, to adsevenue.

Operating Expenses.

Research and Development ExpensBgsearch and development expenses increasefemsemtage of net rever
to 16.8% from 14.4%, and the cost of research @awtldpment activities increased $18.5 million, @r226, to $86.6 millio
fiscal 2010 compared with $68.0 million for fis@009. The increase in research and developmennsg&perimarily reflecte
a $9.1 million increase in employee compensatiahemployment related costs, resulting from a 16éteiase in research ¢
development staffing, increased base compensatlated to our annual performance review proce$§.4million increase
share-based compensation costs due to a $1.5mdlimulative correction to shab&sed compensation expense in rest
and development (see note 9 in the notes to caladed financial statements) as well as grants ndadi@ég the year, and
$2.1 million increase in facility related costssigpport the increased headcount.

Selling, General, and Administrative Expense$elling, general, and administrative expenseseased as
percentage of net revenue to 11.7% from 11.4%, thedcost of selling, general, and administrativéividies increase
$6.0 million, or 11.1%, to $60.0 million fiscal 20Ctompared with $54.0 million for fiscal 2009. Tinerease in selling, genel
and administrative expenses primarily reflectedt® $nillion increase in shafgased compensation costs due to a $2.7 ir
cumulative correction to shal@sed compensation expense in selling, generaladministrative expenses (see note 9 i
notes to consolidated financial statements) as algrants made during the year, and a $2.4 milliorease in employ
compensation and employment related costs, reguftoim a 14% increase in selling, general and adhtnative staffing
increased base compensation related to our anmufdrmance review process, partially offset by ab$tillion decrease
legal fees related to patent litigation settledisnal 2009.

Operating Income.

We generated operating income of $62.1 million12r1% of net revenue, for fiscal 2010, a decre&s¥ @ million
compared with $69.5 million, or 14.7% of net revenior fiscal 2009. As discussed in the precedm@ggraphs, the decreas
operating income was primarily attributable to & $2million increase in our operating expensestiglgr offset by an increa:
operating leverage, resulting from the 8.8% inadaset revenue.

Nor-Operating Income/(Loss).

Interest Incomelnterest income was $1.0 million for fiscal 2010mgmared with $3.2 million for fiscal 2009. T
$2.2 million decrease in interest income resultenflower average interest rates, partially offsgthigher average invest
cash balances.

Interest Expenselnterest expense was $2.4 million and $7.1 millfon fiscal 2010 and 2009, respectively,
consisted primarily of interest expense, and amatitn of debt discount and debt issuance costtectlto our convertib
senior subordinated notes issued in December 20hd. decline in interest expense primarily reflected retirement ¢
$63.0 million in principal amount of our convergthotes in December 20(
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Impairment of InvestmentsA portion of our ARS investments were converieadction rate preferred stock, and
have seen a decline in the credit ratings for gexdfour ARS investments. Accordingly, based om fair value analysis ai
taking into account the period of time the fairuehas been less than our cost. For fiscal 2010edgced the carrying value
our ARS investments by $443,000 compared with $8lon for fiscal 2009 through an other-théemporary impairme
charge to income.

Provision for Income Taxe

The provision for income taxes for each of fiscll@ and 2009 was approximately $7.3 million. Theome ta
provision represented estimated federal, foreiga, state taxes for fiscal 2010 and 2009. The éffedtx rate for fiscal 20:
was approximately 12.1% and diverged from the combifederal and state statutory rate, primarilp assult of an increase
profits in lower tax rate jurisdictions and the aguoition of tax benefit on the carryback of a pry@ar net operating loss
$1.8 million, partially offset by the impact of aemting for share-based compensation, foreign wittihg taxes, and a write-
down of state deferred tax assets. The effectixerade for fiscal 2009 was approximately 13.1% aliderged from th
combined federal and state statutory rate primag#lya result of an increase in profits in lower tate jurisdictions, tt
incremental research credits associated with steption activity, the extension of the federal resbacredit, and taxexemp
interest income, partially offset by the impactotounting for share-based compensation and foreiipmolding taxes.

Tax benefit associated with total shén@sed compensation was approximately $8.0 milliwh$0.6 million for fisce
2009 and 2010, respectively. Excluding the impdcharebased compensation and the related tax benefigftbetive tax rat
for fiscal 2010 and 2009 would have been 17.7%1&hii%, respectively.

Fiscal 2009 compared with fiscal 2008
Net Revenue

Net revenue was $473.3 million for fiscal 2009 camgn with $361.1 million for fiscal 2008, an incseao
$112.2 million, or 31.1%. Of our fiscal 2009 neveaue, $269.6 million, or 57.0%, of net revenue ‘rasn the person
computing market and $203.7 million, or 43.0%, ef mevenue was from the digital lifestyle produotarkets, includin
$166.3 million from mobile smartphones and featolhenes. The increase in net revenue for fiscal 2089 attributable to
$115.4 million, or 130.8%, increase in net revefroe digital lifestyle product applications, pattjaoffset by a $3.2 millior
or 1.2%, reduction in net revenue from PC applati Digital lifestyle product application net rewe growth resulte
primarily from higher market penetration of our guats in the mobile smartphone market. The dediineC applications n
revenue reflected the combination of the generalkmwess in the notebook market as a result of thieagjleconomic downtu
and a reduced attach rate of our multimedia corstpbitions in notebook computers, partially offegtmarket share gains
notebooks. The overall increase in net revenue primsarily attributable to a 15% increase in unitpshents, reflecting tt
notebook market share gain, higher market penetrati our products in the mobile smartphone market, an overall higher-
priced product mix, which included our ClearTouchegn solutions, partially offset by general coritjyet pricing pressure.
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Gross Margin.

Gross margin as a percentage of net revenue wa%4@r $191.5 million, for fiscal 2009 compared wit0.8%, o
$147.5 million, for fiscal 2008. As each custal@signed module we sell utilizes our capacitivessgntechnology in a desi
that is generally unique or specific to an OEM oostr's application, gross margin varies on a prothyeproduct basi:
making our cumulative gross margin a blend of awdpct specific designs and independent of theioarinarkets that o
products serve. The decrease in gross margin ascargage of net revenue primarily reflected a fomvargin product mix ar
general competitive pricing pressure. As a virtaahufacturer, our gross margin percentage is gy e impacted material
by our shipment volume.

Operating Expenses.

Research and Development ExpensBgsearch and development expenses increasefeasesmtage of net rever
to 14.4% from 13.9%, while the cost of research @enelopment activities increased $17.9 million36r8%, to $68.0 millio
for fiscal 2009 compared with $50.1 million for d& 2008. The increase in research and developegenses primari
reflected a $12.2 million increase in employee censation and employment related costs, resultiog fa 34% increase
research and development staffing, increased ba®pensation related to our annual performance wepicess, increas
sharebased compensation costs, increased employee tsecasis, and increased incentive compensatios;cast3.6 milliol
increase in infrastructure and support costs; afitl.4 million increase in consulting and outsidevi®e costs. Non-cash share-
based compensation costs included in research emelappment expenses were $6.3 million, or 1.8% eif nevenue, ar
$8.9 million, or 1.9% of net revenue, for fiscaldB0and 2009, respectively.

Selling, General, and Administrative Expenses$elling, general, and administrative expensesedsed as
percentage of net revenue to 11.4% from 13.3%, enthie cost of selling, general, and administraieéivities increase
$5.9 million, or 12.2%, to $54.0 million for fisc&009 compared with $48.1 million for fiscal 200he increase in sellin
general, and administrative expenses primarilyeotdld a $7.8 million increase in employee compémsand employme
related costs, resulting from a 13% increase ilingelgeneral, and administrative staffing, incezhshardsased compensati
costs, increased base compensation related tonmwahperformance review process, increased ingethmpensation cos
and increased employee development costs, partitiigt by a $1.1 million decrease in consulting antside service costs ¢
a $900,000 decrease in professional service feen:-ddsh sharbased compensation costs included in selling, génanc
administrative expenses were $10.1 million, or 2@tet revenue, and $13.8 million, or 2.9% of retenue, for fiscal 20(
and 2009, respectively.

Operating Income.

We generated operating income of $69.5 million14i7% of net revenue, for fiscal 2009, an increxsk20.2 millior
compared with $49.2 million, or 13.6% of net revenior fiscal 2008. As discussed in the precediaggraphs, the increase
operating income was primarily attributable to aereéase in operating leverage, resulting from thel% increase in n
revenue, partially offset by a 30 basis point daseein our gross margin percentage and a $23.Bmiticrease in our operati
expenses.

Nor-Operating Income/(Loss).

Interest Incomelnterest income was $3.2 million for fiscal 2009 gmared with $9.7 million for fiscal 2008. T
$6.4 million decrease in interest income resultethfa combination of lower average invested casinioas and lower avere
interest rates. The decrease in average investshl lzalances during fiscal 2009 was primarily atiidle to the use
$55.7 million for the early retirement of debt &&i3 million for capital expenditures.

Interest Expenselnterest expense was $9.8 million and $7.1 millfon fiscal 2008 and 2009, respectively,
consisted primarily of interest expense, and amatitn of debt issuance costs and debt discouatectlto our convertib
senior subordinated notes issued in December 20Bd. decline in interest expense primarily reflectbd retirement «
$59.7 million in principal amount of our convergthotes during the year.
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Gain on Settlement of Debn fiscal 1998, National Semiconductor CorporationNational, loaned us $1.5 milli
under a limitedrecourse note, which we utilized to purchase 90D Béries A preferred shares of Foveon, Inc. or &ovér
fiscal 1998, under the equity method of accounting recorded our share of losses incurred by Foeedrreduced the carryi
value of our equity investment to zero. The notesphccrued interest of $1.2 million came due in #a1g2007, and,
accordance with the security agreement, we surreddbe 900,000 Series A preferred shares secthingote to National
full settlement of the principal and accrued inser€onsequently, we recognized a roerating gain upon settlement of ¢
in the amount of $2.7 million in fiscal 2008.

Loss on Early Retirement of Debn fiscal 2009, we repurchased and retired $59llfomi of our outstandin
convertible notes at a discount of approximately T¥is resulted in a $1.1 million net loss on katient of debt after deducti
the associated unamortized debt discount and setmnce costs.

Impairment of Investmentsin fiscal 2005, we participated in an equity ficang, receiving 3,900,000 Serie
preferred shares of Foveon for a cash investme$4di million. We accounted for our Series E preférshares of Fove
under the cost method in accordance with APB OpilNo. 18 and EITF Issues No. 02-14 and NolU#cause the investm
is not “in-substance common stock.” In Septemb@&72@ve determined there was an other-tte@amporary impairment of tl
carrying value of our investment in Foveon, as sulteof liquidity visibility and liquidation prefences for the most rec
preferred equity round, in which we did not papate. Consequently, we recognized a $4.0 millidmeethantemporar
impairment charge. In November 2008, Foveon wasiead by an unrelated party and we received nogeds.

A portion of our auction rate securities, or AR®yastments, were converted to auction rate prefesteck, and w
have seen a decline in the credit ratings for gexdfour ARS investments. Accordingly, based om fair value analysis ai
taking into account the period of time the fairuehas been less than our cost. For fiscal 2009edugced the carrying value
our ARS investments by $9.2 million compared with@million for fiscal 2008 through an other-theamporary impairme!
charge to income.

Provision for Income Taxe

The provision for income taxes for fiscal 2009 vagproximately $7.3 million compared with $14xilion for fiscal
2008, reflecting higher prex profits in lower tax rate jurisdictions, paltyaoffset by an increase of valuation allowanckatex
to impairment charges on certain investments. Tikerne tax provision represented estimated fedtnadign, and state tax
for fiscal 2008 and 2009. The effective tax rate fiscal 2009 was approximately 13.1% and diverfredn the combine
federal and state statutory rate, primarily assalteof an increase in profits in lower tax rateigdictions, the incremen
research credits associated with stock option iagtignd the extension of the federal researchitradd taxexempt intere:
income, partially offset by the impact of accougtiior sharesased compensation and foreign withholding taxég. gffectivi
tax rate for fiscal 2008 was approximately 35.5% diverged from the combined federal and stataittat rate primarily as
result of the incremental research credits asstiaith stock option activity and taxempt interest income, partially offset
the impact of impairment losses, foreign withhogfdtaxes, and the accounting for share-based corapens

Tax benefit associated with total shéx@sed compensation was approximately $6.1 millrah$8.0 million for fisce
2008 and 2009, respectively. Excluding the impdaharebased compensation and the related tax benefigftbetive tax rat
for fiscal 2008 and 2009 would have been 35.3%1#ndi%, respectively.
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Quarterly Results of Operations

The following table sets forth our unaudited qudytessults of operations for the eight quarterhia twoyear perio
ended fiscal 2010. You should read the followinlgéan conjunction with the financial statementsl aalated notes contain
elsewhere in this report. We have prepared thisidited information on the same basis as our aufiitegicial statements. Tt
table includes all adjustments, consisting only@fmal recurring adjustments, that we consider sgany for a fair presentati
of our financial position and operating results floe quarters presented. Past operating resultschneecessarily indicative
future operating performance; accordingly, you $thowt draw any conclusions about our future restribm the results

operations for any quarter presented.

Three Months Ended

(in thousands except per share amot Septembe  Decembe March June Septembe  Decembe March June
(unaudited’ 2008 * 2008 * 2009 * 2009 * 2009 2009 2010 2010
Net revenue $ 115,857 $ 141,520 $100,59' $115,32° $ 119,59 $ 133,320 $116,21: $145,76:
Cost of revenu 69,26¢ 83,717 59,88¢ 68,92/ 71,27( 79,49: 68,91( 86,51¢

Gross margit 46,59: 57,80¢ 40,701 46,40: 48,32: 53,83! 47,302 59,247
Operating expense

Research and developme 15,80¢ 15,94( 17,28¢ 18,99t 19,97¢ 22,44; 21,21: 22,92¢

Selling, general, and administrati 14,57( 13,71¢ 12,78¢ 12,94« 13,76¢ 16,57¢ 14,63¢ 15,05

Total operating expens: 30,37t 29,654 30,07z 31,93¢ 33,73¢ 39,015 35,84 37,97¢

Operating incom: 16,21¢ 28,15: 10,63t 14,46« 14,58: 14,81+« 11,45¢ 21,27
Interest incomt 1,25¢ 974 53¢ 452 331 241 20C 20t
Interest expens (2,547 (1,739 (1,379 (1,399 (1,429 (968) (4) (5)
Loss on early retirement of de — (1,059 — — — — — —
Impairment of investmer — — — — (443 — — —
Recovery/(impairment) of auction rate securitie

investment: — (6,509 (2,899 16C — — — —
Income before income tax 14,93t 19,82t 6,90t 13,677 13,04¢ 14,08 11,65! 21,47
Provision for income taxe 2,22 2,25( 1,49¢ 1,29( 3,244 1,86( 45 2,14:
Net income $ 12,717 ¢ 1757¢ $ 540¢ $ 1238 $ 980/ $ 12,227 $ 11,60¢ $ 19,32¢
Net income per shar

Basic $ 03¢ $ 052 $ 01 $ 03¢ $ 02¢ $ 03€ $ 03t $ 0.57

Diluted $ 0.3€ $ 05C $ 01t $ 034 $ 027 $ 03 $ 03 $ 054
Shares used in computing net income per sl

Basic 33,64( 33,83 34,06 34,38¢ 34,34: 33,61! 33,52¢ 33,867

Diluted 35,45¢ 35,057 35,24: 36,34¢ 35,96¢ 34,93¢ 35,09t 35,51«

*  Reflects the retrospective application of the nesoanting pronouncement applicable to convertildbtdnstruments th

can be settled in cas

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our cash, cash equivalents, and shemnt investments, which exclude ARS investmentgevi209.9 million as «
the end of fiscal 2010 compared with $192.0 millemof the end of fiscal 2009, an increase of apprately $17.9 millior
This increase primarily reflected $114.0 millioropided from operating cash flows, $14.0 millionpsbceeds from our share-
based compensation plans, partially offset by $68llon used for the settlement of debt and $4siion used for th
purchase of treasury shares. We consider earningardoreign subsidiaries indefinitely investedeoseas and have made
provision for income or withholding taxes that nragult from a future repatriation of those earnings
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Cash Flows from Operating ActivitieBor fiscal 2010, the net cash provided by operatictiyities of $114.0 millio
was primarily attributable to net income of $53.0lion plus adjustments for non-cash charges, idiclg sharehase
compensation costs of $35.4 million and deprediatiteferred taxes, amortization of debt issuanstscand debt discount, &
impairment of investments, aggregating $4.7 milliand a net increase in net operating liabiliti€s$20.9 million. The n¢
increase in net operating liabilities related prilfiyato an increase in accounts payable of $33Manij partially offset by a
increase in accounts receivable, net of $16.8onilliOur days sales outstanding decreased sligitip 66 to 63 days fro
fiscal 2009 to fiscal 2010 and our inventory tuimsreased from 18 to 19 days for the same periodfigcal 2009, the net ce
provided by operating activities of $81.6 millioragvprimarily attributable to net income of $48.1liom plus adjustments fi
non-cash charges, including shémesed compensation costs of $24.4 million and impait of investments, depreciati
amortization of debt issuance costs and debt digcaoleferred taxes and early retirement of debtegafing $9.1 million. F
fiscal 2008, the net cash provided by operatingviies of $76.4 million was primarily attributableo net income «
$26.4 million plus adjustments for non-cash chargesluding shardsased compensation costs of $17.5 million anc
impairment of an investment, amortization of dedguance costs and debt discount, depreciation,daefetred taxes, a
aggregating $21.2 million, and a net decrease @raijng assets and liabilities of $14.0 millionrtaly offset by a norzast
benefit of $2.7 million on the settlement of deBur days sales outstanding increased slightly fédnmo 66 days from fisc
2008 to fiscal 2009 and our inventory turns incegifom 11 to 18 days for the same peridthe net decrease in operal
assets and liabilities related primarily to a $1mdlion changes in income taxes, which included thceipt of a $10.3 millic
refund.

Cash Flows from Investing ActivitieQur investing activities typically relate to purslea of governmertiacke:
securities and investmegtade fixed income instruments and purchases opgutp and equipment. Investing activi
generated net cash of $15.6 million for fiscal 20422.9 million for fiscal 2009, and $114.7 millidor fiscal 2008. Net ca:
provided by investing activities for fiscal 2010nsisted of proceeds from sales and maturities 8f%gillion for shortterm
investments and $1.8 million in redemptions of AR&stments, partially offset by $9.1 million usfed the purchase of capi
assets and $6.0 million used for the purchase aft$érm investments. Net cash provided by investirtiyiéies for fiscal 200
consisted of proceeds from sales and maturitiegb@f3 million for shorterm investments and $4.9 million in redemptior
ARS investments, partially offset by $25.0 milliosed for the purchase of shtetm investments and $9.3 million used for
purchase of capital assets. Net cash provided bgsting activities for fiscal 2008 consisted of ggeds from sales a
maturities of $294.3 million for short-term invesnis, partially offset by purchases of $172.5 wnillifor shortterm
investments and $7.1 million for purchases of epissets.

Cash Flows from Financing Activitiedlet cash used in financing activities for fiscald80 2009, and 2010 w
$140.7 million, $31.7 million, and $88.8 millionespectively. Our net cash used in financing a@wifor fiscal 2010 wz
primarily attributable to $63.0 million for the netment of debt and $44.5 million for the purchas@ur common stock in tl
open market and $2.4 million used for the paymémtayroll taxes for deferred stock units, partiadfifset by $14.0 million ¢
proceeds from common stock issued under share-lcasepensation plans and $7.1 million from excezdtmefit from share-
based compensation. Our net cash used in finaratigties for fiscal 2009 was primarily attributalto $55.7 million for th
early retirement of debt and $1.8 million used floe payment of payroll taxes for deferred stocktsyrpartially offset b
$16.4 million in proceeds from common stock issueder our sharbased compensation plans and $9.4 million of exta
benefit associated with shabesed compensation. Our financing activities fecdl 2008 primarily related to $165.0 million
the purchase of our common stock in the open markdt$746,000 used for the payment of payroll tdresleferred stoc
units, partially offset by $24.8 million of procesffom common stock issued under our shersed compensation plans
$289,000 of excess tax benefit from share-basegensation.

Common Stock Purchase Program.April 2010, our Board of Directors approved adiional $100 million for th
stock repurchase program, expiring in April 2012nding the current authorization to $420 milligrhe program authorizes
to purchase our common stock in the open markeat privately negotiated transactions, dependingnuparket conditions al
other factors. The number of shares purchasedtantiming of purchases is based on the level ofcaish balances, gene
business and market conditions, and other factochuding alternative investment opportunities. Goom stock purchas
under this program is held as treasury stock. Fagmil 2005 through the end of fiscal 2010, we pasbd 10,871,313 share:
our common stock in the open market for an aggeegast of $281.9 million. Treasury shares purchas@ to August 2¢
2008 were not subject to the stock split on thae did adjusted for the stock split the averaget eosuld be $18.29. As of tl
end of fiscal 2010, we had $138.1 million remainimgler our common stock purchase program, whicirexmn April 2012.

Bank Credit Facility We currently maintain a $40.0 million working cabiline of credit with Wells Fargo Bank. T
Wells Fargo Bank revolving line of credit, whichpépes on September 1, 2011, provides for an intests equal to the prir
lending rate or 250 basis points above LIBOR, ddpenon whether we choose a variable or fixed ra&gpectively. We did n
borrow any amounts under the line of credit duang subsequent to the fiscal year.
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Convertible Senior Subordinated Notda. December 2004, we issued an aggregate of $1Homf 0.75%
Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes maturing Ddm 1, 2024 (the “Notes’ih a private offering pursuant to Rule 14
under the Securities Act. In connection with isguthe Notes, we incurred debt issuance costs & dillion, consistin
primarily of the initial purchasergliscount and costs related to legal, accountind,@mmting. We have purchased and ret
$122.7 million of the Notes leaving $2.3 millionthe Notes outstanding as of the end of fiscal 20&0ch have been classifi
as long-term as the next date noteholders canreegsito repurchase all or a portion of the natdseiyond one year.

$250 Million Shelf RegistrationVe have registered an aggregate of $250 milliocwasimon stock (including tl
associated rights), preferred stock, debt secsyitiiepositary shares, warrants, purchase contrants,units (collective
“securities”) for issuance to raise funds for general corporatmgses, which may include the repayment of indbise
outstanding from time to time, working capital, itapexpenditures, acquisitions, and repurchasesiotommon stock or ott
securities. Securities issued under the shelf tregiisn generally will be freely tradeable afteeithissuance unless held by
affiliate of our company, in which case such shaviisbe subject to the volume and manner of satgrictions of Rule 144.

$100 Million Shelf RegistrationWe have registered an aggregate of $100 milliomashmon stock and preferi
stock for issuance in connection with acquisitiowbjch shares generally will be freely tradeableratheir issuance unc
Rule 145 of the Securities Act unless held by difis€ of the acquired company, in which case ssieares will be subject
the volume and manner of sale restrictions of Ryl

Liquidity and Capital ResourcegVe believe our existing cash and cash equivalemsaaticipated cash flows frc
operating activities will be sufficient to meet amorking capital and other cash requirements dvercburse of at least the n
12 months. Our future capital requirements will @&g on many factors, including our revenue, thengmand extent «
spending to support product development effortstsceelated to protecting our intellectual propetitye expansion of sales ¢
marketing activities, the timing of introduction$ mew products and enhancements to existing prsdticé costs to ensi
access to adequate manufacturing capacity, our constock purchase program, and the amount anddiofiour investmen
in, or acquisitions of, other technologies or conmipa. Further equity or debt financing may not beilable to us on accepta
terms or at all. If sufficient funds are not avhl@or are not available on acceptable terms, bilityato take advantage
unexpected business opportunities or to respordrtpetitive pressures could be limited or sevetelystrained.

Our noneurrent investments consist of ARS investments,ctvhiave failed to settle in auctions. These fag
generally resulted in the interest rates reseftimg LIBOR plus 50 basis points to LIBOR plus 15kt points on the regula
scheduled auction dates. These investments al@uit, and in the event we need to access thasdsfuve will not be able
do so without a loss of principal, unless a futauetion on these investments is successful. Agsoélf 2010 year end, the 1
value of our ARS investments was $28.0 million &ad an original cost basis of $40.7 million. Durfrsgal 2010, $1.8 millio
of our ARS investments were redeemed at par andea@gnized a gain of $6,000 on the redemption, lwhias included i
impairment of investments, net on the accompanyiogsolidated statements of income. In connectioth wur fair valu
analysis for fiscal 2010, we recorded a $0.4 millather-than-temporary impairment charge.

Based on our ability to access our cash and othet-term investments, our expected operating cash flawd ou

other sources of cash, we do not anticipate thk ¢ddiquidity on these investments will affect oability to operate ol
business as usual.

47




Table of Contents

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

The following table sets forth a summary of our eni@ contractual obligations and commercial commeiits as ¢
the end of fiscal 2010 (in millions):

Payments due by peric

Less thar 1-3 35 More thar

Contractual Obligation Total 1 year Years Years 5 Years
Convertible senior subordinated notes $ 3 % — 3 — 3 — 3 3
Leases 7 3 4 — —
Purchase obligations and other commitmi 20 8 6 6 —
Total $ 30 $ 11 ¢ 10 $ 6 $ 3

(1) Represents both principal and interest payablaitirahe maturity date of the underlying contractuidigation.

As of the end of fiscal 2010, we were unable to enakreasonably reliable estimate of when casteswtit with .
taxing authority may occur in connection with ouogs unrecognized tax benefits of $19.0 million.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any transactions, arrangementgher celationships with unconsolidated entitied tr@ reasonab
likely to materially affect our financial conditiphanges in financial condition, revenues or espsnresults of operatio
liquidity, or capital resources. We have no spepiaipose or limited purpose entities that proviffebalance sheet financir
liquidity, or market or credit risk support; engaigeleasing, hedging, or research and developmemntices; or have oth
relationships that expose us to liability thatds reflected in the financial statements.

Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncements

Please see Note 1 of the Notes to Consolidatednh€imaStatements in Part IV, Iltem 15 of this For@KlL for a
discussion of adoption of new accounting pronouresgs

Retrospective application of Accounting for Converible Debt Instruments That May Be Settled in Cash gon
Conversion

Please see Note 1 of the Notes to Consolidatedn€imaStatements in Part IV, Item 15 of this ForOKlL for a
discussion of retrospective application of accaumtior convertible debt instruments that may belesbtin cash upc
conversion.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

Please see Note 1 of the Notes to Consolidatedn€imaStatements in Part IV, Item 15 of this For@KlL for a
discussion of recently issued accounting pronouecesn
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK
Interest rate risk

Our exposure to market risk for changes in interasts relates primarily to our cash and cash edgnvs, and auctic
rate securities. Our current investment portfolmngists primarily of government-backed securitiesl anvestmengrade
instruments, and we would not expect the fair valleur investments to be significantly affecteddianges in market inter
rates; however, our interest income will fluctuatiéh changes in market interest rates. We do netaus investment portfol
for trading or other speculative purposes.

The table below presents principal amounts ande@hlaeighted average interest rates by year of nitvafor our casl
equivalents, investments, and debt obligations #seoend of fiscal 2010 (in thousands, excepbf@rage interest rates):

Fair
Fiscal Year Ended June 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Thereafter Total Value
Assets
Cash equivalent— variable rate
Money marke $20804 $ —$ — % —$ — % — $208,04( $208,04(
Average interest raf 0.17% — — — — — 0.17%
Total cash equivalen $20804 ¢ —$ — % —$ — 3% — $208,04( $208,04(
Average interest rai 0.17% — — — — — 0.17%
Non-current investment $ — $ — % — % —$ — $ 40,70C $ 40,70C $ 28,01:
Average interest raf — — — — — 1.3% 1.3%
Liabilities
Convertible Senior Subordinated No
Fixed rate amouni $ — $ — 3% — % — 3% —$ 2308 $ 2,308 $ 2,30
Average interest rai — — — — — 0.75% 0.75%

Our Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes beaxedficoupon interest rate of 0.75% and mature ireBdser 202«
The Noteholders could require us to repurchase tNetes on December 1, 2014, December 1, 2019 dhénevent of
fundamental change as described in the indenturergimg the Notes. The early repayment of the Nieawmt reflected in tt
preceding schedule.

Our noneurrent investments, which consist of ARS investisehave a par value of $40.7 million and havesthik
settle in auctions beginning in September 2007 s&hevestments are not liquid, and in the evenh®ad to access these ful
we will not be able to do so without a loss of pijral, unless redeemed by the issuers or a futuréom on these investment:
successful. During fiscal 2010, $1.8 million of ARRS investments were redeemed at par and we reza gain of $6,0(
on the redemption of these investments, whichdkided in impairment of investments, net on theoageanying consolidat
statements of income.

As there are currently no active markets for ouiotes failed ARS investments, we have estimatedfdirevalue o
these investments as of the end of fiscal 2010dbasea trinomial discounted cash flow analysis. Bhalysis considere
among other factors:

e the collateral underlying the security investme

e creditworthiness of the counterpar

e timing of expected future cash flow

e the probability of a successful auction in a futpegiod;
e the underlying structure of each investmq

e the present value of future principal and integgyments discounted at rates considered to reflecent marke
conditions;

e consideration of the probabilities of default, pagsa future auction, or redemption at par for epetiod; anc

«  estimates of the recovery rates in the event cludefor each investmer
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When possible, our failed ARS investments were e to other observable market data or securitigssimilal
characteristics. Our estimate of the fair valuewf ARS investments could change materially fromiqaeto period based
future market conditions.

Contractual maturities for our ARS investments geeerally greater than five years, with fair vaafe$9.4 millior
maturing from fiscal 2016 to fiscal 2018, $8.9 mifl maturing from fiscal 2034 to fiscal 2045, an@.Bmillion maturiny
thereafter or having no stated maturity. Of our AR&stments $22.2 million par value are investnggatle; and the remaini
$18.5 million par value are below investment grade.

Based on our ability to access our cash and othet-term investments, our expected operating cash flawd ou
other sources of cash, we do not anticipate thk ¢ddiquidity on these investments will affect oability to operate ol
business as usual.

There have been no significant changes in the iamates and average interest rates for our cqsivaents an
short-term investment portfolio and debt obligai@ubsequent to fiscal 2010.

Foreign currency exchange risk

All of our revenue and approximately 94% of our solidated costs are denominated in U.S. dollarsa Assult, w
have relatively little exposure to foreign currereychange risks and foreign exchange losses hareitrematerial to date. V
do not currently enter into forwamkchange contracts to hedge exposure denominatéoréign currencies or any otl
derivative financial instruments for trading or spkative purposes. In the future, if our operatiohange and we determine
our foreign exchange exposure has increased, wecoresider entering into hedging transactions tagaiié such risk.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Reference is made to the financial statementsggherts of our independent registered public actogtiirm, and th
notes thereto commencing at pagé Bf this report, which financial statements, répoand notes are incorporated herei
reference. Reference is also made to the quanteslylts of operations on page 45 of this reporticiviyuarterly results
operations are incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

Not applicable.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Conclusions Regarding Disclosure Controls and Proderes

Under the supervision and with the participatioroof management, including our Chief Executive €ffiand Chie
Financial Officer, we conducted an evaluation & #ifectiveness of the design and operation ofdclosure controls al
procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and15%el} under the Exchange Act. Based on this evialuabur Chief Executiv
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as of June 2610, concluded that our disclosure controls amtgrures (as defined
Rules 13a-15(e) and 185(e) under the Exchange Act) are effective to enthat information required to be disclosed byn
the reports we file or submit under the Exchangeigcecorded, processed, summarized and repoiitbthvthe time perioc
specified in the SEC rules and forms and that suftlimation is accumulated and communicated toroanagement, includi
our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial 0, as appropriate to allow timely decisions rdgay required disclosure.

50




Table of Contents

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

We are responsible for establishing and maintaisidgquate internal control over financial reporting defined ir
Rules 13a-15(f) and 1585(f) under the Exchange Act. Under the supervigiod with the participation of our managem:
including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Rirtial Officer, we conducted an evaluation of tiffieativeness of ou
internal control over financial reporting based the framework ininternal Control—Integrated Frameworissued by thi
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tremd@ommission. Based on our evaluation under gmadxork inlnternal
Control—Integrated Frameworkour management concluded that our internal cbotrer financial reporting was effective
of June 26, 2010. The effectiveness of our inteowadtrol over financial reporting as of June 261@Mas been audited
KPMG LLP, an independent registered public accagntirm, as stated in its report included hereirpage F-3.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There was no change in our internal control ovearicial reporting during our most recent fiscal rtgrathat ha:
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evélly affect, our internal control over financiaporting.

Inherent Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls

Our management, including our Chief Executive @iffi@nd Chief Financial Officer, does not expectt thar
disclosure controls and procedures or our intecnatrols over financial reporting will prevent aliror and all fraud. A contr
system, no matter how well conceived and operataal,provide only reasonable, not absolute, asseartdrat the objectives
the control system are met. Further, the designafntrol system must reflect the fact that theeerasource constraints, and
benefits of controls must be considered relativéhiir costs. Because of the inherent limitatiomsall control systems, r
evaluation of controls can provide absolute assigrdhat all control issues, misstatements, ereord,instances of fraud, if ar
within our company have been or will be preventedetected. Further, internal controls may becomaeléquate as a result
changes in conditions, or through the deterioratibtihe degree of compliance with policies or prhaes.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

There were no items requiring reporting on Form &#&t were not reported on FornK8during the fourth quarter ¢
the year covered by this Form 10-K.
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PART 1lI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE

The information required by this Item relating tioedtors of our company and corporate governandecisrporate
herein by reference to the definitive Proxy Stateine be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A of thecEange Act for our 20:
Annual Meeting of Stockholders. The informationuiggd by this Item relating to our executive offieés included in Item
“Business — Executive Officers.”

We have adopted a code of ethics that applies itgncipal executive officer, principal financiafficer, and othe
senior accounting personnel. The “Code of Ethigstfie@ CEO and Senior Financial Officens’ located on our website
www.synaptics.com in the Investor Relations sectinder Corporate Governance.

We intend to satisfy the disclosure requirementeuritem 10 of Form & regarding any amendment to, or wa
from, a provision of this code of ethics by postsugh information on our website, at the addresid@ration specified above.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item is incorpadtherein by reference to the definitive Proxy &tan
(particularly under the caption “Executive Compeitsd) to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A of the Exad Act for ou
2010 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this Item is incorp@dtherein by reference to the definitive Proxy &tan
(particularly under the caption “Security OwnersbipPrincipal Stockholders, Directors, and Offi¢gr® be filed pursuant
Regulation 14A of the Exchange Act for our 2010 AahMeeting of Stockholders.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this Item is incorp@dtherein by reference to the definitive Proxy &tan
(particularly under the caption “Certain Relatioipshand Related Transactionst) be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A of
Exchange Act for our 2010 Annual Meeting of Stodklless.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES
The information required by this Item is incorp@dtherein by reference to the definitive Proxy &tan

(particularly under the caption “Participation opgointment of Independent Auditort) be filed pursuant to Regulation 14/
the Exchange Act for our 2010 Annual Meeting ofcRtwlders.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) Financial Statements and Financial Statement &edules

(1) Financial Statements are listed in the Index togobdated Financial Statements on pa-1 of this report

(b) Exhibits

Exhibit

Number Exhibit
3.1 Certificate of Incorporation (1
3.1(b) Certificate of Designation of Series A Junior Rapiating Preferred Stock (.
3.2 Third Amended and Restated Bylaws (amended andtegssas of July 27, 2010) (
3.2 Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Incorption of the registrant (¢

4 Form of Common Stock Certificate (

4(b) Rights Agreement, dated as of August 15, 2002, éetvthe registrant and American Stock Transfer 8sf'r
Company, as Rights Agent (
4(c) Amendment No. 1 to Rights Agreement
4.€ Form of Indenture (14
10.5(a) 1996 Stock Option Plan (
10.5(b) Form of grant agreements for 1996 Stock Option P&
10.t 2000 Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan and form ohtjegreement (7
10.€(a) Amended and Restated 2001 Incentive Compensatam(B amended through January 23, 2007
10.€(b) Form of grant agreements for Amended and Rest&i@tl txcentive Compensation Plan

10.€(c) Form of deferred stock award agreement for AmeradebRestated 2001 Incentive Compensation Plar
10.7%(a) Corrected Amended and Restated 2001 Employee $taahase Plan (as amended through January 23,
2007) (8)
10.¢ 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan (°
10.1¢4 Form of Stock Option Grant and Stock Option Agrertietween the registrant and Francis F. Le«
10.1¢ Form of Stock Option Grant and Stock Option Agreetietween the registrant and Russell J. Knitfe
10.15 Form of Indemnification Agreement entered into wthik following directors and executive officersods

January 28, 2002 with Francis F. Lee, Russell ittédnKeith B. Geeslin, and Richard L. Sanquirg;af

June 26, 2004 with Jeffrey D. Buchanan; as of M&&h2006 with Thomas J. Tiernan; as of September 2
2006; with Hing Chung (Alex) Wong; as of Februafy 2007 with Nelson C. Chan; as of April 2, 200Thwi
Mark N. Vena; as of October 23, 2007 with Jame®/hims; as of January 7, 2008 with David B. Long and
Joseph D. Montalbo; and as of March 2, 2009 witthicen A. Bayless (1

10.1¢ Severance Policy for Principal Executive Officet&)(
10.2( Form of Change of Control and Severance Agreemeted into by Russell J. Knittel as of April 2203
(11)
10.22 Settlement Agreement dated March 31, 2005 by arahgrthe registrant, Alps Electric Co. Ltd., andoDie
Corporation (12) °
10.2: Change of Control Severance Agreement enteredinfthomas Tiernan as of April 3, 2006 (:
21 List of Subsidiarie:
23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing
31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRule 13-14(a)/15«14(a)
31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuawnt Rule 13-14(a)/15«-14(a)
32.1 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive O#fit
32.2 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial O#fit
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(1) Incorporated by reference to the registrant’s FfQ for the quarter ended December 29, 2001, as\iiddthe SEC o
February 21, 200z

(2) Incorporated by reference to the regist's Form A as filed with the SEC on August 16, 20!

(3) Incorporated by reference to the regist's Current Report on Forn-K as filed with the SEC on August 2, 20:
(4) Incorporated by reference to the regist's Current Report on Forn-K as filed with the SEC on December 7, 20
(5) Incorporated by reference to the regist's Form 1K for fiscal 2002, as filed with the SEC on Septemb2, 2002
(6) Incorporated by reference to the regist's Current Report on Forn-K as filed with the SEC on April 24, 20C

(7) Incorporated by reference to the registrant’s tegfion statement on Form S-1 (Registration No.-38826) as filed wit
the SEC on August 17, 2001 and declared effectimeidry 28, 200z

(8) Incorporated by reference to the registrant’'s Fa€Q for the quarter ended September 29, 2007, ab\ilth the SEC ¢
November 8, 200’

(9) Incorporated by reference to the registrant’'s FAGWQ for the quarter ended December 28, 2002, as Vil¢ld SEC ol
February 6, 200:

(10) Incorporated by reference to the registrant’'s Faf for the fiscal year ended June 24, 2006, as fildgti the SEC o
September 7, 200

Incorporated by reference to the regist's Form 1+K for fiscal 2003, as filed with the SEC on Septemb2, 2003
Incorporated by reference to the regist’'s Current Report on Forn-K as filed with the SEC on April 1, 200
Incorporated by reference to the regist’'s Current Report on Forn-K as filed with the SEC on April 3, 200

Incorporated by reference to the registrant’s tegfion statement on Form S-3 (Registration No.-333582) as filed wil
the SEC November 21, 2008 and declared effectivie M2009.

*  Portions of this exhibit have been omitted pursuara confidential treatment request that was gy the Securiti
and Exchange Commission pursuant to Rule-2 of the Exchange Ac

(11
(12
(13
(14

o D D
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 18{dhe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas dul
caused this report to be signed on its behalf bytidersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

SYNAPTICS INCORPORATED
Date August 23, 2010 By: /s/ Thomas J. Tiernar

Thomas J. Tiernat
President and Chief Executive Offic

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bdigvthe
following persons on behalf of the registrant amthie capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

/sl Thomas J. Tiernan President, Chief Executive Officer, and Director ~ August 23, 2010
Thomas J. Tierna

/sl Kathleen A. Bayless Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, August 23, 2010
Kathleen A. Bay|ess Secretary and Treasurer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Office

/sl Francis F. Lee Chairman of the Board August 23, 2010
Francis F. Les

/sl Jeffrey D. Buchanan Director August 23, 2010
Jeffrey D. Buchana

/sl Nelson C. Chan Director August 23, 2010
Nelson C. Chal

/sl Keith B. Geeslin Director August 23, 2010
Keith B. Geeslir

/sl Richard L. Sanquini Director August 23, 2010
Richard L. Sanquir

/sl James L. Whims Director August 23, 2010
James L. Whim
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Synaptics Incorporated:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of Synaptics Incorporated and subsidigie Company) as
June 27, 2009 and June 26, 2010, and the relatesblidated statements of income, stockholdetglity and comprehensi
income, and cash flows for each of the years inthiveeyear period ended June 26, 2010. These consolidatadcial
statements are the responsibility of the Companylanagement. Our responsibility is to express pimian on thes:
consolidated financial statements based on outsaudi

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBoUnited States
Those standards require that we plan and perfoenadidit to obtain reasonable assurance about whbthéinancial statemen
are free of material misstatement. An audit inckudeamining, on a test basis, evidence suppotie@mounts and disclosul
in the financial statements. An audit also includesessing the accounting principles used andfisi@gmi estimates made |
management, as well as evaluating the overall @iishistatement presentation. We believe that oditsuprovide a reasonak
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial stateteereferred to above present fairly, in all matergspects, the financi
position of Synaptics Incorporated and subsidiaai®sf June 27, 2009 and June 26, 2010, and thksres$ their operations ar
their cash flows for each of the years in the thyear period ended June 26, 2010, in conformity WitS. generally accepte
accounting principles.

As discussed in note 1 to the consolidated findrstetements, effective at the beginning of fispahr 2010, the Compai
retrospectively adopted the provisions of AccoumtiBrinciples Board (APB) Opinion No. 4-(included in Financie
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Stadsla&Codification 470-20Debt with Conversion and Other Optiohs
Accounting for Convertible Debt Instruments ThatyMBe Settled in Cash upon Conversion (Including tiBRrCash
Settlement) for all periods presented herein. Also, as disedsn note 1 to the consolidated financial statéme¢he Compan
adopted the provisions of FASB Staff Position NASF115-2 and FAS 124-Recognition and Presentation of Other-Than-
Temporary Impairment8ncluded in FASB ASC Topic 32dnvestments-Debt and Equity Securifieduring fiscal 2009.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Blo@snited States), tr
Company’s internal control over financial reportiag of June 26, 2010, based on criteria establighéaternal Control —
Integrated Frameworlissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatafnthe Treadway Commission (COSO), and
report dated August 23, 2010 expressed an uncaldpinion on the effectiveness of the Comparipternal control ove
financial reporting.

/sl KPMG LLP

Mountain View, California
August 23, 2010
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Synaptics Incorporated:

We have audited Synaptics Incorporated and subigdigthe Company) internal control over financial repatas of June 2
2010, based on criteria establishedlmternal Control — Integrated Frameworiksued by the Committee of Sponso
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSOhaBtics Incorporated’ management is responsible for maintai
effective internal control over financial reportiagd for its assessment of the effectiveness efnat control over financi
reporting, included in the accompanying ManagenseReport on Internal Control over Financial Repagrtappearing und
Item 9A. Our responsibility is to express an opmmn the Compang’ internal control over financial reporting basedaui
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadedof the Public Company Accounting Oversight lo@nited States
Those standards require that we plan and perfoematidit to obtain reasonable assurance about wheffeztive interne
control over financial reporting was maintainechiihmaterial respects. Our audit included obtairdangunderstanding of interi
control over financial reporting, assessing thé& tlsat a material weakness exists, and testingesmatuating the design a
operating effectiveness of internal control basedh® assessed risk. Our audit also included paify such other procedu
as we considered necessary in the circumstancebeidwe that our audit provides a reasonable Basisur opinion.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is aopess designed to provide reasonable assuranceliregahe
reliability of financial reporting and the prepaoat of financial statements for external purposesdécordance with genere
accepted accounting principles. A companiyternal control over financial reporting inclsdhose policies and procedures

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records thate@asonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet titansactions and dispositis
of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasenasdurance that transactions are recorded assagcés permit preparati
of financial statements in accordance with gengraticepted accounting principles, and that receipts expenditures of t
company are being made only in accordance withagiziitions of management and directors of the campand (3) provid
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or tidetlction of unauthorized acquisition, use, opatition of the company’
assets that could have a material effect on ttaniiial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtover financial reporting may not prevent or @étmisstatements. Als
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness utufe periods are subject to the risk that contro&sy become inadequ.
because of changes in conditions, or that the degfreompliance with the policies or procedures metgeriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all mialerespects, effective internal control over fical reporting as of June !
2010, based on criteria establishedlmternal Control — Integrated Frameworiksued by the Committee of Sponso
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@dnited States), tl
consolidated balance sheets of the Company asnef 21, 2009 and June 26, 2010, and the relatedblidaied statements
income, stockholders’ equity and comprehensive imeoand cash flows for each of the years in theethear period ende
June 26, 2010 and our report dated August 23, 2Rpfessed an unqualified opinion on those condelitiinancial statement

/sl KPMG LLP

Mountain View, California
August 23, 2010

F-3




Table of Contents

SYNAPTICS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except par value and share amounts)

June June
2009* 2010
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalel $ 169,03 $  209,85¢
Shor-term investment 22,93 —
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $513%6@D at June 2009 and 2010,
respectively 84,73¢ 101,50¢
Inventories 14,95( 18,66
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 3,094 4,471
Total current asse 294,75: 334,50!
Property and equipment, r 25,43: 25,821
Goodwill 1,927 1,927
Non-current investment 28,76 28,01
Other asset 25,27: 24,41¢

$ 376,15( $ 414,67¢

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS'’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payabl $ 32,21( $ 65,61¢
Accrued compensatic 8,45( 11,33(
Income taxes payab 9,12¢ 10,061
Current deferred tax liabilitie 10,22¢
Other accrued liabilitie 11,81 18,96:
Notes payabli 63,23¢ —
Total current liabilities 135,06( 105,97:
Notes payabli — 2,30¢
Other liabilities 18,48¢ 19,89:

Commitments and contingenci

Stockholder' equity:
Preferred stock
$0.001 par value; 10,000,000 shares authorizedhates issued and outstand — —
Common stock
$0.001 par value; 60,000,000 shares authorize@78311 and 44,891,834 shares
issued, and 34,690,911 and 34,020,521 shares mditsga at June 2009 and

2010, respectivel 44 45
Additional paic-in capital 293,66t 347,76
Less: 9,088,100 and 10,871,313 common treasurgslaidune 2009 and 2010,

respectively, at cos (237,38) (281,93)
Accumulated other comprehensive inca 12¢ 1,51¢
Retained earning 166,15« 219,11¢

Total stockholdel equity 222,60t 286,51:

$ 376,15( $ 414,67¢

*  Reflects the retrospective application of the neaoanting pronouncement applicable to convertildbtdnstruments th
can be settled in cash. See notes 1 a

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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SYNAPTICS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Fiscal
2008* 2009* 2010
Net revenue $ 361,05 $ 473,30. $ 514,89
Cost of revenu 213,60¢ 281,79: 306,18t
Gross margir 147 ,45: 191,50¢ 208,70:
Operating expense
Research and developmt 50,09: 68,02¢ 86,55:
Selling, general, and administrati 48,12¢ 54,01« 60,025
Total operating expens 98,21¢ 122,04( 146,57¢
Operating incom: 49,23: 69,46¢ 62,120
Interest incomt 9,652 3,222 977
Interest expens (9,762 (7,059 (2,400
Gain on settlement of de 2,68¢ — —
Loss on early retirement of de (1,059 —
Impairment of investments, n (10,967) (9,247) (443)
Income before provision for income tay 40,84¢ 55,34 60,257
Provision for income taxe 14,48t 7,26 7,292
Net income $ 26,368 $  48,07¢ $ 52,96t
Net income per shar
Basic® $ 0.7C $ 1.41 $ 1.57
Diluted @ $ 0.67 $ 1.3¢ $ 1.5C
Shares used in computing net income per sl
Basic® 37,661 33,98 33,83¢
Diluted @) 39,36¢ 35,577 35,42:

(1) All share and net income per share amourtsctethe 3-for2 split effected as a stock dividend and paid ogust 29
2008 (see note 1

*  Reflects the retrospective application of the nesoanting pronouncement applicable to convertildbtdnstruments th
can be settled in cash. (See notes 1 an

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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SYNAPTICS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Balance at June 2007, as previously st
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting
principles for convertible del

Balance at June 2007, as adjus
Components of comprehensive incor
Net income
Net unrealized loss on available-for-sale
investments
Total comprehensive incon
Issuance of common stock from option
exercises and stock purchase
Payroll taxes for deferred stock ur
Purchase of treasury sto
Adjustment for non-issuance of stock divide
on treasury share@
Tax benefit associated with sh-based award
Shar«-based compensatic
Balance at June 20(
Components of comprehensive incor
Net income
Net unrealized gain on available-for-sale
investments
Total comprehensive incon
Issuance of common stock from option
exercises and stock purchase
Payroll taxes for deferred stock ur
Tax benefit associated with sh-based award
Shar«-based compensatic
Cumulative effect of accounting chan
Balance at June 20(
Components of comprehensive incor
Net income
Net unrealized gain on available-for-sale
investments
Total comprehensive incon
Issuance of common stock from option
exercises and stock purchase
Payroll taxes for deferred stock ur
Purchase of treasury sto
Tax benefit associated with sh-based award
Shar«-based compensatic
Balance at June 20:

(in thousands, except for share amounts)

Accumulatec

Additional Other Total
Common Stock Issue Paic-in Treasury Comprehensiv ~ Retainec  Stockholder’

Shares) Amount®  Capital* @) Stock Income/(Loss  Earnings* Equity*
42,70593 $ 43 $ 180,730 $ (72,34Y) $ (23¢) $ 99,79t $ 208,08
— — 22,70« — — (10,530 12,17«
42,705,93 43 203,43 (72,34%) (13¢9) 89,26¢ 220,26:
— — — — — 26,36 26,36
— — — — (2,17¢) — (2,179
24,18t
2,544,59 3 24,761 — — — 24,76¢
— — (74€) — — — (74€)
— — — (165,04 — — (165,049
(2,750,00i) 3) 3 — — — —
— — 28¢ — — — 28¢
— — 17,508 — — — 17,50¢
42,500,53 43 245,24 (237,38) (2,319 115,62¢ 121,21
— — — — — 48,07¢ 48,07¢
— — — — 4,89:¢ — 4,89
52,97:
1,278,47 1 16,42¢ — — — 16,427
— — (1,807 — — — (1,807)
— — 9,37¢ — — — 9,37¢
— — 24,42( — — — 24,42(
— — — — (2,445 2,441 —
43,779,01 44 293,66t (237,38) 12¢ 166,15- 222,60t
— — — — — 52,96¢ 52,96¢
— — — — 1,38¢ — 1,38¢
54,35
1,112,82 1 14,03( — — — 14,03:
— — (2,379 — — — (2,379
— — — (44,54%) — — (44,545
— — 7,06¢€ — — — 7,06¢€
— — 35,37¢ — — — 35,37¢
44,891,83 $ 45 $ 347,76: $(281,93) $ 151 $ 219,11¢ $ 286,51

(1) Amounts reflect the-for-2 stock split effected as a stock dividend and paidugust 29, 200¢

(2) The stock dividend was not paid on treasury shaesprdingly, the impact of not issuing the stockidiénd on treasu
shares is reflected above as an adjustment fc-issuance of stock dividend on treasury she

*  Reflects the retrospective application of the nesoanting pronouncement applicable to convertitdbtdnstruments th
can be settled in cash. See notes 1 a

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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SYNAPTICS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Fiscal
2008* 2009* 2010
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income $ 26,36: $  48,07¢ $ 52,96
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating
activities:
Shar-based compensation co 17,50: 24,42( 35,37¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 3,79 6,33¢ 8,671
Impairment of property and equipme 21C — —
Amortization of debt issuance co: 57¢ 36¢ 11€
Amortization of debt discour 8,22 6,02¢ 2,06¢
Tax benefit realized from shi-based compensatic 28¢ 9,37¢ 7,06¢€
Excess tax benefit from shi-based compensatic (289 (9,379 (7,066
Deferred taxe (2,606 (13,916 (6,539
Loss on retirement of de (2,689 1,052 —
Impairment of investments, n 10,96: 9,24: 443
Changes in operating assets and liabilii
Accounts receivable, n (12,647 (15,377 (26,770
Inventories (9,03)) 6,11¢ (3,719
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 577 (359) (12¢)
Other asset 6,371 (6,246 (4,230
Accounts payabl 6,23 4,42¢ 33,40¢
Accrued compensatic 1,13¢ 1,94( 2,88(
Income taxe: 17,42¢ 6,74 2,21¢
Other accrued liabilitie 3,96¢ 2,73¢ 7,23
Net cash provided by operating activit 76,38 81,59 114,00¢
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of shterm investment (172,54 (25,007 (5,98¢)
Proceeds from sales and maturities of «term investment 294,26 52,30( 28,91
Proceeds from sales and maturities of non curremsitment: — 4,90( 1,77¢
Purchases of property and equipm (7,066 (9,310 (9,067
Net cash provided by investing activiti 114,65: 22,88 15,63¢
Cash flows from financing activities
Purchases of treasury stc (165,04 — (44,545
Proceeds from issuance of common stock upon exeofisptions and
stock purchase ple 24,76¢ 16,427 14,03
Retirement of debt, net of discot — (55,656 (62,999
Excess tax benefit from shi-based compensatic 28¢ 9,37¢ 7,06¢
Payroll taxes for deferred stock ur (74€) (1,807) (2,379
Net cash used in financing activiti (140,73 (31,656 (88,820)
Net increase in cash and cash equival 50,30: 72,81¢ 40,82:
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe 45,91¢ 96,21¢ 169,03¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe $ 96,21¢ $ 169,03 $ 209,85¢

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information
Cash paid for taxe 2,67¢ $ 5,01¢ $ 11,78¢

Cash paid for intere: $ 93¢ $ 69z $ 254

@

*  Reflects the retrospective application of the neaoanting pronouncement applicable to convertildbtdnstruments th
can be settled in cash. See notes 1 a



See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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SYNAPTICS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Organization and Basis of Presentation

We are a leading worldwide developer and supplfecustomédesigned user interface solutions that enable petu
interact more easily and intuitively with a wideriedy of mobile computing, communications, entemaént, and oth
electronic devices. We currently target the pers@momputer, or PC, market and the market for didifastyle products
including mobile smartphones and feature phonedaple digital music and video players, and otreded electronic devi
markets with our customized human interface sahsti®ur original equipment manufacturer, or OEMstomers include mc
of the tier one PC OEMs and many of the wazldirgest OEMs for mobile smartphones and feathomg@s and portable digi
music players.

The consolidated financial statements include deirfcial statements and those of our wholly owngldsiliaries. Al
significant intercompany balances and transacti@ve been eliminated upon consolidation.

Our fiscal year is the 52- or 58eek period ending on the last Saturday in June. fEtal years presented in this re
were 52-week periods ended June 28, 2008, JurzdR9, and June 26, 2010.

Stock Split

On July 31, 2008, we announced a 32ostock split to be effected as a stock dividertak $tock dividend was effecti
for stockholders of record on August 15, 2008 arad ywaid on August 29, 2008. All share and per shareunts containt
herein for each period presented prior to the stiiekiend date have been retroactively adjustegflect the stock split, exce
for treasury shares.

Retrospective application of Accounting for Conizet Debt Instruments That May Be Settled in CapbrConversiol

Effective the beginning of our fiscal 2010, we ammbthe accounting standard on accounting for atie deb
instruments that may be settled in cash upon csiorer This standard applies to our 0.75% Convert®énior Subordinat
Notes maturing December 1, 2024 (t‘Notes”). The adoption of this accounting standard, which trrhes applied on
retrospective basis, resulted in a raash interest charge for all periods presenteduirfinancial statements during which
Notes were outstandin

Upon adoption of the new accounting standard, affiictere as of the issuance date of the Notes, a®orde
$39.4 million of the principal amount to equity,presenting the debt discount for the differencewbenh our estimat
nonconvertible debt borrowing rate of 8.5% at iheetof issuance and the 0.75% coupon rate of thedNasing a fiverear life
which coincides with the initial put rights of tiNoteholders. In addition, we allocated the $4.3iamlof debt issuance co
pro-ata to the equity and debt components of the Note$1.4 million and $2.9 million, respectivelyhd debt discount and 1
debt issuance costs allocated to the debt compaevenet amortized as interest expense using theteieinterest method ov
five years, and were fully amortized as of Decen8igr2009. See Note 7.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statesientconformity with U.S. generally accepted acdamg principle:
(“U.S. GAAP") requires us to make estimates and judgments tfedttahe reported amounts of assets, liabilitiesenue
expenses, and related disclosure of contingentsaase liabilities. On an ongoing basis, we evauair estimates, includi
those related to revenue recognition, allowanceadfubtful accounts, inventories, product warrastyarebased compensati
costs, provision for income taxes, deferred incdmeasset valuation allowances, uncertain tax jpost tax contingencie
goodwill, and contingencies. We base our estimatelistorical experience, applicable laws, andoteziother assumptions t
we believe to be reasonable under the circumstaribesresults of which form the basis for makinggments about tl
carrying value of assets and liabilities that aot mreadily apparent from other sources. Actual ltesmay differ from thes
estimates under different assumptions or conditions
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Cash Equivalents and Investments

Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investitsewith original maturities of three months or le&hortterr
investments consist of marketable securities aedckassified as securities “available for salgider U.S. GAAP related
Investments—Debt and Equity Securities. Our shemriatand noreurrent investments are reported at fair valueh witrealize
gains and losses excluded from earnings and sheparately as a component of accumulated other arepsive incon
within stockholders’ equity. We charge an othemthemporary decline in the fair value of a debt sigup earnings if th
decline is due to a credit loss or to other com@nsive income if the decline is due to a noncrémlis, resulting in tt
establishment of a new cost basis for the debtrdgciWe charge other-thatlemporary declines in the fair value of eq
securities to earnings. We include interest eanredharketable securities in interest income. Werdghe realized gains a
losses on the sale of marketable securities ubmgpecific identification method.

Investments in available-farale securities and cash equivalents as of thegfisical 2009 and 2010 were as follows

thousands):

Money marke
Commercial pape
U.S. Treasury bill:
Municipal securitie:
Auction rate securitie

Total availabl-for-sale securitie

Money marke
Auction rate securitie

Total availabl-for-sale securitie

2009
Gross Gross Estimatec
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
$ 166,33 $ — $ — $ 166,33
2,59¢ — — 2,59¢
7,992 3 — 7,99¢
12,89¢ 43 — 12,941
28,71°¢ 52 — 28,761
$ 218,53 $ 98 $ — $ 218,63!
2010
Gross Gross Estimatec
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
$ 208,04( $ — $ — $ 208,04(
26,497 1,51F — 28,017
$ 234,53 $ 1,51¢ $ — $ 236,05:

Weighted average interest rates, amortized costb.eatimated fair values of short-term availablesfale securities al
cash equivalents by contractual maturity as okt of fiscal 2009 and 2010 were as follows (irugends):

2009 2010

Weightec Weightec

Average Estimates Average Estimatel
Interest Amortizec Fair Interest Amortizec Fair
Rate Cost Value Rate Cost Value

Less than one ye: 0.6 $ 189,82. $189,86¢ 0.2% $ 208,04(  $208,04(
Due in 1- 2 years — — — —
Total $ 189,82: $ 189,86¢ $ 208,04( $ 208,04(
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Fair Values of Cash Equivalents and Investm:

We measure financial assets at fair value. We lhus&JtS. GAAP framework for measuring fair valueeithmer a recurrin
or nonrecurring basis in which inputs, used in gtibn techniques, are assigned a hierarchical Evébllows:

* Level 1: Observable inputs that reflect quotedgwifunadjusted) for identical assets or liabilitteactive markets

* Level 2: Inputs reflect quoted prices for identieakets or liabilities in markets that are notvagtgquoted prices f
similar assets or liabilities in active marketsputs other than quoted prices that are observalrl¢hk assets
liabilities; or inputs that are derived principaftpm or corroborated by observable market datadiyelation or othe
means

* Level 3: Unobservable inputs reflecting our ownuasgtions incorporated in valuation techniques usedetermin
fair value. These assumptions must be consisteiit market participant assumptions that are readpratailable
Our Level 3 assets consist of non-current auctie securities (“ARS”)nvestments. We estimated the fair valu
our ARS investments based on the following: (i) timelerlying structure of each investment; (ii) gresent value
future principal and interest payments discountédraies considered to reflect current market caooratt
(i) consideration of the probabilities of defauftassing a future auction, or repurchase at paedch period; ar
(iv) estimates of the recovery rates in the evéuedault for each investment. See Not— Auction Rate Securitie:

Financial assets measured at fair value on a rieguipasis, by level within the fair value hierarclag of the end of fisc
2009 and 2010 were as follows (in thousands):

2009 2010
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 3
Money marke $ 166,33 $ — $ — $ 208,04 $ —
Commercial pape — 2,59¢ — — —
U.S. Treasury bill: — 7,99¢ — — —
Municipal securitie: — 12,94 — —
Auction rate securitie — — 28,76 — 28,01:

Total availabl-for-sale securitie $ 166,33 $ 23,53¢ $ 28,761 $ 208,04( $ 28,01:

Money market balances are included in cash and egatvalents as of the end of fiscal 2010. Comnaénmaper, U.<
Treasury bills, and municipal securities are ineldidn cash and cash equivalents and sieont- investments as of the enc
fiscal 2009. ARS investments are included in warrent investments as of the end of fiscal 2008 2010. There were
Level 2 financial assets as of the end of fiscdl®®0

Changes in fair value of our Level 3 financial as$em the end of fiscal 2008 to the end of fis2@10 were as follows (

thousands):

Balance as of June 20 $  37,94¢
Net change in other comprehensive income from L8Vfglancial assel 4,96¢
Other than temporary impairment, | (9,247)
Redemption: (4,900
Balance as of June 20! 28,767
Net change in other comprehensive income from L&v@lancial assel 1,467
Other than temporary impairment, | (443
Redemption: (1,77%)
Balance as of June 20 $ 28,01

There were no transfers in or out of our Level by 3 assets during fiscal 2009 or 2010.
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The fair values of our cash equivalents, accouetgivable, accounts payable, and accrued lialsildgigproximate the
carrying values because of the short-term naturthage instruments. We base the fair value of sieom investments ¢
current trading values and the fair value of ourSAIRvestments on a discounted cash flow model. ¥ée lthe fair value of ¢
notes payable on trading values as of the end iofiszal year.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject asconcentrations of credit risk consist primarilfy @ash equivalent
investments, and trade accounts receivable. Owstment policy, which is predicated on capital ereation and liquidity
limits investments to U.S. government treasuried agency issues, taxable securities, and munitgakd securities with
minimum rating of A1 (Moody’s) or P1 (Standard aRdor’s) or equivalent. Included within our investmenttfmio are
investments in ARS investments, which met our itmest guidelines at the time of our investment. @RS investments a
currently not liquid as a result of continued aoigtfailures. If the issuers are not able to meeir thayment obligations or if v
sell our ARS investments before they recover, wg taae some or all of our principal invested or nieyrequired to furth
reduce the carrying value. We do not intend toa@llARS investments for less than par value.

We sell our products primarily to contract manufiaets that provide manufacturing services to OEWs. extend crec
based on an evaluation of a custormdinancial condition, and we generally do not iegjeollateral. To date, credit losses
our accounts receivable have been insignificand, we believe that an adequate allowance for dollbifaounts has be
provided.

The following customers accounted for more than f%ur accounts receivable balance as the endbscdlf2009 an
2010:

2009 2010
Customer A 11% 15%
Customer E * 15%
Customer C 20% *
Customer C 11% *
Customer E 10% *

* Less than 109
Other Concentrations

Our products include certain components that areently single sourced. We believe other vendorsildidoe able t
provide similar components; however, the qualifmatof such vendors may require stapt-time. In order to mitigate a
adverse impacts from a disruption of supply, werafit to maintain an adequate supply of criticaylgirsourced components.

Revenue Recognitic

We recognize revenue from product sales when tleggersuasive evidence that an arrangement existery ha
occurred and title has transferred, the price xedior determinable, and collection is reasonalslsused. We accrue |
estimated sales returns and other allowances, lmaski$torical experience, at the time we recogréxenue.

Allowance for Doubtful Accoun

We maintain allowances for doubtful accounts famested losses resulting from the inability of @mers to meet the
financial obligations. On an ongoing basis, we eatd the collectibility of accounts receivable lthem a combination
factors. In circumstances in which we are awara epecific customes’ potential inability to meet its financial obliga, we
record a specific reserve of the bad debt agaimsuats due. In addition, we make judgments andnastis on the collectibili
of accounts receivable based on our historicaldedad experience, customerseditworthiness, current economic trends, re
changes in customers’ payment trends, and detédoran the customes operating results or financial position.
circumstances change adversely, additional badallelstances may be required.
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Changes in our allowances for doubtful accountdisoal 2009 and 2010 were as follows (in thousgnds

2009 2010
Beginning allowance for doubtful accoul $ 53¢ $ 51z
Additions charged to expen 4 7
Adjustments to resen (30) (20)
Ending allowance for doubtful accou $ 512 $ 50C

Cost of Revenue

Our cost of revenue includes the cost of produeiisped to our customers, which primarily includes tost of produc
built to our specifications by our contract mant@ers, the cost of silicon wafers supplied by peledent wafer foundries, €
the related assembly, package, and test costsrai®@and packaged ASICs. Also included in our aisevenue are person
and related costs, including shdr@sed compensation, for quality assurance and metuming support; logistics cos
depreciation of equipment supporting manufacturlicgnse amortization; provisions for excess ansotdie inventories; al
warranty costs.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (finsfirst-out method) or market (estimated net realizablee)aas of the et
of fiscal 2009 and 2010 and consisted of the faihg(in thousands):

2009 2010
Raw materials $ 9,217 $ 12,251
Finished good 5,73: 6,41¢€

$ 14,95( $ 18,66

Periodically, we purchase inventory from our coctrenanufacturers when a customer delays its dgligehedule ¢
cancels its order. In those circumstances in wioich customer has cancelled its order and we puechmgntory from ot
contract manufacturers, we consider a wditsvn to reduce the carrying value of the inventouychased to its net realiza
value. We charge write-downs to reduce the carryaige of obsolete, slow moving, and nasable inventory to net realiza
value to cost of revenue. The effect of these widens is to establish a new cost basis in theeglatventory, which we ¢
not subsequently write up.

Property and Equipmel

We state property and equipment at cost less adatmdudepreciation and amortization. We computaei2ation usin
the straightine method over the estimated useful lives ofdksets. We apply estimated useful lives of threset@n years
our computer equipment and software; estimatedulbeés ranging from one to five years to our mfaeturing equipment;
estimated useful life of three to five years to umniture and fixtures; and an estimated usefel &if 35 years to our buildin
We amortize leasehold improvements over the shoftdre lease term or the useful life of the asBet.fiscal 2009 and 201
we retired fully depreciated equipment and furratwith an original cost of $6.8 million and zerespectively.

Foreign Currency Translatio

The U.S. dollar is our functional and reportingrenicy. We remeasure our monetary assets and fiebiliot denominatt
in the functional currency into U.S. dollar equimatls at the rate of exchange in effect on the lbalaheet date. We measure
record nonmonetary balance sheet accounts at the histoataim effect at the date of translation. All of oevenue and all b
6% of our consolidated costs are denominated in dofars. We translate certain expenses at thghted average exchar
rate in the month that the transaction occurregné&@surement of monetary assets and liabilitiesatteahot denominated in
functional currency are included currently in opierg results. Translation losses included in opegatesults for fiscal 200
2009, and 2010 were not material. To date, we hat@indertaken hedging transactions related tagoreurrency exposure.
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Goodwill

We review the carrying value of goodwill at leashaally for impairment as of the fiscal year enthbae sheet date. T
frequency of our review is dictated by events acarges in circumstances indicating that the carrymlge may be impaire
Based on our latest review, we determined therensampairment of the carrying value of goodwill.

Impairment of Lon-Lived Assets

We evaluate londjved assets, such as property and equipment @adgible assets subject to amortization, for impair
whenever events or changes in circumstances irdtbat the carrying value of an asset may not beverable. We meast
recoverability of assets to be held and used byraparison of the carrying amount of an assettimated undiscounted futt
cash flows expected to be generated by the asghe tarrying amount of the asset exceeds itsnastid undiscounted futt
cash flows, we recognize an impairment charge iaraaunt by which the carrying amount of the asgeteds the fair value
the asset. Assets to be disposed of would be gepapaesented in the consolidated balance shakteported at the lower
the carrying amount or fair value less costs tg aeld would no longer be depreciated. The assetdiabilities of a dispose
group classified as held for sale would be presesgparately in the appropriate asset and lialsligtions of the consolida
balance sheet. There were no events during thal ffear that would trigger an impairment of ourddived assets.

Segment Information

We operate in one segment: the development, magketnd sale of intuitive user interface solutiforselectronic device
and products.

Share-Based Compensation Costs

We utilize the Black-Scholes option pricing model ¢stimate the grant date fair value of employearesbase:
compensatory awards, which requires the input gifilfisubjective assumptions, including expectedtility and expected lif
Historical and implied volatilities were used irtisgating the fair value of our shabased awards, while the expected life
our options was estimated based on historical &resimace our initial public offering. Changes indhdnputs and assumptic
can materially affect the measure of estimatedviaine of our sharbased compensation. Further, we estimate forfeittm
sharebased awards that are not expected to vest. Wegelestimated fair value less estimated forfeituoesarnings on
straightline basis over the vesting period of the undedyawards, which is generally four years for ourcktoption an
deferred stock unit (“DSU”) awards and up to twangefor our employee stock purchase plan.

Product Warrantie:

We generally warrant our products for a period ®fndonths or more from the date of sale and estiatbable produ
warranty costs at the time we recognize revenuetoFathat affect our warranty liability includestorical and anticipated ra
of warranty claims, materials usage, rework, arlivelsy costs. Warranty costs incurred have not bmeaiterial in recent yea
However, we assess the adequacy of our warranigadioins periodically and adjust the accrued wayréiability on the basi
of our estimates.

Changes in our warranty liability (included in otheccrued liabilities) for fiscal 2009 and 2010 weas follows (i

thousands):
2009 2010
Beginning accrued warran $ 39C $ 692
Provision for product warranti 1,604 3,98¢
Cost of warranty claims and settleme (1,307) (2,587%)
Ending accrued warran $ 692 $ 2,09¢
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Comprehensive Income

Our comprehensive income generally consists of inebme plus the effect of unrealized gains and dssen oL
investments primarily due to reductions in markaiue of certain of our ARS investments and interatd fluctuations on o
fixed interest rate investments. In addition, weognize the noncredit portion of other-th@mporary impairment
comprehensive income. The U.S. dollar is the fameti currency of our foreign entities. We recognizeneasureme
adjustments in our consolidated statement of income

Income Taxe

We account for income taxes under the asset ahilitifamethod. We recognize deferred tax assets lmfulities for the
future tax consequences attributable to differertoetsveen the financial statement carrying amoufitexisting assets a
liabilities and their respective tax bases and ajreg loss and tax credit carryforwards. We measigferred tax assets ¢
liabilities using enacted tax rates expected tdyapp taxable income in the years in which thosmperary differences a
expected to be recovered or settled. We recoghieeetfect on deferred tax assets and liabilities @hange in tax rates
income in the period that includes the enactmetd.d&le establish valuation allowances when necgdsareduce deferred t
assets to the amounts expected to be realized.oh&der the operating earnings of our foreign gibges to be indefinite
invested outside the United States. Accordinglypravision has been made for the U.S. federale statforeign taxes that m
result from future remittances of undistributednéags of our foreign subsidiaries.

We use a twestep approach to recognizing and measuring unoddaipositions. The first step is to determine tbe it
is more-likely-thannot that a tax position will be sustained upon exation, including resolution of any related apgeal
litigation processes. The second step is to medbkeréax benefit as the largest amount that is rtiveie 50% likely of bein
realized upon ultimate settlement with a taxinghatity. The calculation of tax liabilities involvesignificant judgment |
estimating the impact of uncertainties in the aggilon of highly complex tax laws. Resolution ofske uncertainties in
manner inconsistent with our expectations couldehavmaterial impact on our consolidated financiasijon, results ¢
operations, and cash flows. We believe we haveustety provided for reasonably foreseeable outcamesnnection with tr
resolution of income tax uncertainties. Howeven, msults have in the past, and could in the fyturelude favorable ar
unfavorable adjustments to our estimated tax li#dsl in the period a determination of such estedatax liability is made «
resolved, upon the filing of an amended return,;up@hange in facts, circumstances, or interpmtatir upon the expiration
a statute of limitation. Accordingly, our effectitax rate could fluctuate materially from periodpriod.

Research and Developme

We expense costs to develop our products, whidhdeahe costs incurred to design interface sahstior customers pri
to the customers incorporating those solutions tinéir products.

Net Income Per Sha

Basic net income per share amounts for each periesented have been computed using the weightedge/aumber «
shares of common stock outstanding.

Diluted net income per share amounts for each gepi@sented have been computed (1) using the vesighverag
number of potentially dilutive shares issuable ammection with our shareased compensation plans under the treasury
method, and (2) using the weighted average numbeptentially dilutive shares issuable in connegtigith our convertibl
debt under the treasury stock method, when dilutive

Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncements and Rigdesued Accounting Pronounceme

In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standardsr8a“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 168,The FASB Accountin
Standards Codificatiof™ and the Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accountirgiciples, a replacement of FASB Stater
No. 162" (“ASC”). ASC, which was launched on July 1, 2009, becameitigle source of authoritative nongovernmental.
GAAP, superseding existing FASB, American InstitafeCertified Public Accountants (AICPA), Emergitgsues Task For
(EITF), and related literature. ASC eliminates tBAAP hierarchy contained in SFAS No. 162 and eihbt one level |
authoritative U.S. GAAP. All other literature isrsidered norauthoritative. ASC was effective for financial staients issue
for interim and annual periods ending after Sepwmis, 2009. We adopted ASC in our first quarteiisufal 2010.
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Effective the beginning of our fiscal 2010, we adajthe accounting standard on the fair value agtio all nonfinancia
assets and nofinancial liabilities. The adoption of this accoingy standard did not have a material impact oncmmsolidate
financial position, results of operations, or cfletws.

In the third quarter of our fiscal 2010, we adoptieel accounting standard on fair value measurensmislisclosures wi
respect to improving disclosures about fair valueasurements. The accounting standard requires mesloslires abo
transfers into and out of Levels 1 and 2 and sépat@closures about purchases, sales, issuamsettlements relating
Level 3 measurements. It also clarifies existinig ¥alue disclosures about the level of disaggregaand about inputs a
valuation techniques used to measure fair valuiecEye in our fiscal year 2012, we will have tooatl the disclosures ab
purchases, sales, issuances, and settlementsigelatievel 3 measurements. Other than requirirdjtiadal disclosures, ti
adoption of this new standard did not have a malteripact on our consolidated financial positicesults of operations, or ci
flows.

2. Gain from Settlement of Debt and Impairment of hvestment
Gain from Settlement of Debt

In fiscal 1998, we entered into agreements withidwal Semiconductor Corporation (“Nationaklith respect to tt
formation of a developmerstage company, Foveonics, Inc. (subsequently knasviroveon, Inc. and referred to herei
Foveon), which was formed to develop and produgé&aliimaging products. We contributed technology Which we had r
accounting basis for a 30% interest in Foveon enftirm of voting convertible preferred stock. Untlee agreements, we |
the right to acquire additional shares of convéetireferred stock at a specified price in exchafoge limitedfecourse loa
from National. National loaned us $1.5 million undenonrecourse 6% interest bearing note, which we utlize purchas
900,000 Series A preferred shares of Foveon, wihimieased our ownership interest in Foveon to 43%.

In fiscal 1998, we recorded our share of lossesried by Foveon under the equity accounting methothe basis of o
proportionate ownership of voting convertible pregd stock and reduced the carrying value of ouitgdnvestment to zero
our share of losses incurred by Foveon exceededahging value of our investment. The $1.5 millioote to National plt
accrued interest of $1.2 million came due in Aud@®d7, and, in accordance with the security agreénee surrendered c
900,000 Series A preferred shares securing the twotiational in full settlement of the principal caraccrued intere:
Consequently, we recognized a non-operating gaom spttiement of debt in the amount of $2.7 millierfiscal 2008.

Impairment of Investme

In fiscal 2005, we participated in an equity finemgg receiving 3,943,217 shares of Foveon Seripsefferred stock for
cash investment of $4.0 million. Our chairman anfdraner member of our board of directors were doecof Foveon. Tt
Series E preferred shares were convertible intonsomshares on a one-fone basis at any time at our option, upon a
underwritten public offering of Foveon common stadhot less than $20 million at a price per shafreot less than three tirr
the original issue price, or upon the written agreet of the holders of at least 60% of the outstapgreferred shares voting
a single class. The Series E preferred sharesalsweentitled to a liquidation preference up to twmaes the original issue pri
over the earlier noseries E preferred shares and common shares. We na¢robligated to provide additional funding
Foveon. We accounted for our Series E preferredksitovestment in Foveon under the cost method oom@ance with tt
accounting standards because the investment Isnastibstance common stock.”

In fiscal 2007, Foveon completed a Series F pretefinancing receiving net proceeds of $13.8 millidhe Series
preferred shareholders are entitled to a liquidagiceference over the earlier non-Series F praefeshares and common shares.

In September 2007, we determined there was an-tlthatemporary impairment of the carrying value of awdstmer
in Foveon, due to liquidity visibility and liquidah preferences for the most recent preferred gqoiind. Consequently, \
recognized a $4.0 million other-thaéemporary impairment charge included in impairmefit investments, net on t
accompanying consolidated statements of incom&lovember 2008, Foveon was sold to an unrelated,pand we receive
no proceeds.
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3. Net Income Per Share

The computation of basic and diluted net incomegbarre for fiscal 2008, 2009 and 2010 was as fa@l@w thousand
except per share amounts):

2008 2009 2010

Numerator:

Net income $ 26,36: $ 48,07¢ $ 52,96¢
Denominator

Shares, basi 37,66 33,98: 33,83¢

Effect of dilutive shar-based award 1,69¢ 1,59¢ 1,581

Shares, dilute: 39,36¢ 35,577 35,42:
Net income per shar

Basic $ 0.7C $ 1.41 $ 1.57

Diluted $ 0.67 $ 1.3¢ $ 1.5C

Diluted net income per share does not include ffeeteof sharebased awards for fiscal 2008, 2009, and 2010 s
(in thousands):

2008 2009 2010
Shar-based award 1,50¢ 2,55¢ 3,46¢

These sharbased awards were not included in the computatfodiloted net income per share because the pro
received, if any, from such shabased awards combined with the average unamortiaetgpensation costs adjusted for
hypothetical tax benefit or deficiency creditablechargeable, respectively, to additional paidapital, were greater than
average market price of our common stock, and thexgetheir effect would have been antidilutive.

Our basic net income per share amounts for eadbdpopresented have been computed using the weigivighge numb
of shares of common stock outstanding. Our dilutetl income per share amounts for each period piexbanclude th
weighted average effect of potentially dilutive sdsa We used the “treasury stoakiethod to determine the dilutive effec
our stock options, DSUs, and convertible notes.ddrtle treasury stock method, shares associatédowit convertible not
are included in the calculation of diluted net immper share only if the weighted average priceunfcommon stock excee
$33.69 during the reporting period.

4. Auction Rate Securities

Our ARS investments, which are included in romrent investments, have a par value of $40.7anijlland have failed
settle in auctions beginning in September 2007 s&hevestments are not liquid, and in the evenh®ad to access these ful
we will not be able to do so without a loss of pijral, unless redeemed by the issuers or a futurom on these investment:
successful. During fiscal 2008, 2009, and 20103 #iillion, $4.9 million, and $1.8 million, respeatly, of our ARS
investments were redeemed at par, and we recogaigaih of zero, $160,000, and $6,000, respectivaiythe redemption
these investments, which is included in impairn@nihvestments, net on the accompanying consolitlstiétements of income.

As there are currently no active markets for ouious failed ARS investments, we have estimateddirevalue of thes
investments as of the end of fiscal 2010 based timamial discounted cash flow analysis. The asialtonsidered, amo
others, the following factors:

« the collateral underlying the security investme

« creditworthiness of the counterpar

«  timing of expected future cash flow

e the probability of a successful auction in a futpegiod;
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e the underlying structure of each investmi

« the present value of future principal and integgsyments discounted at rates considered to reflecent marke
conditions;

»  consideration of the probabilities of default, pags future auction, or redemption at par for epefiod; anc
«  estimates of the recovery rates in the event cludefor each investmer

When possible, our failed ARS investments were amegh to other observable market data or secuntiéis similai
characteristics. Our estimate of the fair valuowf ARS investments could change materially fromiqaeto period based
future market conditions.

Contractual maturities for our ARS investments gemerally greater than five years, with fair valkfe$9.4 millior
maturing from 2015 to 2017, $8.9 million maturimgrh 2034 to 2045, and $9.7 million maturing theterabr having no stat
maturity. Of our ARS investments, $22.2 million aneestment grade; and the remaining $18.5 millian value are belc
investment grade. In connection with our fair valumlysis for fiscal 2008, 2009, and 2010, we réedra $7.0 million, $9.
million and $443,000 other-than-temporary impairtngrarges.

In connection with our adoption of the accountitenslard, as of April 1, 2009, we reclassified $illion from retaine:
earnings to accumulated other comprehensive indonreflect the cumulative effect adjustment as e beginning of tt
period of adoption to reclassify the noncredit comgnt of a previously recognized other-than-tempoirapairment.

The various types of failed ARS investments we tagdf the end of fiscal 2010, including the or@inost basis, other-
than-temporary impairment included in other compredive income, other-thaemporary impairment included in retail
earnings, new cost basis, unrealized gain, and/éhire consisted of the following (in thousands):

Cumulative Othe-thar-
temporary Impairmer

Included Included
Original in Other in New
Cost Comprehensiv Retainec Cost Unrealizet Fair
Basis Income Earnings Basis Gain Value
Student loan: $ 955 $ 617 $ 26z $ 8671 $ 251 $ 8,92
Closed end municipal and
corporate fund 10,65( 1,112 93 9,44¢ 29¢ 9,73¢
Credit linked note: 13,50( 15€ 8,76t 4,57¢ 2,952 7,531
Preferred stoc 5,00( — 5,00( — — —
Municipals 2,00( 203 83 1,71¢ 107 1,821
Total ARS $ 40,70 $ 2,08t $ 14200 $ 24,40¢ $ 3,60: $ 28,01:
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The various types of failed ARS investments we taeddf the end of fiscal 2009, including the or&inost basis, other-
than-temporary impairment included in other compredive income, other-thaemporary impairment included in retai
earnings, new cost basis, unrealized gain, and/&hire consisted of the following (in thousands):

Cumulative Othe-thar-
temporary Impairmer

Included Included
Original in Other in New
Cost Comprehensiv Retainec Cost Unrealizet Fair
Basis Income Earnings Basis Gain Value
Student loan: $ 990C $ 64z $ 26z $ 89% $ 23¢  $ 9,23t
Closed end municipal and
corporate fund 12,07t 1,25¢ 99 10,72( 23¢ 10,95¢
Credit linked note: 13,50( 15€ 8,76t 4,57¢ 1,77¢ 6,35¢
Preferred stoc 5,00( — 4,551 44¢ — 44¢
Municipals 2,00( 203 83 1,71¢ 57 1,771
Total ARS $ 42478  $ 2257 $ 13,76( $ 26,45¢ $ 2,30¢ $ 28,76

We have accounted for all of our ARS investmentsascurrent as we are not able to reasonably deterwiires the AR:
markets will recover or be restructured. Based wnability to access our cash and other skems investments, our expec
operating cash flows, and our other sources of,cashhave the intent and ability to hold these &treents until the val
recovers or the investments mature. We will coriba monitor our ARS investments and evaluate @gpanting for thes
investments quarterly. Subsequent to recordingrdtitentemporary impairment charges, certain of our AR&#tments hay
increased in value above their new cost basesthasdncrease is included as unrealized gain alaowkin accumulated ott
comprehensive income in the accompanying conselitlhalance sheet.

5. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment as of the end of fiscal 20@92010 consisted of the following (in thousands)

Life 2009 2010

Land — $ 2,50( $ 2,50C
Building and building improvemen 35 years 10,82: 10,83¢
Equipment, tooling and leasehold improveme 1 year to 5 year 15,65¢ 22,66¢
Furniture 3 years to 5 yeal 357 482
Capitalized softwar 3 years to 7 yeal 7,80¢ 9,591

37,14 46,077
Accumulated depreciation and amortizat (11,717) (20,256)
Property and equipment, r $ 25,43 $ 25,821

6. Leases, Other Commitments, and Contingencies
Lease:

We maintain office facilities in various locationsider operating leases with expiration dates frmwaf 2011 to 201
some of which have renewal options of two to thyears. Our leased office facilities are locatedCimna, Finland, Jape

Korea, Switzerland, Taiwan, and the United Stafedal rent expense, recognized on a straligiet-basis, was approximat:
$1.0 million, $2.4 million, and $3.4 million fordcal 2008, 2009, and 2010, respectively.
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The aggregate future minimum rental commitmentsfathe end of fiscal 2010 for noncancelable opetateases wit
initial or remaining terms in excess of one yearenas follows (in thousands):

Operating
Lease
Fiscal Yeal Payment:
2011 $ 2,892
2012 2,31¢
2013 1,70C
2014 48t
Total minimum operating lease payme $ 7,39¢

Contingencies

We may receive notices from third parties thatralaur products infringe their rights. From timetitne, we receive notit
from third parties alleging infringement of theitellectual property rights. We cannot be cert&iat tour technologies a
products do not and will not infringe issued pasemt other proprietary rights of third parties.

Any infringement claims, with or without merit, dduresult in significant litigation costs and digam of management a
financial resources, including the payment of daesagvhich could have a material adverse effect nbasiness, financi
condition, and results of operations. In Octobeéd®0we entered into a settlement and clwssise agreement with
competitor, which settled all disputes betweenpghgies and granted each party irrevocable, narstesable, norassignable
non-exclusive, worldwide rights to certain patents otregir remaining lives. The impact of the settletmeas not material -
our financial results and is not expected to haweaterial impact on our future results of operagionfinancial position.

Indemnifications

In connection with certain thirgarty agreements we have executed in the pastreveldigated to indemnify the th
party in connection with any technology infringerhéy us. We have also entered into indemnificaBgneements with o
officers and directors. Maximum potential futureypeents cannot be estimated because these agreedwemist have
maximum stated liability. However, historical cosédated to these indemnification provisions hawe lmeen significant. W
have not recorded any liability in our consolidatiedncial statements for such indemnification gations.

Line of Credit

We have an unsecured $40 million working capita lof credit with Wells Fargo Bank. The Wells Faignk revolving
line of credit, which expires on September 1, 2015 an interest rate equal to the prime lenditgyaa250 basis points abc
LIBOR, depending on whether we choose a variableced rate, respectively. We did not borrow anyoamts under the line
credit during fiscal 2010.

7. Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes

In December 2004, we issued an aggregate of $16mdf Notes in a private offering pursuant tol®a44A under tr
Securities Act of 1933, as amended. In connectigh igsuing the Notes, we incurred debt issuancescof $4.3 millior
consisting primarily of the initial purchaserdiscount and costs related to legal, accounting, aimting. We used the r
proceeds for working capital and general corpopatposes.

During the second quarter of fiscal 2009, we repased and retired $59.7 million of our outstandilages at a discount
approximately 7%, which resulted in a $1.1 millioet loss on retirement of debt after deductingabgociated unamortiz
debt discount and debt issuance costs. In Dece? i, we repurchased and retired $63.0 millionvadwe of our Notes whi
investors exercised their rights to require usefmurchase their Notes. Accordingly, as of the drfiscal 2010, $2.3 million pi
value of our Notes remained outstanding and haea lotassified as lonterm as the next date Noteholders can require
repurchase all or a portion of their Notes is b&yone year.
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Interest expense includes the amortization of déatount and debt issuance costs. For fiscal 22089, and 2010, v
recorded interest expense of $9.8 million, $7.1iom| and $2.4 million, respectively, on the Notés. of December 31, 20(
the discount and debt issuance costs were fullyrgred, and as of the end of fiscal 2010, the ifivated value of the Not
did not exceed the principal amount of the Notes.

During the first quarter of fiscal 2010, we adoptkd accounting standard on convertible debt thathe settled in ca:
The adoption of this accounting standard, whichtrbesapplied on a retrospective basis, resultsnarecash interest charge
all periods presented in our financial statementsnd which the Notes were outstanding. This stashdaquires issuers
convertible notes that can be settled in cash parsg¢ely account for the liability and equity compats of such convertik
notes in a manner that reflects the engitponconvertible debt borrowing rate. Prior to #pplication of the standard,
liability of the Notes was carried at their paru@l and only the contractual interest and amoitiaadf debt issuance costs w
recognized in our condensed consolidated stateroéiisome.

Upon adoption of the new standard, and effectivefaie issuance date of the Notes, we recorded4$88lion of the
principal amount to equity, representing the deiscalnt for the difference between our estimatedcoavertible del
borrowing rate of 8.5% at the time of issuance #m@d0.75% coupon rate of the Notes using a year life, which coincide
with the initial put rights of the Noteholders. &mdition, we allocated the $4.3 million of debtuiasce costs prmata to th
equity and debt components of the Notes, or $1lMomiand $2.9 million, respectively. The debt disat and the debt issual
costs allocated to the debt component were amdrtgenterest expense using the effective inteneshod over five years a
were fully amortized as of December 31, 2009.

The liability and equity components of the Notesodghe end of fiscal 2009 and 2010 consisted ef fthllowing (ir

thousands):

2009 2010
Principal amount of outstanding Nof $ 65,30: $ 2,30
Unamortized discour 2,06¢ —
Liability component of outstanding Notes, | $  63,23¢ $ 2,30¢
Equity component of outstanding No $ 20,59 $ 727

The contractual interest expense and amortizaticshebt issuance costs and debt discount for thedNfur fiscal 200t
2009 and 2010 were as follows (in thousands):

2008 2009 2010
Interest expens $ 962 $ 661 $ 213
Amortization of debt issuance co: 57¢€ 36¢ 11¢€
Amortization of discoun 8,22: 6,027 2,06¢
Total interes $ 9,76 $ 7,05¢ $ 2,40(C
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Impact of Retrospective Application of New Accoyhtandarc

The retrospective application of the accountingid®ad resulted in adjustments to our consolidatddrize sheet as of |
end of fiscal 2009 as follows (in thousands):

Accounting
As Standarc As
Reportec Impact Revised
Other asset $ 2534 $ (7)) $ 25,27
Total asset 376,22: (77) 376,15(
Current deferred tax liabilitie 9,41¢ 80€ 10,22t
Notes payabli 65,30: (2,069 63,23¢
Total current liabilities 136,32: (1,267) 135,06(
Additional paid in capita 270,96 22,70« 293,66¢
Retained earning 187,66t (21,517 166,15«
Total stockholdel' equity 221,41 1,192 222,60¢
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity 376,22: (72) 376,15(

The retrospective application of the accountingndéad resulted in adjustments to our consolidatatbments of incom
and basic and diluted net income per share foalfid808 and 2009 as follows (in thousands, excepspare and effective 1

rate data):
2008 2009
Accounting Accounting
As Standarc As As Standarc As
Reportec Impact Revised Reportec Impact Revised

Interest expens $ (1,82) $ (7,940 $ (9,762 $ (1,23 $ (5,81 $ (7,059
Gain/(Loss) on early retirement of

debt — — — 3,60( (4,659 (1,053
Provision for taxe: (17,68¢) 3,20¢ (14,485 (11,48¢) 4,22 (7,267)
Net income 31,10¢ (4,737 26,36 54,32« (6,245 48,07¢
Net income per shar

Basic $ 08¢ $ 019 $ o0.7¢C $ 1.6C $ 019 $ 141

Diluted $ 0.7¢ $ 012 $ 0.67 $ 152 $ 0.1 $ 1.3t

The retrospective application of the accountinqidéad resulted in adjustments to our consolidatatements of ca:
flows for fiscal 2008 and 2009 as follows (in thands):

2008 2009
Accounting Accounting
As Standarc As As Standarc As
Reportec Impact Revised Reportec Impact Revised
Net income $ 31,10( $ 4,737) $ 26,36! $ 54,32 $ (6,245 $ 48,07¢
Amortization of debt issuance co 86( (282) 57¢ 577 (209) 36¢
Deferred income taxe 597 (3,207%) (2,60€) (9,699 (4,227) (13,916
Amortization of debt discour — 8,22 8,222 — 6,02¢ 6,024

8. Stockholders’ Equity

We have a StockholderRights Plan that may have the effect of deterrd@daying, or preventing a change in control
might otherwise be in the best interests of oucldiolders. In general, stock purchase rights issueder the plan becor
exercisable when a person or group acquires 15%aooe of our common stock or when a tender offeexathange offer f
15% or more of our common stock is announced orngented. After any such event, our other stockhsldeay purchas
additional shares of our common stock at 50% ofttiemeurrent market price. The rights will cause subshwlilution to ¢
person or group that attempts to acquire us onstermh approved by our board of directors. The ggttitould not interfere wi
any merger or other business combination approyealibboard of directors. The rights expire in AagR012.
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Preferred Stocl

We are authorized, subject to limitations imposgdlelaware law, to issue up to a total of 10,000,6Bares of preferr
stock in one or more series without stockholderaygl. Our board of directors has the power tol#ista from time to time tF
number of shares to be included in each seriestafiid the rights, preferences, and privileges o shares of each whc
unissued series and any of its qualifications, thitidns, or restrictions. Our board of directora edso increase or decrease
number of shares of a series, but not below thebeurof shares of that series then outstanding,outtlany further vote
action by the stockholders.

Our board of directors may authorize the issuarigereferred stock with voting or conversion riglist could harm tt
voting power or other rights of the holders of gommon stock. The issuance of preferred stock,endrioviding flexibility ir
connection with possible acquisitions and othepomate purposes, could, among other things, hageetfect of delayin
deferring, or preventing a change in control of oampany and might harm the market price of our mom stock and tt
voting power and other rights of the holders of omin stock. As of the end of fiscal 2010, there weseshares of preferr
stock outstanding and we have no current planssieei any shares of preferred stock.

Shares Reserved for Future Issuance

Shares of common stock reserved for future issuaaad the end of fiscal 2010 were as follows:

Stock options outstandir 7,748,57!
Deferred stock units outstandi 821,14t
Awards available for grant under all st-based award plar 5,761,511

Reserved for future issuan 14,331,23

Treasury Stock

In April 2010, our board of directors approved afdiional $100 million for the stock repurchase gmam, expiring i
April 2012, bringing the cumulative authorizatian $420 million. The program authorizes us to repase our common stc
in the open market or in privately negotiated teami®ns depending upon market conditions and ddmetors. The number
shares repurchased and the timing of repurchasbkasied on the level of our cash balances, genesihdss and marlk
conditions, and other factors, including alternatinvestment opportunities. Common stock repurchaseler this program
held as treasury stock. As of the end of fiscal®RO&e had $138.1 million remaining under our comnstock repurcha:
program, which expires in April 2012.

9. Share-Based Compensation

The purpose of our various share-based compensatims is to attract, motivate, retain, and rewhigh-quality
employees, directors, and consultants by enablioh persons to acquire or increase their propsidtderest in our comm
stock in order to strengthen the mutuality of iat#s between such persons and our stockholdertogmavide such persa
with annual and longerm performance incentives to focus their begiresfin the creation of stockholder value. Consatjys
we determine shareased compensatory awards issued subsequent tmitilaé award to our employees and consult
primarily on individual performance. Our shdvased compensation plans with outstanding awardsistoof our 1996 Sto
Option Plan, our 2000 Nonstatutory Stock OptionnPlaur 2001 Incentive Compensation Plan, as ameratadi our 200
Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as amended.

Adjustments to She-based Compensation Expense

During the second quarter of fiscal 2010 and innemtion with an upgrade of the thiparty equity accounting softwe
we use to determine shabased compensation expense, we discovered a daloudaror that affected our previously repo
sharebased compensation expense. The previous softveas@n incorrectly applied a weighted average farfe rate to eac
vest date through the final vest date of each shased award after which any shortfall in expense tnged up, rather than ti
up any shortfall in expense on each vest dateaf share-based award.
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The impact of this incorrect calculation methodoter sharebased compensation expense was to defer a portitire
expense recognition until the final vest date, Whiesulted in an overstatement of net income of9gE®, $1.2 millior
$1.1 million, and $165,000 for fiscal 2006, 200708, and 2009, respectively, and $74,000 for thartgn ende
September 2009.

To correct the error, the financial statementstfigr threemonth period ended December 31, 2009 included aulziive
adjustment reducing net income by $3.1 million$6r09 per diluted share. The tax benefit assocmiddthe adjustment w
$1.4 million and included tax benefit from DSUs amsh-qualified stock options, and no tax benefit fromckt compensatic
expense for qualified stock options. We reviewed timancial statement impact of this error and dathed the impact
immaterial to our consolidated financial statemerfitgrior reporting periods and fiscal 2010.

As noted above, we determined the cumulative droon the understatement of shdr@sed compensation expense rel
to prior periods was $3.1 million after tax. Thed@idnal expense reported for fiscal 2010 was $280,for cost of revenu
$1.5 million for research and development, and $2llfon for selling, general, and administrativeartially offset by $1.
million of additional tax benefit.

Sharebased compensation awards available for grantsaraizce for each plan as of the beginning of theaffigear
including changes in the balance of awards avail&l grant for fiscal 2010, were as follows:

Awards
Available 2000 2001 Employee
Under All Nonstatutor Incentive Stock
Shar-Base( Stock Optiol Compensatic Purchast
Award Plan Plan Plan Plan
Balance at June 20( 5,987,56: 56,37¢ 4,774,05! 1,157,13
Additional shares authorize 2,039,02 — 2,039,02 —
Stock options grante (1,646,82) — (1,646,82) —
Deferred stock units grantt (430,149 — (430,149 —
Purchases under employee stock purchase (301,219 — — (301,219
Forfeited 113,11! — 113,11! —
Balance at June 20: 5,761,51i 56,37t 4,849,22! 855,91!

Our 1996 Stock Option Plan (1996 Plajpired in December 2006. Accordingly, no new ggaran be issued under
1996 Plan. Option awards that are currently outBtnunder the 1996 Plan will remain outstandintl @xercised, forfeited,
cancelled under the terms of the option grant agesds. Our 2001 Incentive Compensation Plan, asdetk and our 20l
Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as amended, willeekpMarch 2011 and December 2011, respectively.

Sharebased compensation and the related tax benefignézed in our consolidated statement of incomefimal 2008
2009, and 2010 were as follows (in thousands):

2008 2009 2010
Cost of revenu $ 1,102 $ 1,68( $ 2,307
Research and developmt 6,321 8,891 14,33(
Selling, general, and administrati 10,08( 13,84 18,73¢
Total $ 17,501 $ 24,42 $  35,37¢
Income tax benefit on sh-based compensati $ 6,11¢ $ 7,972 $ 9,647
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We utilize the Black-Scholes option pricing modeldstimate the grant date fair value of certain leyge shardsase!
compensatory awards, which requires the input gifilfisubjective assumptions, including expectedtility and expected lif
Historical and implied volatilities were used irtisgating the fair value of our shabmsed awards, while the expected life of
options was estimated based on historical tremtesbur initial public offering. Changes in thesplts and assumptions
materially affect the measure of estimated faiugadf our sharéased awards. Further, as required under accousttmglard:
we estimate forfeitures for shabased awards that are not expected to vest. Weelthe estimated fair value less estim
forfeitures to earnings on a straidite basis over the vesting period of the undegyamvards, which is generally four years
our stock option and DSU awards and up to two y&arsur employee stock purchase plan. The Blackeles option pricir
model was developed for use in estimating the ¥aiue of traded options having no vesting restiitdi and being ful
transferable. As our stock option and employeeksfachase plan awards have characteristics tffif@r diignificantly fron
traded options and, as changes in the subjectauegstions can materially affect the estimated vabue estimate of fair vali
may not accurately represent the value assignemithird party in an armdéngth transaction. While our estimate of fair &
and the associated charge to earnings materidéigtafour results of operations, it has no impacbor cash position.

In accordance with the accounting standards, wegrdze tax benefit upon expensing certain shased awar
associated with our shabased compensation plans, including nonqualifiedksbptions and DSU awards, but under cu
accounting standards we cannot recognize tax bermficurrent with the recognition of shdrased compensation exper
associated witlincentive stock options and employee stock purcipéese shares (qualified stock options). For quadifstoc
options that vested after our adoption of the anting standards, we recognize tax benefit onhhaperiod when disqualifyi
dispositions of the underlying stock occur, whid$tdrically has been up to several years afteringstnd in a period when ¢
stock price substantially increases. For qualifieatk options that vested prior to our adoptiothef accounting standards,
tax benefit is recorded directly to additional paiccapital.

We determine excess tax benefit using the loagt method in which we compare the actual tax fitemesociated with tt
tax deduction from shareased award activity to the hypothetical tax berafithe grant date fair values of the correspay
share-based awards. Tax benefit associated withsexiax deduction creditable to additional gaidapital is not recogniz
until the deduction reduces taxes payable. Durisgaf 2008, 2009, and 2010, we recognized $0.3anjll$9.4 million, an
$7.1 million, respectively, of tax benefit as aditial paid-in capital.

Historically, we have issued new shares in conoaatiith our shardased compensation plans; however, treasury ¢
were also available for issuance as of the endsohlf 2010. Any additional shares repurchased uodercommon stoc
repurchase program would be available for issuander our share-based compensation plans.

Stock Options

Our sharebased compensation plans with outstanding stodkrptwards include our 1996 Stock Option Plan, 200(
Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan, and our 2001 Ingenfompensation Plan, as amended “Plans”). Under the Plans, we m
grant employees, consultants, and directors ineergtock options or nonqualified stock options tochase shares of ¢
common stock at not less than 100% or 85% of thienfarket value, respectively, on the date of gr&mbck options granted
our employees generally are incentive stock optimmgualified options under the Internal Revenuel&€asubject to calenc
year vesting limitations with any balance beingaualified stock options

Options issued under the Plans generally vest 26%heaend of 12 months from the vesting commencérdate an
approximately 2% each month thereafter until fullgsted at the end of 48 months from the vestingneentement dal
Options not exercised ten years after the dateasftgre cancelled.
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Stock option activity and weighted average exerpisees for stock options granted, exercised, fate and expired fi
fiscal 2010 and the balance of outstanding andcisadsle stock options as of the end of fiscal 28&@e as follows:

Stock Weighted

Option Average

Awards Exercise

Outstanding Price

Balance at June 20( 6,770,31. $ 20.8¢
Granted 1,646,82! 26.6¢
Exercisec (604,245 15.67
Forfeited (64,329 28.8¢
Balance at June 20: 7,748,57! 22.4:
Exercisable at June 20. 4,211,04! $ 19.17

As of the end of fiscal 2010, the number of stogkians outstanding and exercisable by range ofcésemprices, tr
weighted average exercise prices, and the intriredice and for options outstanding the weightedaye remaining contractt
life were as follows:

Options Outstandin Options Exercisabl
Weighted
Average Weighte( Weightec
Remaining Average Intrinsic Average Intrinsic
Range o Number Contractue Exercise Value Number Exercise Value

Exercise Price  Outstandin Term Price (in thousands  Exercisabli Price (in thousands
$1.67- $13.55 807,77¢ 307 $ 801 % 16,37+ 807,77¢ $ 801 $ 16,37+
$14.02- $15.5: 835,12( 5.7¢ 14.52 11,49: 810,52 14.51 11,16
$15.55- $19.4( 853,13 7.4¢€ 17.7¢ 8,97¢ 499,76 17.6¢ 5,31z
$19.63- $20.47 776,97: 5.3t 20.1: 6,33: 729,45: 20.1¢ 5,92:
$21.92- $24.3: 1,147,06! 8.4¢ 23.3¢ 5,65t 338,99¢ 22.8( 1,85¢
$25.50- $26.17 1,090,25! 8.44 25.71 2,80z 209,56« 26.17 44z
$26.28- $28.8: 874,55! 7.9€ 26.87 1,23: 317,86¢ 26.5¢ 547
$31.76- $34.01 1,151,68! 8.34 32.9i — 370,01t 33.51 —
$35.99 75,00( 8.12 35.9¢ — 34,37 35.9¢ —
$39.51 137,01¢ 7.17 39.51 — 92,70t 39.51 —
7,748,57 7.0¢ 224 % 52,86 4,211,04! 19.17 % 41,61¢

The aggregate intrinsic value was determined uiegclosing price of our common stock on the lesdihg day of fisci
2010, or June 25, 2010, of $28.28 and excludesrpact of options that were not in-the-money.

At the end of fiscal 2010, we estimated fully velsbptions and options expected to vest to be 7lllomivith an aggrega
intrinsic value of $52.2 million, having a weightetverage exercise price of $22.28 and a weightextage remainir
contractual term of seven years. The weighted geeramaining contractual term for the options eisafile is approximate
six years.
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Cash received and the aggregate intrinsic valustauk options exercised for fiscal 2008, 2009, 26@0 were as follov
(in thousands):

2008 2009 2010
Cash receive $  23,55( $ 13,30: $ 9,46¢
Aggregate intrinsic valu $ 49,27 $ 17,54¢ $ 8,30¢

The fair value of each award granted from our Pfan$iscal 2008, 2009, and 2010 was estimatetietate of grant usi
the Black-Scholes option pricing model, assumingxpected dividends and the following range of ag#ions:

2008 2009 2010
Expected volatility 49.5%- 60.4% 56.9%- 65.4% 44.2%- 62.2%
Expected life in year 4.4-5.0 45-4.7 47-51
Risk-free interest rat 2.8%- 4.6% 1.7%- 3.2% 1.9%- 2.7%
Fair value per awar $8.04- $19.28 $10.06- $17.32 $12.19- $13.58

The expected volatility is based on historical anglied volatilities; the expected life is basedhistorical option exerci:
trends; and the risk free interest rate is basetd.o8. Treasury yields in effect at the time ofrdréor the expected life of tl
option.

Unrecognized shareased compensation costs for stock options gramiddr the Plans were approximately $37.7 mi
as of the end of fiscal 2010 to be recognized awseighted average period of approximately 2.5s/ear

Deferred Stock Unit

Our 2001 Incentive Compensation Plan, as amen@®aD{‘ Plan”)provides for the grant of DSU awards to our empé®
consultants, and directors. A DSU is a promisedlivdr shares of our common stock at a future dateccordance with tl
terms of the DSU grant agreement. We began grab8ids in January 2006.

DSUs granted under the 2001 Plan generally vest @beoyear from the vesting commencement date ardrate c
approximately 6% each quarter thereafter untilyfultsted four years from the vesting commencematst. delivery of shar
under the plan takes place on the quarterly vestatgs. At the delivery date, we withhold sharesdeer statutory minimu
tax withholding by delivering a net number of shsardntil delivery of shares, the grantee has nbtsigs a stockholder.

An election to defer delivery of the underlying sfmfor unvested DSUs can be made by the grantegdpd the deferr
election is made at least one year before vestidglee deferral period is at least five years ftbmscheduled delivery date.

DSU activity, including DSUs granted, deliveredddarfeited in fiscal 2010, and the balance andregate intrinsic valt
of DSUs as of the end of fiscal 2010 were as fadlow

Deferred Aggregate Weighted

Stock Unit Intrinsic Average
Awards Value Grant Date
Outstandiny (in thousand: Fair Value
Balance at June 30, 20 738,25¢ $ 26.7¢
Granted 430,14¢ 26.6¢
Delivered (298,47() 25.97
Forfeited (48,790 28.0¢
Balance at June 30, 20 821,14¢ $ 23,22: 26.9:

Of the shares delivered, 91,104 shares valued .4trfilion were withheld to meet statutory minimuax withholding
requirements. The aggregate intrinsic value wasrdeted using the closing price of our common stoakhe last trading d
of fiscal 2010, or June 25, 2010, of $28.28.
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Unrecognized shareased compensation costs for DSUs granted unde&0®E Plan were approximately $17.8 millior
of the end of fiscal 2010, which will be recognizeder a weighted average period of approximatebyy2ars. The aggreg:
market value of DSUs delivered in fiscal 2008, 2008 2010 was $2.7 million, $6.1 million, and $iflion, respectively.

Employee Stock Purchase PI

Our 2001 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“ESHiggame effective on January 29, 2002, the effedtimee of th
registration statement for our initial public offey. The ESPP allows employees to designate up58&b df their bas
compensation, subject to legal restrictions andtditions, to purchase shares of common stock at 8b#e lesser of the f:
market value (“FMV”)at the beginning of the offering period or the eiss date. The offering period extends for up to
years and includes four exercise dates occurrirgjxanonth intervals. Under the terms of the ESPthe FMV at an exercis
date is less than the FMV at the beginning of tfierimg period, the current offering period willrteinate and a new twygea
offering period will commence.

Shares purchased, weighted average purchase paisie,received, and the aggregate intrinsic valu&E8PP purchas
fiscal 2008, 2009, and 2010 were as follows (iruands, except for shares purchased and weigh¢edge/purchase price):

2008 2009 2010
Shares purchast¢ 58,39: 185,60« 301,21!
Weighted average purchase pi $ 20.81 $ 16.8¢ $ 15.1¢
Cash receive $ 1,21« $ 3,122 $ 4,562
Aggregate intrinsic valu $ 387 $ 59z $ 5,901

In accordance with accounting standards relatetheoaccounting for employee stock purchase plaris ailookback
option, the early termination of an offering peritmlowed by the commencement of a new offeringiqubrrepresents
modification to the terms of the related awardsdémthe terms of our ESPP, the offering period tmabmenced on July
2007 was terminated on December 31, 2008 and aoffeving period commenced on January 1, 2009. Teeeihber 31, 20(
modification affected approximately 275 employegse modification resulted in incremental compemsatiosts, which are r
material and which will be recognized on a straigie basis over the two-year period ending Deceartie 2010.

The fair value of each award granted under our EfiPRiscal 2008, 2009, and 2010 was estimatedgusiire Black-
Scholes option pricing model, assuming no expediteédends and the following range of assumptions:

2008 2009 2010
Expected volatility 37.1%- 58.7% 53.3%- 73.0% 56.6%- 63.2%
Expected life in year 0.5-2.0 0.5-2.0 0.5-2.0
Risk-free interest rat 3.0%- 5.0% 0.3%- 2.4% 0.2%-1.1%
Fair value per awar $6.51- $9.97 $6.01- $10.44 $10.05- $18.81

The expected volatility is based on either impNedhatility or a weighting of implied and historicablatility; the expecte
life is based on each period that begins with tirelement date until each purchase date remaimintpé offering period at tl
date of enroliment in the plan; and the risk freteliest rate is based on U.S. Treasury yields eldydurve in effect for ea
expected life.

Unrecognized sharkased compensation costs for awards granted unaelESPP at the end of fiscal 2010 w
approximately $1.5 million to be amortized over text six months.

10. Employee Benefit Plans
401(k) Plan

We have a 401(k) Retirement Savings Plan fortfale employees. Under the plan, eligible employmey contribute
maximum of 30% of their net compensation or theuahifimit of $16,500. The annual limit for employe&ho are 50 years
older is $22,000. In fiscal 2010, we provided matgtunds of 25% of the employee¢ontribution up to a maximum of $4,:
per employee. We made matching contributions of3§80, $783,000, and $943,000 in fiscal 2008, 2088 201(
respectively.
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11. Income Taxes

Income (loss) before provision for income taxesfigzal 2008, 2009, and 2010 consisted of the falg (in thousands):

2008 2009 2010
u.S. $ 7,69¢ $ (13469 $ (16,07)
Foreign 33,152 68,81 76,33¢
Income before provision for income tay $  40,84¢ $ 55,34 $ 60,251

The provision for income taxes for fiscal 2008, 208nd 2010 consisted of the following (in thousgnd

2008 2009 2010
Current tax expens
Federal $ 11,09¢ $ 13,17( $ 4,101
State 56€ 1,20¢ 458
Foreign 5,42¢ 6,80¢ 9,27:
17,09: 21,17¢ 13,82¢
Deferred tax expens
Federal (1,299 (11,92) (9,05¢)
State (1,319 (1,980) 2,61¢
Foreign — 9 (95)
(2,606) (13,916 (6,539
Provision for income taxe $ 14,48t $ 7,268 $ 7,29
The provision for income taxes differs from the deal statutory rate for fiscal 2008, 2009, and 2@%0follows (it
thousands):
2008 2009 2010
Provision at U.S. federal statutory r $ 14,297 $ 19,37( $ 21,08¢
State income taxe 1,15(C 55C 2,65(
Qualified stock option 87t 1,70C 2,47¢
Business credit (1,935 (2,749 (84€)
Foreign tax differentia (1,907 (13,959 (16,999
Tax exempt interes (1,307%) (479 (10€)
Change in valuation allowan: 4,36: 3,23 15t
Tax benefit from NOL carrybac — — (1,809
Other difference (1,050 (409) 675
Provision for income taxe $ 14,48t $ 7,268 $ 7,292

We recorded tax benefit of $1.8 million from therghack of a prior year net operating loss, whiepresents a revision
tax benefits generated in fiscal 2008 and 200998000 and $855,000, respectively. We determihati the impact of tt
adjustment was not material to our consolidatedrfaial statements for fiscal 2008, 2009, or 2010.
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Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) as of the efifiscal 2009 and 2010 consisted of the follow{imgthousands):

2009 2010
Current deferred tax asst $ 13¢€ $ 1,387
Current deferred tax liabilitie (10,22 % —
Non-current deferred tax asst 17,54 12,60
Net deferred tax asse $ 7,457 $ 13,99

Current deferred tax assets, non-current defeemedssets, and nawrent deferred tax liabilities are included irejpaic
expenses and other current assets, other assdtqttaar liabilities, respectively, in the accompiagyconsolidated balan
sheets.

Significant components of our deferred tax asskdbilities) as of the end of fiscal 2009 and 20dd@nsisted of tt
following (in thousands):

2009 2010
Deferred tax asset
Investment writedown $ 7,14¢ $ 7,37
Capital Loss carryforwar 2,70¢ 2,094
Inventory writedown: 154 24¢€
Depreciation and amortizatic 731 1,43:
Accrued compensatic 751 98C
Shar-based compensatic 8,21« 14,14¢
Business credit carryforwa 7,54¢ 9,99(
Other accrual 46¢ 451
27,71¢ 36,71t
Valuation allowanct (9,859 (14,05%)
17,86¢ 22,651
Deferred tax liabilities
Interest deductio (10,407 (8,66¢6)
(10,407 (8,66¢€)
Net deferred tax asse $ 7,451 $ 13,99!

Realization of deferred tax assets depends on ewnergting sufficient U.S. and certain foreign td®ahcome in futur
years to obtain benefit from the reversal of defértax assets. Accordingly, the amount of defeteedassets considel
realizable may increase or decrease when we resealue underlying basis for our estimates of filurS. and foreign taxat
income. As of the end of fiscal 2010, a valuatilaveance of $14.1 million had been establishecerduce deferred tax asset
levels that we believe are more than likely thahtoobe realized through future taxable incomethia first quarter of fisc
2010, we established a valuation allowance of $#léon against certain state deferred tax asseiseswe determined the
assets were no longer realizable on a more likely hot basis.

Undistributed operating earnings of our foreignsdiaries were approximately $220 million as of #ral of fiscal 201
and are considered to be indefinitely reinvestegrg®as, and no U.S. income taxes have been profodexh these earning
The potential deferred tax liability associated hwitindistributed operating earnings of our foreigmbssdiaries we
approximately $56 million.

As of the end of fiscal 2010, we had state net ajpeg loss carryforwards of approximately $34 roitli The state n
operating loss carryforwards were attributablehtarebased award deductions. The benefit of these rettpg losses will
recorded directly to additional-paid-capital when realized. In addition, we had $®illion and $4.9 million of federal al
state tax credit carryforwards, respectively. Tédefal tax credit carryforward begins to expir@@27 and the state tax cre
can be carried forward indefinitely. We also hadr$tillion of federal alternative minimum tax credarryforward available
offset future Federal tax liabilities with no exation.
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Under the current tax law, net operating loss amxcctedit carryforwards available to offset futimeome or income tax
may be limited by statute or upon the occurrenceesfain events, including significant changes wnership. The state r
operating loss will begin to expire in fiscal 20ifhot utilized. The federal and state capitakles begin to expire in fiscal 20

The total liability for gross unrecognized tax bfiseincluded in other liabilities in our consoliga balance sheet as of
end of fiscal 2009 was $18.0 million. The liabilitgr gross unrecognized tax benefits increasedcequpately $1.0 milliol
during fiscal 2010 to $19.0 million. All of this auant would affect the effective tax rate on incofmen continuing operatior
if recognized. A reconciliation of the beginningdaending balance of gross unrecognized tax beregfitsisted of the followir
(in millions):

Balance as of June 20 $ 18.C
Increase in unrecognized tax benefits relatedito gear tax position 0.3
Increase in unrecognized tax benefits related teeatiyear tax positior 2.1
Decrease due to statue expirat (1.9

Balance as of June 20 $ 19.C

The total interest and penalties accrued relatathtecognized tax benefits as of the end of fi2€@l9 was $1.0 milliol
The liability for gross interest expense and péeshivere increased by $0.2 million to $1.2 millias of the end of fiscal 20:
Our policy to classify interest and penalties,nfaas components of income tax expense did notgeha

It is reasonably possible that the amount of thhility for unrecognized tax benefits may changthimithe next 12 montl
and an estimate of the range of possible changestde made at this time due to the high unceytaihthe resolution of o
tax positions with the various tax jurisdictionsvitnich we operate. Accordingly, the unrecognizeditenefits from prior yei
tax positions that may be necessary to accrueawatee for in fiscal 2011 cannot be reasonablyregéd at this time.

Our major tax jurisdictions are the United Statsalifornia, and Hong Kong SAR and fiscal 2003 ordvaemain subject
examination by these jurisdictions.

12. Segment, Customers, and Geographic Information

We operate in one segment: the development, magketind sale of interactive user interface solgtiéor electroni
devices and products. We generate our revenue tiranbroad product categories: the PC market andatliifestyle produc
markets. The PC market accounted for 76%, 57%5860@ of our net revenue for fiscal 2008, 2009, adtlX? respectively.

Net revenue within geographic areas based on cstowiers’locations for fiscal 2008, 2009, and 2010 consistkthe
following (in thousands):

2008 2009 2010
China $ 235,74¢ $ 307,81 $ 389,49¢
Taiwan 55,57¢ 46,89¢ 56,09¢
Korea 38,911 70,66 32,49¢
Japar 18,34: 35,81: 35,83¢
United State: 99¢€ 3,531 43C
Other 11,47¢ 8,581 531

$ 361,05 $ 473,30: $ 514,89
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Long-lived assets within geographic areas as oéttteof fiscal 2009 and 2010 consisted of the ¥alhg (in thousands):

2009 2010
United State! $ 20,62¢ $ 19,88’
Asia/Pacific 4,80¢ 5,93/

$ 25,43: $ 25,821

Our goodwill of $1.9 million represents a corporasset arising primarily from an acquisition of Asian subsidiary in
prior year.

Major customers as a percentage of net revenuieséal 2008, 2009, and 2010 were as follows:

2008 2009 2010
Customer A * 14% *
Customer E * 11% *
Customer C 10% * 11%
Customer C * * 10%

*  Lessthan 109
13. Subsequent Events

We have evaluated all events or transactions tbairoed subsequent to fiscal 2010 through the dfafiing this repor
and determined there were no material recognizaiidsequent events.
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3.1 Certificate of Incorporation (1
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Mark N. Vena; as of October 23, 2007 with Jame¥/hims; as of January 7, 2008 with David B. Long and
Joseph D. Montalbo; and as of March 2, 2009 witthieen A. Bayless (1
10.1¢ Severance Policy for Principal Executive Officetg)(
10.2( Form of Change of Control and Severance Agreemaeted into by Russell J. Knittel as of April 2203
11)
10.22 Settlement Agreement dated March 31, 2005 by arahgrthe registrant, Alps Electric Co. Ltd., andcDie
Corporation (12) °
10.2: Change of Control Severance Agreement enterecinfthomas Tiernan as of April 3, 2006 (:
21 List of Subsidiarie:
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31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuaot Rule 13-14(a)/15«-14(a)
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1)

()
(3)
(4)
()
(6)
(7)

(8)
(9)

Incorporated by reference to the registrant’'s Faf@ for the quarter ended December 29, 2001, as\iiiddthe SEC o
February 21, 200z

Incorporated by reference to the regist's Form A as filed with the SEC on August 16, 20!

Incorporated by reference to the regist's Current Report on Forn-K as filed with the SEC on August 2, 20:
Incorporated by reference to the regist's Current Report on Forn-K as filed with the SEC on December 7, 20
Incorporated by reference to the regist's Form 1+K for fiscal 2002, as filed with the SEC on Septemb2, 2002
Incorporated by reference to the regist's Current Report on Forn-K as filed with the SEC on April 24, 20C

Incorporated by reference to the registrant’s tegfion statement on Form S-1 (Registration No.-38826) as filed wit
the SEC August 17, 2001 and declared effectivealsrz8, 2002

Incorporated by reference to the registrant’s FoérQ for the quarter ended September 29, 2007, ab\ilth the SEC ¢
November 8, 200’

Incorporated by reference to the registrant’'s FAGYQ for the quarter ended December 28, 2002, as Wil¢ld SEC ol
February 6, 200:

(10) Incorporated by reference to the registrant’'s Faf for the fiscal year ended June 24, 2006, as fildgti the SEC o

September 7, 200

(11) Incorporated by reference to the regist's Form 1K for fiscal 2003, as filed with the SEC on Septemb2, 2003
(12) Incorporated by reference to the regist's Current Report on Forn-K as filed with the SEC on April 1, 200
(13) Incorporated by reference to the registrant’s Qurrie@eport on Form & as filed with the SEC on April 3, 20(

Incorporated by reference to the registrant’s tegfion statement on Form S-3 (Registration No.383582) as filed wit
the SEC November 21, 2008 and declared effectivig M&009.

Portions of this exhibit have been omitted pursuara confidential treatment request that was gdhtty the Securiti
and Exchange Commission pursuant to Rule-2 of the Exchange Ac
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Exhibit 21
List of Subsidiaries

STATE OR JURISDICTION

NAME OF ORGANIZATION
Synaptics International, In California
Synaptics (UK) Limitec United Kingdom
Synaptics Hong Kong Limite Hong Kong
Synaptics Europe Sg Switzerland
Synaptics Holding Gmbl Switzerland
Synaptics LLC Delaware
Synaptics Technology (Shanghai) Company Lim China
Synaptics Japan (K.K.) Limite Japar

Synaptics CanHK Limite Hong Kong



Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Directors
Synaptics Incorporated:

We consent to the incorporation by reference inrélggstration statements (Nos. 333-81820, 333-82288-82286, 3382282,
333-99529, 333-99531, 333-146145 and 333-146146jovm S-8, (No. 333-115274) on Form S-4, and (1888-122348 anc
333-155582) on Form S-of Synaptics Incorporated of our reports datedjusti 23, 2010, with respect to the consolid:
balance sheets of Synaptics Incorporated as of Jon2009 and June 26, 2010, and the related ddated statements
income, stockholders’ equity and comprehensiverimegoand cash flows for each of the years in theethear period ende
June 26, 2010, and the effectiveness of internatrobover financial reporting as of June 26, 204@ijch reports appear in tl
June 26, 2010 annual report on Form 10-K of Synapticorporated.

Our report dated August 23, 2010 includes an extay paragraph relating to the retrospective ddopf the provisions c
Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 14¢ncluded in Financial Accounting Standards Bo@4SB) Accounting
Standards Codification 470-2Debt with Conversion and Other OptiophsAccounting for Convertible Debt Instruments T
May Be Settled in Cash upon Conversion (IncludirsgtiBl Cash Settlement, for all periods presented herein. Also,
discussed in note 1 to the consolidated finand&kments, Synaptics Incorporated and subsidiaaigspted the provisions
FASB Staff Position No. FAS 115-2 and FAS 124R&cognition and Presentation of Other-ThHeemporary Impairment
(included in FASB ASC Topic 32Mpvestments-Debt and Equity Securifieduring fiscal 2009.

/s KPMG LLP

Mountain View, California
August 23, 2010



Exhibit 31.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to
Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)

I, Thomas J. Tiernan, certify that:

1.
2.

5.

I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Synaptics Incorporate:

Based on my knowledge, this report does not cortajnuntrue statement of a material fact or om#téde a material fe
necessary to make the statements made, in lighhefcircumstances under which such statements wame, nc
misleading with respect to the period covered ligy tport;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd,adher financial information included in this repdairly present i
all material respects the financial condition, itssaf operations and cash flows of the registeenbf, and for, the peric
presented in this repol

The registrant’ other certifying officer(s) and | are responsifide establishing and maintaining disclosure cdst@mnc
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 18a)ld&nd 15dt5(e)) and internal control over financial repaogti¢as
defined in Exchange Act Rules -15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure controls and procedaoies designe
under our supervision, to ensure that material rmédion relating to the registrant, including itensolidate
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others withose entities, particularly during the period ihieh this report i
being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financigdaring, or caused such internal control over fmahreporting ti
be designed under our supervision, to provide rede assurance regarding the reliability of finaheporting an
the preparation of financial statements for exteqmarposes in accordance with generally acceptembuatting
principles;

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadtsclosure controls and procedures and presémtts report oL
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disctosontrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered b
this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegid’s internal control over financial reporting thatoed durin
the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (tlgsteant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabrg that ha
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evally affect, the registrarg’internal control over financial reportil
and

The registrang’ other certifying officer(s) and | have discloskdsed on our most recent evaluation of internatrobove
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditoredahe audit committee of the registranboard of directors (or pers¢
performing the equivalent function:

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal corarar financie
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversaffect the registrand’ ability to record, process, summarize
report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaiveanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in th
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: August 23, 2010

/s/ Thomas J. Tiernar
Thomas J. Tiernat
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.z

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to
Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)

I, Kathleen A. Bayless, certify that:

1.
2.

5.

I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Synaptics Incorporate:

Based on my knowledge, this report does not cortajnuntrue statement of a material fact or om#téde a material fe
necessary to make the statements made, in lighhefcircumstances under which such statements wame, nc
misleading with respect to the period covered ligy tport;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd,adher financial information included in this repdairly present i
all material respects the financial condition, itssaf operations and cash flows of the registeenbf, and for, the peric
presented in this repol

The registrant’ other certifying officer(s) and | are responsifide establishing and maintaining disclosure cdst@mnc
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 18a)ld&nd 15dt5(e)) and internal control over financial repaogti¢as
defined in Exchange Act Rules -15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure controls and procedaoies designe
under our supervision, to ensure that material rmédion relating to the registrant, including itensolidate
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others withose entities, particularly during the period ihieh this report i
being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financigdaring, or caused such internal control over fmahreporting ti
be designed under our supervision, to provide rede assurance regarding the reliability of finaheporting an
the preparation of financial statements for exteqmarposes in accordance with generally acceptembuatting
principles;

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadtsclosure controls and procedures and presémtts report oL
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disctosontrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered b
this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegid’s internal control over financial reporting thatoed durin
the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (tlgsteant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabrg that ha
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evally affect, the registrarg’internal control over financial reportil
and

The registrang’ other certifying officer(s) and | have discloskdsed on our most recent evaluation of internatrobove
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditoredahe audit committee of the registranboard of directors (or pers¢
performing the equivalent function:

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal corarar financie
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversaffect the registrand’ ability to record, process, summarize
report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaiveanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in th
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: August 23, 2010

/sl Kathleen A. Bayless
Kathleen A. Bayles:
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1
Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Offier

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-KSynaptics Incorporated (the “Companyfgr the year ende
June 26, 2010 as filed with the Securities and Brgkh Commission on the date hereof (the “Repadit’Yhomas J. Tierna
President and Chief Executive Officer of the Comparertify, to the best of my knowledge and belmirsuant to 18 U.S.C
1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarb@arkes- Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934 (1!
U.S.C. 78m(a) or 780(d)); a

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctodiand results «
operations of the Compar

/s/ Thomas J. Tiernar
Thomas J. Tiernat
Chief Executive Officer
August 23, 201C




Exhibit 32.z

Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Offier

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-KSynaptics Incorporated (the “Companyfdr the year ende
June 26, 2010 as filed with the Securities and Brge Commission on the date hereof (the “RepdrtRathleen A. Bayles
Chief Financial Officer, Secretary, and Treasuffahe Company, certify, to the best of my knowledgel belief, pursuant to
U.S.C. 8 1350, as adopted pursuant to 8 906 dbénbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934 (1!
U.S.C. 78m(a) or 780(d)); a

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctodiand results «
operations of the Compar

/sl Kathleen A. Bayless
Kathleen A. Bayles:
Chief Financial Officer
August 23, 201C




